OFFERING CIRCULAR FOR NOTES, WARRANTS AND CERTIFICATES

26 June 2023

Morgan Stanley

as issuer and guarantor
(incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware in the United States of America)

MORGAN STANLEY & CO. INTERNATIONAL PLC
as issuer
(incorporated with limited liability in England and Wales)

MORGAN STANLEY B.V.
as issuer
(incorporated with limited liability in The Netherlands)

MORGAN STANLEY FINANCE LLC
as issuer
(formed under the laws of the State of Delaware in the United States of America)

MORGAN STANLEY FINANCE Il LTD
as issuer
(incorporated with limited liability in the Bailiwick of Jersey)

MORGAN STANLEY EUROPE SE
as issuer
(incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Germany)

Regulation S / 144A Program for the Issuance of Notes, Series A and B, Warrants and Certificates

Under the Regulation S / 144A Program for the Issuance of Notes, Series A and B, Warrants and Certificates (the
“Program”) described in this Offering Circular (the “Offering Circular”), Morgan Stanley (“Morgan Stanley”),
Morgan Stanley & Co. International ple (“MSI plc” or “MSIP”), Morgan Stanley B.V. (“MSBV”), Morgan Stanley
Finance LLC (“MSFL”), Morgan Stanley Finance II Ltd (“MSFI1”’) and Morgan Stanley Europe SE (“MSESE”) or any
of Morgan Stanley’s subsidiaries that accedes to the Program (each, an “Additional Issuer” and, together with Morgan
Stanley, MSI plc, MSBV, MSFL, MSFII and MSESE, the “Issuers” and each, an “lIssuer”) may offer from time to time
Series A Notes and Series B Notes (together, the “Notes”) and (with the exception of MSFL and MSFII), Warrants (the
“Warrants”) and Certificates (the “Certificates”). The Notes, Warrants and Certificates which are being offered under
this Offering Circular (including, in the case of English Law Notes, as issued under the Issue and Paying Agency
Agreement and, in the case of Warrants and Certificates, as issued under the Securities Agency Agreement (in each case,
as defined below)) shall be referred to collectively as “Program Securities” in this Offering Circular.

References herein to "this Offering Circular"” shall, where applicable, be deemed to be references to this Offering
Circular as supplemented from time to time. The specific terms of any Program Securities will be as set forth in this
Offering Circular and (i) completed by the applicable Pricing Supplement prepared in relation to the Program Securities,
or (ii) supplemented, amended and/or replaced to the extent described in the relevant drawdown Listing Particulars (as
defined in the rules of the Global Exchange Market of Euronext Dublin, as revised from time to time, or as defined in the
rules of the GSX Global Market of the Gibraltar Stock Exchange), as the case may be.

The payment of all amounts due in respect of Program Securities issued by MSBV, MSFL, MSFII or an Additional Issuer
will, unless specified otherwise in the appropriate Pricing Supplement or, in the case of an Additional Issuer, in the
accession agreement pursuant to which such Additional Issuer accedes to the Program, be unconditionally and irrevocably
guaranteed by Morgan Stanley (in such capacity, the "Guarantor™) pursuant to a guarantee dated as of 26 June 2023 (as
supplemented and/or amended and/or restated and/or replaced from time to time). Payment of amounts due in respect of
Notes, Warrants and Certificates issued by MSI plc is not guaranteed by Morgan Stanley.

Unless otherwise specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the Program Securities are not intended to be offered,
sold or otherwise made available and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available to “retail clients” in the



European Economic Area (the "EEA") as defined in the rules set out in the Markets in Financial Instruments Directive
2014/65/EU, as amended ("MIiFID 11") or in the United Kingdom (the “UK”) as defined in the rules set out in Regulation
(EU) No 2017/565 as it forms part of “retained EU law” as defined in the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 (the
“EUWA”). Prospective investors are referred to the sections headed “PRIIPs / IMPORTANT — EEA RETAIL
INVESTORS” and “UK PRIIPs/IMPORTANT — UK RETAIL INVESTORS” beginning on on page ix of this Offering
Circular for further information.

As further described below, Program Securities may be sold to a person that is not a U.S. person (within the meaning of
Regulation S (“Regulation S”) under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”)), in an “offshore
transaction” within the meaning of Regulation S (“Regulation S Securities”). Regulation S Securities will be represented
by interests in a permanent global registered security (each, a “Regulation S Registered Global Instrument”), without
coupons, which will be registered in the name of a nominee for, and shall be deposited on its issue date with a common
depositary on behalf of, Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. (“Euroclear”) and Clearstream Banking, société anonyme
(“Clearstream, Luxembourg”). In addition, Program Securities may be sold in reliance on Rule 144A under the
Securities Act (“Rule 144A”), in addition to Regulation S (“Regulation S/Rule 144A Securities”). Regulation S/Rule
144A Securities will be offered and sold only to “qualified institutional buyers” (“QIBSs”) within the meaning of Rule
144A or to a person that is not a U.S. person in an offshore transaction. However, any Regulation S/Rule 144A Securities
issued by MSBV may only be sold to QIBs that are also qualified purchasers (“QPs”) as defined in Section 2(a)(51) of
the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the “Investment Company Act”), and the rules thereunder (such
person, a “QIB/QP”) or to a person that is not a U.S. person in an offshore transaction. Regulation S/Rule 144A Securities
will be represented by (i) one or more global registered securities (each, a “Regulation S/Rule 144A Registered Global
Instrument” and, together with any Regulation S Registered Global Instrument, the “Registered Global Instruments”),
without coupons, which will be deposited with (1) a custodian for, and registered in the name of Cede & Co. as nominee
for, The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) or (2) a common depository acting on behalf of Euroclear or Clearstream,
Luxembourg and/or any other relevant clearing system on its issue date or (ii) individual registered securities (“Individual
Registered Securities”) as identified in the relevant Pricing Supplement. Beneficial interests in Registered Global Instruments
will be shown on, and transfers thereof will be effected only through, records maintained by DTC, Clearstream,
Luxembourg and Euroclear and their participants. Individual Registered Securities will not be eligible for trading on the
facilities of DTC, Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg. The provisions governing the exchange of interests in Registered
Global Instruments for Individual Registered Securities are described in the “Form of Securities” section of this Offering
Circular.

MSBYV, MSFL and MSIP may offer and sell Regulation S Securities and/or Regulation S/Rule 144A Securities. All
Regulation S/Rule 144A Securities offered and sold by MSFL and MSIP will be offered and sold only to QIBs and/or
non-U.S. persons in offshore transactions. All Regulation S/Rule 144A Securities offered and sold by MSBV will be
offered and sold only to QIB/QPs and/or to a person that is not a U.S. person in an offshore transaction. Morgan Stanley,
MSFII and MSESE will only offer and sell Regulation S Securities

These Program Securities are subject to restrictions on transferability and resale and may not be transferred or
resold except as permitted herein. Investors should be aware that they may be required to bear the financial risks
of this investment for an indefinite period of time.

In addition to the restrictions described above, transfers and resales of Program Securities issued by MSBV are
subject to further conditions and restrictions. As a condition to its acquisition of any such Program Securities,
each purchaser of such Program Securities may be required to execute and deliver to MSBV a purchaser certificate
pursuant to which it will be required to make certain acknowledgements, representations, warranties and
agreements, including, without limitation that (i) such purchaser is a non-U.S. person or, solely in the case of
Regulation S/Rule 144A Program Securities, a QIB/QP (an “MSBYV Permitted Transferee”) and (ii) it understands
and agrees to comply with the conditions and restrictions set forth in the following paragraph.

A holder of Program Securities issued by MSBV may offer, sell or otherwise transfer such Program Securities
only to (i) MSBV, a Distribution Agent or any of their affiliates or (ii) an MSBV Permitted Transferee. MSBV has
the right to refuse to honour the transfer or pledge of any Program Securities that do not meet the transfer
restrictions and other restrictions and conditions described herein. Each purchaser of such Program Securities
will be deemed to represent and warrant that it agrees to comply with the transfer restrictions and other
restrictions and conditions set forth in this Offering Circular or the Pricing Supplement. Any purported transfer
or pledge of such Program Securities that is in breach, at the time made, of any transfer restrictions or other
restrictions or conditions set forth in this Offering Circular or the Pricing Supplement may be void ab initio. If,
at any time, MSBV determines in good faith that (i) a holder of such Program Securities is in breach, at the time
given, of any of the transfer restrictions or other restrictions or conditions set forth in this Offering Circular or
the Pricing Supplement, (ii) a transfer or attempted or purported transfer of any such Program Securities was



consummated in reliance on an incorrect purchaser certificate from the transferee or purported transferee, (iii) a
transferee failed to deliver to MSBV a purchaser certificate satisfactory in form to it, (iv) the holder of such
Program Securities was in breach of any representation, warranty or agreement contained in the purchaser
certificate or (v) the holder of such Program Securities pledges or attempts or purports to pledge such Program
Securities, MSBV may, in its discretion, consider the acquisition by such person or such pledge void and of no
force and effect, and such acquisition or pledge will not, at the discretion of MSBV, operate to transfer any rights
to the transferee notwithstanding any instructions to the contrary to MSBV or any other intermediary. In
addition, MSBV may require such acquirer or beneficial owner to sell the Program Securities to a non-U.S. person
or QIB/QP. In connection with the foregoing, MSBV may receive a list of participants holding positions in the
Program Securities from one or more book-entry depositaries. For the purposes of the foregoing, references to
holders and purchasers of Program Securities include beneficial owners and purchasers of beneficial interests in
such Program Securities.

This Offering Circular was approved as an offering circular on 26 June 2023 in Switzerland by SIX Exchange
Regulation AG ("'SIX Exchange Regulation™) in its capacity as Swiss Prospectus Office. The Program Securities
consist of derivative components and do not qualify as units of a collective investment scheme according to the
relevant provisions of the Swiss Federal Act on Collective Investment Schemes of 23 June 2006 (*"CISA™), as
amended, and are not registered thereunder. Therefore, the Program Securities are neither governed by the CISA
nor supervised by the Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (""FINMA'). Accordingly, investors do not
have the benefit of the specific investor protection provided under the CISA.

This Offering Circular is valid for 12 months as of 26 June 2023 and may be supplemented from time to time.
MORGAN STANLEY

as Arranger



Important Notices
Warning

This Offering Circular does not constitute a "prospectus” for the purposes of Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 (as
amended, the "Prospectus Regulation™) or Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 as it forms part of “retained EU law”,
as defined in the EUWA (the “UK Prospectus Regulation”), and has been prepared on the basis that no
prospectus shall be required under the Prospectus Regulation or UK Prospectus Regulation for any Program
Securities to be offered and sold under it. This Offering Circular has not been approved or reviewed by any
regulator which is a competent authority under the Prospectus Regulation in the EEA or in any other
jurisdiction.

Approvals
This Offering Circular has been approved by:

0] The Irish Stock Exchange plc trading as Euronext Dublin ("Euronext Dublin”) as base Listing
Particulars pursuant to the listing and admission to trading rules of Euronext Dublin for the purpose
of providing information with regard to the issue of Program Securities hereunder, to be admitted to
the Official List of Euronext Dublin and trading on its Global Exchange Market during the twelve
month period following the date hereof. The Global Exchange Market is the exchange regulated
market of Euronext Dublin and is not a regulated market for the purposes of MiFID II;

(i) the Luxembourg Stock Exchange pursuant to the appendices to the Rules and Regulations of the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange, to be admitted to trading on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange's Euro
MTF market and to the Official List of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. The Luxembourg Stock
Exchange's Euro MTF market is not a regulated market for the purposes of MiFID Il or Article
2(1)(13A) of Regulation (EU) 600/2014 as it forms part of “retained EU law” as defined in the
EUWA. Pursuant to Part 2 / Chapter 2 / point 206 of the Rules and Regulations of the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange, every significant new factor relating to the information contained in this Offering
Circular, which is capable of affecting the assessment of the Program Securities and arises after the
date hereof, shall be covered by a supplement to this Offering Circular. This Offering Circular
constitutes a prospectus for the purpose of Part IV of the Luxembourg law on prospectuses for
securities dated July 16, 2019;

(iii) the Gibraltar Stock Exchange (GSX Limited) pursuant to the Listing Code for Debt Securities of the
Gibraltar Stock Exchange, to be listed on the Global Market of the Gibraltar Stock Exchange; and

(iv) the SIX Exchange Regulation in its capacity as Swiss Prospectus Office within the meaning of the
Swiss Federal Act on Financial Services of 15 June 2018 ("FinSA").

Listing

Applications have been made for the Series A Notes, the Warrants and the Certificates to be:

(i) admitted to the Official List of Euronext Dublin and trading on its Global Exchange Market. As noted
above, the Global Exchange Market is the exchange regulated market of Euronext Dublin and is not

a regulated market for the purposes of MiFID II;

(i) admitted to the Official List of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and to trading on the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange's Euro MTF market;

(iii) listed on the Global Market of the Gibraltar Stock Exchange; and

(iv) admitted to listing and trading on the SIX Swiss Exchange,

in each case during the period from and including the date hereof up to but excluding 26 June 2024.
The applicable Pricing Supplement will specify where the Series A Notes will be listed.

The Series B Notes will not be admitted to listing, trading and/or quotation by any listing authority, stock
exchange and/or quotation system.



The applicable Pricing Supplement will specify whether and where the Warrants or the Certificates (as
applicable) will be listed.

The distribution of this Offering Circular and any Pricing Supplement and the offering, sale and
delivery of the Program Securities in certain jurisdictions may be restricted by law. None of the Issuers
is making an offer of the Program Securities in any state or other jurisdiction where the offer is not
permitted. Persons into whose possession the Offering Circular or any Pricing Supplement comes are
required by each Issuer and the Distribution Agents to inform themselves about and to observe any of
those restrictions.

Neither this Offering Circular nor any Pricing Supplement may be used for the purpose of an offer or
solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction in which that offer or solicitation is not authorized or to any
person to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer or solicitation.

None of the Issuers, the Guarantor or Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC or MSIP as Distribution Agents for
the Program Securities has or will take any action in any country or jurisdiction that would permit a
public offering of the Program Securities or possession or distribution of any offering material in
relation to a public offering in any country or jurisdiction where action for that purpose is required.
Each investor must comply with all applicable laws and regulations in each country or jurisdiction in
or from which the investor purchases, offers, sells or delivers the Program Securities or has in the
investor’s possession or distributes this Offering Circular or any accompanying Pricing Supplement.

No action has been or will be taken by any of the Issuers, the Guarantor, the Distribution Agents or any
dealer that would permit a public offering of the Program Securities or possession or distribution of
this Offering Circular or any accompanying Pricing Supplement in any jurisdiction where action for
that purpose is required.

Neither the Offering Circular nor any Pricing Supplement constitutes a recommendation by any Issuer,
the Guarantor, the Distribution Agents or any of them that any recipient of the Offering Circular or
any Pricing Supplement should subscribe for or purchase any Program Securities. Each recipient of
the Offering Circular or any Pricing Supplement will be taken to have made its own investigation and
appraisal of the condition (financial or otherwise) of the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor, if applicable,
and of the particular terms of any offered Program Securities.

You should rely only on the information contained or incorporated by reference or provided in this
Offering Circular or the relevant Pricing Supplement. None of the Issuers nor the Guarantor has
authorized anyone else to provide you with different or additional information. You should not assume
that the information in this Offering Circular or the relevant Pricing Supplement is accurate as of any
date subsequent to the date hereof or the date upon which this Offering Circular has been most recently
amended or supplemented.

Subject to applicable securities laws, effective from the date of commencement of discussions concerning
the offering, you and each of your employees, representatives, or other agents may disclose to any and
all persons, without limitation of any kind, the tax treatment and tax structure of the offering and all
materials of any kind, including opinions or other tax analyses, that the relevant Issuer has provided to
you relating to such tax treatment and tax structure. However, the foregoing does not constitute an
authorization to disclose the identity of any of the Issuers or the Guarantor, or their affiliates, agents or
advisors, or, except to the extent relating to such tax structure or tax treatment, any specific pricing
terms or commercial or financial information.

For a description of certain restrictions on offers, sales and deliveries of Program Securities and on the
distribution of the Offering Circular or any Pricing Supplement and other offering material relating to
the Program Securities, see “Subscription and Sale.”

The Offering Circular should be read and construed with any amendment or supplement thereto and
with any other documents incorporated by reference and, in relation to any offering of Program
Securities, should be read and construed together with the relevant Pricing Supplement.

None of the Issuers, the Guarantor, the Distribution Agents or any of their respective representatives is
making any representation to any offeree or purchaser of the Program Securities regarding the legality
of an investment by such offeree or purchaser under appropriate legal investment or similar laws. Each



investor should consult with his own advisers as to the legal, tax, business, financial and related aspects
of a purchase of the Program Securities.

THE PROGRAM SECURITIES, ANY INTEREST THEREIN AND ANY GUARANTEE IN
RESPECT THEREOF, AND THE SECURITIES TO BE DELIVERED ON EXERCISE OR
REDEMPTION OF THE PROGRAM SECURITIES (IF ANY), MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD,
PLEDGED, ASSIGNED, DELIVERED OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED, EXERCISED OR
REDEEMED AT ANY TIME, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, WITHIN THE UNITED STATES OR
TO, OR FOR THE ACCOUNT OR BENEFIT OF, ANY U.S. PERSON (AS DEFINED IN
REGULATION S UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT) EXCEPT AS SET FORTH IN THE
FOLLOWING SENTENCE. BY ITS ACQUISITION HEREOF, THE HOLDER REPRESENTS
THAT (A) IN THE CASE OF REGULATION S SECURITIES, IT IS ACQUIRING THIS NOTE IN
AN OFFSHORE TRANSACTION IN COMPLIANCE WITH REGULATION SOR (B) IN THE CASE
OF REGULATION S/RULE 144A SECURITIES, IT IS A QIB (AND, IN THE CASE OF PROGRAM
SECURITIES ISSUED BY MSBV, A QIB/QP OR IT IS ACQUIRING THIS NOTE IN AN
OFFSHORE TRANSACTION IN COMPLIANCE WITH REGULATION S).

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of the relevant Issuer
and the Guarantor, if applicable, and the terms of the offering, including the merits and risks involved.
These Program Securities have not been recommended by any United States federal or state securities
commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore, the foregoing authorities have not confirmed the
accuracy or determined the adequacy of this document. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal
offense.

Each person receiving this Offering Circular acknowledges that (i) such person has been afforded an
opportunity to request from the relevant Issuer and to review all additional information it considers to
be necessary to verify the accuracy of, or to supplement, the information contained in this Offering
Circular and the relevant Pricing Supplement, (ii) such person has not relied on the Distribution Agents
or any person affiliated with the Distribution Agents in connection with its investigation of the accuracy
of such information or its investment decision, and (iii) no person has been authorized to give any
information or to make any representation concerning any Issuer, the Guarantor or the Program
Securities other than as contained in this Offering Circular or the relevant Pricing Supplement and, if
given or made, any such other information or representation should not be relied upon as having been
authorized by any Issuer, the Guarantor or the Distribution Agents.

MiIFID Il product governance / target market

The Pricing Supplement in respect of any Program Securities may include a legend entitled "MiFID 11
Product Governance" which will outline the target market assessment in respect of the Program Securities
and which channels for distribution of the Program Securities are appropriate. Any person subsequently
offering, selling or recommending the Program Securities (a "distributor") should take into consideration the
target market assessment; however, a distributor subject to MiFID Il is responsible for undertaking its own
target market assessment in respect of the Program Securities (by either adopting or refining the target market
assessment) and determining appropriate distribution channels.

A determination will be made in relation to each issue about whether, for the purpose of the MiFID Product
Governance rules under EU Delegated Directive 2017/593 (the "MiFID Product Governance Rules"), any
dealer subscribing for any Program Securities is a manufacturer in respect of such Program Securities, but
otherwise neither the dealer(s) nor any of its respective affiliates will be a manufacturer for the purpose of the
MiFID Product Governance Rules.

UK MiFIR product governance / target market

The Pricing Supplement in respect of any Program Securities may include a legend entitled “UK MiFIR
Product Governance” which will outline the target market assessment in respect of the Program Securities
and which channels for distribution of the Program Securities are appropriate. Any person subsequently
offering, selling or recommending the Program Securities (a "distributor") should take into consideration the
target market assessment; however, a distributor subject to the FCA Handbook Product Intervention and
Product Governance Sourcebook (the “UK MIiFIR Product Governance Rules”) is responsible for
undertaking its own target market assessment in respect of the Program Securities (by either adopting or
refining the target market assessment) and determining appropriate distribution channels.



A determination will be made in relation to each issue about whether, for the purpose of the UK MiFIR Product
Governance Rules, any dealer subscribing for any Program Securities is a manufacturer in respect of such
Program Securities, but otherwise neither dealer(s) nor any of its respective affiliates will be a manufacturer
for the purpose of the UK MIFIR Product Governance Rules.

Benchmarks Regulation

Interest and/or other amounts payable under the Program Securities may be calculated by reference to certain
reference rates. Any such reference rate may constitute a benchmark for the purposes of Regulation (EU)
2016/1011 of the European Parliament and of the Council on indices used as benchmarks in financial
instruments and financial contracts or to measure the performance of investment funds (the "Benchmarks
Regulation™) and the Benchmarks Regulation as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the EUWA (the
“UK Benchmarks Regulation”). If any such reference rate does constitute such a benchmark, the Pricing
Supplement will indicate whether or not the benchmark is provided by an administrator included in the register
of administrators and benchmarks established and maintained by the European Securities and Markets
Authority ("ESMA") pursuant to Article 36 (Register of administrators and benchmarks) of the Benchmarks
Regulation and whether or not the benchmark is provided by an administrator included in the register of
administrators and benchmarks established and maintained by the United Kingdom Financial Conduct
Authority ("FCA™) pursuant to Article 36 (Register of administrators and benchmarks) of the UK Benchmarks
Regulation. Transitional provisions in the Benchmarks Regulation and the UK Benchmarks Regulation may
have the result that the administrator of a particular benchmark is not required to appear in the relevant register
of administrators and benchmarks at the date of the Pricing Supplement. The registration status of any
administrator under the Benchmarks Regulation and the UK Benchmarks Regulation is a matter of public
record and, save where required by applicable law, the Issuer does not intend to update the Pricing Supplement
to reflect any change in the registration status of the administrator.

Responsibility statements

Each of Responsible Persons accepts responsibility for the information contained in this Offering Circular and
the Registration Document dated 9 December 2022 (the “Registration Document”) and any supplements
thereto, and to the best of the knowledge of the Responsible Persons (each having taken all reasonable care to
ensure that such is the case), the information contained in this Offering Circular is in accordance with the facts
and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

“Responsible Person” means:

(i) Morgan Stanley in relation to (A) this Offering Circular which comprises this Offering Circular with the
exception of: (i) the items under the sub-sections entitled “Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc”, “Morgan
Stanley B.V.”, “Morgan Stanley Finance LLC”, “Morgan Stanley Finance Il Ltd” and “Morgan Stanley
Europe SE” in the section entitled “Incorporation by Reference” set out at pages 64-76; (ii) the sub-sections
entitled "Selected key financial information relating to MSI plc", "Selected key financial information relating
to MSBV", "Selected key financial information relating to MSFL", "Selected key financial information relating
to MSFII" and “Selected key financial information relating to MSESE” contained in the Overview section set
out on pages 3-4; (iii) the section entitled “Description of Morgan Stanley Finance Il Ltd” set out on pages
800-802; (iv) the section entitled “Description of Morgan Stanley Europe SE “ set out on pages 816-819 and
(v) Items 1(b)-(f), 2(b)-(f), 3(c), 5(b)-(f), 7-11 and 12(b)-(f) in the section entitled "General Information" set
out at pages 908-914; and (B) the Morgan Stanley registration document (the "Morgan Stanley Registration
Document™) which comprises the Registration Document with the exception of (i) Items 6 to 14 in the section
entitled "Information Incorporated by Reference" set out at pages 20-31; and (ii) the sections entitled
"Description of Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc" set out at pages 55-59; "Description of Morgan
Stanley B.V." set out at pages 60-63 and "Description of Morgan Stanley Finance LLC" set out at pages 64-
66;

(if) MSlI plc in relation to (A) this Offering Circular which comprises this Offering Circular with the exception
of: (i) Items under the headings “Morgan Stanley”, “Morgan Stanley B.V.”, “Morgan Stanley Finance LLC”,
“Morgan Stanley Finance Il Ltd” ” and “Morgan Stanley Europe SE” in the section entitled “Incorporation
by Reference” set out at pages 64-76; (ii) the sections entitled "Selected key financial information relating to
Morgan Stanley", "Selected key financial information relating to MSBV", "Selected key financial information
relating to MSFL", “Selected key financial information relating to MSFII” and “Selected key financial
information relating to MSESE” contained in the Overview section set out on pages 3-4; (iii) the section
entitled “Description of Morgan Stanley Finance Il Ltd” set out on pages 800-802; (iv) the section entitled



“Description of Morgan Stanley Europe SE “ set out on pages 816-819; and (v) Items 1(a) and (c)-(e), 2(a)
and (c)-(e), 3(a)-(b) and (c)(ii)- (iii), 5(a) and (c)-(e), 6, 8-10 and 11(a) and (c)-(e) in the section entitled
"General Information” set out at pages 908-14; and (B) the MSI plc registration“document (the "MSI plc
Registration Document™) which comprises the Registration Document with the exception of (i) Items 1 to 5
and 9 to 14 in the section entitled "Information Incorporated by Reference" set out at pages 20-31; and (ii) the
sections entitled "Description of Morgan Stanley" set out at pages 33-54; "Description of Morgan Stanley
B.V." set out at pages 60-63; "Description of Morgan Stanley Finance LLC" set out at pages 64-66; and
"Subsidiaries of Morgan Stanley as of 31 December 2021" set out at page 67;

(iii) MSBV in relation to (A) this Offering Circular which comprises this Offering Circular with the exception
of: (i) Items under the headings “Morgan Stanley”, “Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc”, “Morgan
Stanley Finance LLC”, “Morgan Stanley Finance Il Ltd” ” and “Morgan Stanley Europe SE” in the section
entitled “Incorporation by Reference” set out at pages 64-76; (ii) the sections entitled "Selected key financial
information relating to Morgan Stanley", "Selected key financial information relating to MSI plc", "Selected
key financial information relating to MSFL", “Selected key financial information relating to MSFII” and
“Selected key financial information relating to MSESE” contained in the Overview section set out on pages 3-
4; (iii) the section entitled “Description of Morgan Stanley Finance Il Ltd” set out on pages 800-802; (iv) the
section entitled “Description of Morgan Stanley Europe SE “ set out on pages 816-819; and (v) Items 1(a)-
(b) and (d)-(e), 2(a)-(b) and (d)-(e), 3(a)-(b) and (c)(i) and (iii), 5(a)-(b) and (d)-(e), 6-7, 9-10 and 11(a)-(b)
and (d)-(e) in the section entitled "General Information" set out at pages 908-14; and (B) the MSBV
registration document (the "MSBV Registration Document") which comprises the Registration Document
with the exception of (i) Items 1 to 8 and 12 to 14 in the section entitled "Information Incorpotated by
Reference™ set out at pages 20-31; and (ii) the sections entitled "Description of Morgan Stanley" set out at
pages 33-54; "Description of Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc™ set out at pages 55-59; "Description of
Morgan Stanley Finance LLC" set out at pages 64-66; and "Subsidiaries of Morgan Stanley as of 31 December
2021" set out at page 67;

(iv) MSFL in relation to (A) this Offering Circular which comprises this Offering Circular with the exception
of: (i) Items under the headings “Morgan Stanley”, “Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc”, “Morgan
Stanley B.V.”, “Morgan Stanley Finance Il Ltd” ” and “Morgan Stanley Europe SE” in the section entitled
"Incorporated by Reference" set out at pages 64-76; (ii) the sections entitled "Selected key financial
information relating to Morgan Stanley"”, "Selected key financial information relating to MSI plc", "Selected
key financial information relating to MSBV", “Selected key financial information relating to MSFII” and
“Selected key financial information relating to MSESE” contained in the Overview section set out on pages 3-
4; (iii) the section entitled “Description of Morgan Stanley Finance Il Ltd” set out on pages 800-802; (iv) the
section entitled “Description of Morgan Stanley Europe SE “ set out on pages 816-819; and (v) Items 1(a)-
(c) and (e), 2(a)-(c) and (e), 3(a)-(b) and (c)(i)- (ii), 5(a)-(c) and (e), 6-8, 10 and 11(a)-(c) and (e) in the section
entitled "General Information" set out at pages 904-18; and (B) the MSFL registration document (the "MSFL
Registration Document") which comprises the Registration Document with the exception of (i) Items 1 to
11 in the section entitled "Information Incorporated by Reference" set out at pages 20-31; and (ii) the sections
entitled "Description of Morgan Stanley" set out at pages 33-54; "Description of Morgan Stanley & Co.
International plc" set out at pages 55-59; "Description of Morgan Stanley B.V." set out at pages 60-63; and
"Subsidiaries of Morgan Stanley as of 31 December 2021" set out at page 67;

(v) MSFII in relation to (A) this Offering Circular which comprises this Offering Circular with the exception
of: (i) Items under the headings “Morgan Stanley”, “Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc”, “Morgan
Stanley B.V.”, “Morgan Stanley Finance LLC” ” and “Morgan Stanley Europe SE” in the section entitled
"Incorporated by Reference" set out at pages 64-76; (ii) the sections entitled "Selected key financial
information relating to Morgan Stanley", "Selected key financial information relating to MSI plc", "Selected
key financial information relating to MSBV", “Selected key financial information relating to MSFL” and
“Selected key financial information relating to MSESE” contained in the Overview section set out on pages 3-
4; (iii) the section entitled “Description of Morgan Stanley Europe SE “ set out on pages 816-819; and (iv)
Items 1(a)-(d), 2(a)-(d), 3(a)-(c), 5(a)-(d), 6-9 and 11(a)-(d) in the section entitled "General Information" set
out at pages 908-14.

(vi) MSESE in relation to (A) this Offering Circular which comprises this Offering Circular with the exception
of: (i) items under the heading "Morgan Stanley", "Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc", "Morgan Stanley
B.V.", "Morgan Stanley Finance LLC" and "Morgan Stanley Finance Il Ltd" in the section entitled
"Incorporated by Reference" set out on pages 64-76; (ii) the sections entitled "Selected key financial

information relating to Morgan Stanley", "Selected key financial information relating to MSI plc", "Selected
key financial information relating to MSBV", "Selected key financial information relating to MSFL" and



"Selected key financial information relating to MSFII" contained in the "Overview" section set out on pages
2-4; and (iii) Items 1(a)-(e), 2(a)-(e), 3(a)-(c), 5(a)-(e), 6-10 and 11(a)-(e) in the section entitled "General
Information™ set out on pages 908-14.

However, see "No consent given or responsibility taken for any public offerings in the EEA or in the UK"
below.

Offering restrictions in Switzerland

This Offering Circular has been approved in Switzerland by SIX Exchange Regulation in its capacity as Swiss
Prospectus Office within the meaning of FinSA. If and to the extent the Program Securities will be publicly
offered, directly or indirectly, in Switzerland within the meaning of the FinSA or if the Program Securities
shall be admitted to trading on a Swiss trading venue within the meaning of the Swiss Federal Financial Market
Infrastructure Act of 19 June 2015 ("FMIA"), e.g. SIX Swiss Exchange AG (the "SIX Swiss Exchange™), a
prospectus pursuant to the requirements of article 40 et seq. FinSA is required (the Program Securities not
falling into the scope of the requirement to be issued under a prospectus in the sense of the FinSA are
hereinafter referred to as the "FinSA Exempt Program Securities"). Such requirement will be met by an
issuance under (i) a Pricing Supplement prepared on the basis of the pro forma Pricing Supplement in this
Offering Circular that does not specify the Program Securities as FinSA Exempt Program Securities and (ii)
depositing the relevant Pricing Supplement as soon as it is in final form and, in any case, prior to any public
offering in Switzerland or admission to trading in Switzerland of such Program Securities with a Swiss
Prospectus Office in accordance with the requirements of FinSA. The Program Securities other than FinSA
Exempt Program Securities may be publicly offered on the basis of this Offering Circular and the Pricing
Supplement pertaining to the Program Securities in Switzerland in accordance with the requirements of the
FinSA.

As regards FinSA Exempt Program Securities, neither this Offering Circular nor any other offering or
marketing material relating to the Securities constitutes a prospectus pursuant to the FinSA, and neither this
Offering Circular nor any other offering or marketing material relating to the Program Securities may be
publicly distributed or otherwise made publicly available in Switzerland, unless the requirements of FinSA
for such public distribution are complied with. FinSA Exempt Program Securities may only be offered, sold
or advertised, directly or indirectly, in Switzerland if the Program Securities (a) are addressed solely to
investors classified as Professional or Institutional Clients; (b) are addressed to fewer than 500 Retail Clients;
(c) are addressed to investors acquiring securities to the value of at least CHF 100,000; (d) have a minimum
denomination per unit of CHF 100,000; or (e) do not exceed a total value of CHF 8 million over a 12-month
period. All clients other than professional clients (professionelle Kunden) and institutional clients
(institutionelle Kunden), as defined in Article 4 para. 3, 4 and 5 and Article 5 para. 1 and 2 FinSA
("Professional or Institutional Clients"), are retail clients ("Retail Clients™). Professional or Institutional
Clients include: (a) financial intermediaries regulated pursuant to the Swiss Federal Banking Act of 8
November 1934, the Swiss Federal Financial Institutions Act of 15 June 2018 ("FinlA™) or the CISA; (b)
regulated insurance undertakings pursuant to the Swiss Federal Insurance Supervision Act of 17 December
2004; (c) foreign financial intermediaries or insurance undertakings subject to a similar prudential supervision
as the financial intermediaries or insurance undertakings pursuant to (a) and (b); (d) central banks; (e) public
entities with professional treasury operations; (f) pension funds and occupational pension schemes with
professional treasury operations; (g) undertakings with professional treasury operations; (h) large companies
that exceed two of the following thresholds: (i) a balance sheet total of CHF 20 million, (ii) turnover of CHF
40 million, and/or (iii) own capital of CHF 2 million; (i) private investment structures for high-net worth
individuals with professional treasury operations; and (j) Opting-out Clients.

An "Opting-out Client" (vermdgende Privatkundinnen und -kunden) is a Retail Client who confirms (i) that,
based on the education/professional experience or based on comparable experience in the financial sector,
he/she/it has the necessary knowledge to understand the risks resulting from an investment in the Notes and
who owns, directly or indirectly, eligible financial assets of at least CHF 500,000, or (ii) that he/she/it owns,
directly or indirectly, eligible financial assets of at least CHF 2 million.

The Program Securities are only intended to be publicly offered, directly or indirectly, in Switzerland within
the meaning of FinSA or admitted to trading in Switzerland in accordance with FinSA if the relevant Pricing
Supplement pertaining to the Program Securities is registered with SIX Exchange Regulation in its capacity
as Swiss Prospectus Office pursuant to FinSA as soon as in final form and in any case prior to any public
offering in Switzerland or admission to trading in Switzerland of such Securities in accordance with the
requirements of FinSA. Furthermore, the Program Securities may only be offered to Retail Clients in
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Switzerland if a key investor document (Basisinformationsblatt) in the sense of Article 58 et seq. of FinSA
relating to the Securities (a "FinSA-KID") or a key information document pursuant to the PRIIPs Regulation
has been prepared and provided to the relevant Retail Client.

Offering restrictions in the EEA and in the UK

This Offering Circular has been prepared on the basis that any offer of Program Securities in any Member
State of the EEA or in the UK (each, a "Relevant State") will be made pursuant to an exemption under the
Prospectus Regulation or the UK Prospectus Regulation from the requirement to publish a prospectus for
offers of Program Securities. Accordingly, any person making or intending to make an offer in that Relevant
State of Program Securities which are the subject of an offering contemplated in this Offering Circular as
completed by a Pricing Supplement in relation to the offer of those Program Securities may only do so in
circumstances in which no obligation arises for the relevant Issuer or MSI plc, which may act in whole or in
part through an affiliate thereof, and Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC as distribution agents (the "Distribution
Agents") to publish or supplement a prospectus pursuant to Article 23 of the Prospectus Regulation or Article
23 of the UK Prospectus Regulation in relation to such offer. None of the Issuers, the Guarantor or the
Distribution Agents has authorised, nor do they authorise, the making of any offer of Program Securities in
circumstances in which an obligation arises for the Issuer to publish a prospectus in the EEA, in the UK or in
any other jurisdiction.

No consent given or responsibility taken for any public offerings in the EEA or in the UK

None of the Issuers, the Guarantor or the Distribution Agents consents to the use of this Offering Circular (or
any supplement thereto or any Pricing Supplement) by any financial intermediary or any other person for the
purpose of making a public offering of the Program Securities in the EEA or in the UK, and none of the
Issuers, the Guarantor or the Distribution Agents accepts any responsibility for the content of this Offering
Circular to any person with respect to the making of a public offering of the Program Securities by any
financial intermediary or other person or for the actions of such financial intermediary or other person making
such offer. The Issuers, the Guarantor and the Distribution Agents agree and acknowledge that this Offering
Circular may only be used for the purposes for which it has been published, as described further herein.

Rating

Program Securities may or may not be rated. Any credit rating applied for in relation to a tranche of Program
Securities will be specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

Information Covenant

To permit compliance with Rule 144A in connection with any resales or other transfers of Regulation S/Rule
144A Securities, each relevant Issuer and, if applicable, the Guarantor, has undertaken to furnish, upon the
request of a holder or beneficial owner of such Program Securities, to such holder, beneficial owner or to a
prospective purchaser designated by holder or beneficial owner, the information required to be delivered under
Rule 144A(d)(4) under the Securities Act if, at the time of the request, the relevant Issuer is neither a reporting
company under Section 13 or 15(d) of the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange
Act”), nor exempt from reporting pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b) thereunder.

IN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION, INVESTORS MUST RELY ON THEIR OWN
EXAMINATION OF THE RELEVANT ISSUER AND, WHERE APPLICABLE, THE GUARANTOR AND
THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING, INCLUDING THE MERITS AND RISKS INVOLVED.

Jersey Notices

The Jersey Financial Services Commission (the "Commission™) has given, and has not withdrawn, or will
have given prior to the issue of Notes by MSFII and not withdrawn, its consent under Article 4 of the Control
of Borrowing (Jersey) Order 1958 to the issue of Notes by MSFII. The Commission is protected by the Control
of Borrowing (Jersey) Law 1947, as amended, against liability arising from the discharge of its functions under
that law. It must be distinctly understood that, in giving this consent, neither the registrar of companies in
Jersey (the “Jersey Registrar”) nor the Commission takes any responsibility for the financial soundness of
MSFII or for the correctness of any statements made, or opinions expressed, with regard to it. If you are in
any doubt about the contents of this document you should consult your stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor,
accountant or other financial adviser.
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The investments described in this document do not constitute a collective investment fund for the purpose of
the Collective Investment Funds (Jersey) Law 1988, as amended, on the basis that they are investment products
designed for financially sophisticated investors with specialist knowledge of, and experience of investing in,
such investments, who are capable of fully evaluating the risks involved in making such investments and who
have an asset base sufficiently substantial as to enable them to sustain any loss that they might suffer as a
result of making such investments. These investments are not regarded by the Commission as suitable
investments for any other type of investor.

It should be remembered that the price of securities and the income from them can go down as well as up. Any
individual intending to invest in any investment described in this document should consult his or her
professional adviser and ensure that he or she fully understands all the risks associated with making such an
investment and has sufficient financial resources to sustain any loss that may arise from it.

Neither the investments described in this document nor the activities of any functionary with regard to such
investments are subject to all the provisions of the Financial Services (Jersey) Law 1998.

Authorizations

The Program Securities were authorised by Morgan Stanley pursuant to resolutions (the "Authorizing
Resolutions™) adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of Morgan Stanley held on 25 September 1998,
as amended and updated pursuant to resolutions adopted at meetings of the Board of Directors of Morgan
Stanley held on 17 June 2003, 14 December 2004, 20 September 2005, 12 December 2006, 19 June 2007, 17
September 2007 and 16 June 2008.

Governing law
The governing law of the Program Securities will be as follows:

0] The Notes will be governed by either the laws of the State of New York ("New York Law Notes™)
or the laws of England and Wales ("English Law Notes"), as specified in the applicable Pricing
Supplement. MSI plc, MSBV, MSFL, MSFII, MSESE and each Additional Issuer may issue English
Law Notes, but shall not issue New York Law Notes.

(i) The Warrants and Certificates will be governed by the laws of England and Wales. Morgan Stanley
may issue Certificates only and MSI plc, MSBV and, MSFL and MSESE may issue both Warrants
and Certificates. MSFII may not issue Warrants or Certificates.

Risk warning
The Program Securities may not be a suitable investment for all investors

An investment in the Program Securities entails certain risks, which vary depending on the specification and
type or structure of the Program Securities.

Each potential investor should determine whether an investment in the Program Securities is appropriate in its
particular circumstances. An investment in the Program Securities requires a thorough understanding of the
nature of the relevant transaction. Potential investors should be experienced with respect to an investment in
the Program Securities and be aware of the related risks.

An investment in the Program Securities is only suitable for potential investors who:
() have the requisite knowledge and experience in financial and business matters to evaluate the merits
and risks of an investment in the Program Securities and the information contained or incorporated

by reference into this document;

(i) have access to, and knowledge of, appropriate analytical tools to evaluate such merits and risks in the
context of the potential investor's particular financial situation and to evaluate the impact the Program
Securities will have on their overall investment portfolio;

(iii) understand thoroughly the terms of the Program Securities and are familiar with the behaviour of the
Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor as applicable and financial markets;
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(iv) are capable of bearing the economic risk of an investment in the Program Securities until the maturity
date of the Notes or exercise date of the Warrants or Certificates;

(v) recognise that it may not be possible to dispose of the Program Securities for a substantial period of
time, if at all before the maturity date in respect of the English Law Notes and/or the New York Notes
or the specified expiration date in respect of the Warrants and Certificates; and

(vi) are familiar with the behaviour of the Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor, as applicable and
relevant financial markets and be able to evaluate (either alone or with the help of a financial and
legal advisor) possible scenarios for economic, interest rate and other factors that may affect its
investment and its ability to bear the applicable risks.

The Program Securities are complex financial instruments. Sophisticated institutional investors generally do
not purchase complex financial instruments as standalone investments. They purchase complex financial
instruments as a way to reduce risk or enhance yield with an understood, measured, appropriate addition of
risk to their overall portfolios. A potential investor should not invest in the Program Securities unless it has
the expertise (either alone or with a financial and legal advisor) to evaluate how the Program Securities will
perform under changing conditions, the resulting effects on the value of the Program Securities and the impact
this investment will have on the potential investor's overall investment portfolio. Each Issuer, and the
Distribution Agents, disclaim any responsibility to advise prospective investors of any matters arising under
the law of the country in which they reside that may affect the purchase of, or holding of, or the receipt of
payments or deliveries on the Program Securities.

Secured Overnight Financing Rate

As further described under “Risk Factors Relating to the Program Securities” below, the interest rate on the
Notes may be SOFR.

SOFR is published by the New York Federal Reserve and is intended to be a broad measure of the cost of
borrowing cash overnight collateralized by U.S. Treasury securities. The New York Federal Reserve reports
that SOFR includes all trades in the Broad General Collateral Rate and bilateral Treasury repurchase
agreement (repo) transactions cleared through the delivery-versus-payment service offered by the Fixed
Income Clearing Corporation (the “FICC”), a subsidiary of the Depository Trust and Clearing Corporation
(“DTCC”), and SOFR is filtered by the New York Federal Reserve to remove some (but not all) of the
foregoing transactions considered to be “specials”. According to the New York Federal Reserve, “specials”
are repos for specific-issue collateral, which take place at cash-lending rates below those for general collateral
repos because cash providers are willing to accept a lesser return on their cash in order to obtain a particular
security.

The New York Federal Reserve reports that SOFR is calculated as a volume-weighted median of transaction-
level triparty repo data collected from The Bank of New York Mellon as well as General Collateral Finance
Repo transaction data and data on bilateral Treasury repo transactions cleared through the FICC’s delivery-
versus-payment service. The New York Federal Reserve also notes that it obtains information from DTCC
Solutions LLC, an affiliate of DTCC.

If data for a given market segment were unavailable for any day, then the most recently available data for that
segment would be utilized, with the rates on each transaction from that day adjusted to account for any change
in the level of market rates in that segment over the intervening period. SOFR would be calculated from this
adjusted prior day’s data for segments where current data were unavailable, and unadjusted data for any
segments where data were available. To determine the change in the level of market rates over the intervening
period for the missing market segment, the New York Federal Reserve would use information collected
through a daily survey conducted by its Trading Desk of primary dealers’ repo borrowing activity. Such daily
survey would include information reported by Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of
Morgan Stanley, as a primary dealer.

The New York Federal Reserve notes on its publication page for SOFR that use of SOFR is subject to
important limitations, indemnification obligations and disclaimers, including that the New York Federal
Reserve may alter the methods of calculation, publication schedule, rate revision practices or availability of
SOFR at any time without notice.



Each U.S. government securities business day, the New York Federal Reserve publishes SOFR on its website
at approximately 8:00 a.m., New York City time. If errors are discovered in the transaction data provided by
The Bank of New York Mellon or DTCC Solutions LLC, or in the calculation process, subsequent to the initial
publication of SOFR but on that same day, SOFR and the accompanying summary statistics may be
republished at approximately 2:30 p.m., New York City time. Additionally, if transaction data from The Bank
of New York Mellon or DTCC Solutions LLC had previously not been available in time for publication, but
became available later in the day, the affected rate or rates may be republished at around this time. Rate
revisions will only be effected on the same day as initial publication and will only be republished if the change
in the rate exceeds one basis point. Any time a rate is revised, a footnote to the New York Federal Reserve’s
publication would indicate the revision. This revision threshold will be reviewed periodically by the New York
Federal Reserve and may be changed based on market conditions.

Because SOFR is published by the New York Federal Reserve based on data received from other sources, the
Issuer has no control over its determination, calculation or publication. See “Risk Factors Relating to the
Program Securities” below.

The information contained in this section “Secured Overnight Financing Rate” is based upon the New York
Federal Reserve’s Website and other U.S. government sources.

Investing in the Program Securities involves risks. See "'Risk Factors relating to the Program Securities™
beginning on page 13 of this Offering Circular.

Important U.S. notices

THE PROGRAM SECURITIES AND ANY GUARANTEE IN RESPECT THEREOF, AND THE
SECURITIES TO BE DELIVERED ON EXERCISE OR REDEMPTION OF THE PROGRAM
SECURITIES (IF ANY), HAVE NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT BE REGISTERED UNDER THE U.S.
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, (THE "SECURITIES ACT"), OR THE SECURITIES
LAWS OF ANY STATE OR OTHER JURISDICTION OF THE UNITED STATES. NONE OF THE
ISSUERS OR THE GUARANTOR ARE REGISTERED, OR WILL REGISTER, UNDER THE U.S.
INVESTMENT COMPANY ACT OF 1940, AS AMENDED. TRADING IN THE PROGRAM
SECURITIES HAS NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE U.S. COMMODITY FUTURES TRADING
COMMISSION UNDER THE U.S. COMMODITY EXCHANGE ACT OF 1936, AS AMENDED (THE
“CEA").

THE PROGRAM SECURITIES, ANY INTEREST THEREIN AND ANY GUARANTEE IN
RESPECT THEREOF, AND THE SECURITIES TO BE DELIVERED ON EXERCISE OR
REDEMPTION OF THE PROGRAM SECURITIES (IF ANY), MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD,
PLEDGED, ASSIGNED, DELIVERED OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED, EXERCISED OR
REDEEMED AT ANY TIME, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, WITHIN THE UNITED STATES OR
TO, OR FOR THE ACCOUNT OR BENEFIT OF, ANY U.S. PERSON (AS DEFINED IN
REGULATION S UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT) EXCEPT AS SET FORTH IN THE
FOLLOWING SENTENCE. BY ITS ACQUISITION HEREOF, THE HOLDER REPRESENTS
THAT (A) IN THE CASE OF REGULATION S SECURITIES, IT IS ACQUIRING THIS NOTE IN
AN OFFSHORE TRANSACTION IN COMPLIANCE WITH REGULATION SOR (B) IN THE CASE
OF REGULATION S/RULE 144A SECURITIES, IT IS A QIB (AND, IN THE CASE OF PROGRAM
SECURITIES ISSUED BY MSBV, A QIB/QP OR IT IS ACQUIRING THIS NOTE IN AN
OFFSHORE TRANSACTION IN COMPLIANCE WITH REGULATION §S). HEDGING
TRANSACTIONS INVOLVING ANY “EQUITY SECURITIES” OF “DOMESTIC ISSUERS” (AS
SUCH TERMS ARE DEFINED IN THE SECURITIES ACT AND REGULATIONS THEREUNDER)
MAY ONLY BE CONDUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SECURITIES ACT. SEE
“SUBSCRIPTION AND SALE” AND “TRANSFER RESTRICTIONS”.

IN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION, INVESTORS MUST RELY ON THEIR OWN
EXAMINATION OF THE RELEVANT ISSUER AND, WHERE APPLICABLE, THE GUARANTOR
AND THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING, INCLUDING THE MERITS AND RISKS INVOLVED.
THE PROGRAM SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED BY THE U.S.
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION
OR ANY OTHER REGULATORY AUTHORITY IN THE UNITED STATES NOR HAVE ANY OF
THE FOREGOING AUTHORITIES PASSED UPON OR ENDORSED THE MERITS OF THE
OFFERING OF ANY PROGRAM SECURITIES OR THE ACCURACY OR THE ADEQUACY OF



THIS DOCUMENT. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENCE
IN THE UNITED STATES.

United States Withholding Tax

Payments in respect of a Program Security by Morgan Stanley, MSFL or MSFI1 may be subject to U.S.
withholding tax of 30 per cent. if the beneficial owner of the Program Security does not meet the criteria
for being exempt from this withholding tax. These criteria include the requirement that a beneficial
owner that is not a United States person for U.S. federal income tax purposes (or a financial institution
holding the Program Security on behalf of the beneficial owner) complies with certain tax identification
and certification rules, generally by furnishing the appropriate U.S. Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”)
Form W-8BEN or W-8BEN-E on which the beneficial owner certifies under penalties of perjury (i) that
it is not a U.S. person, (ii) in the case of an entity, that it is exempt from FATCA withholding, and (iii)
in the case of certain Program Securities, that it is eligible for a certain exemption under an applicable
tax treaty, as described below under "United States Federal Taxation". U.S. withholding may also apply
with respect to certain Program Securities issued by any Issuer that are linked to U.S. equities or certain
indices that include U.S. equities. In addition, U.S. backup withholding may apply to payments generally
unless certain certification requirements are satisfied or an exemption is otherwise established. If
withholding is so required, unless specified otherwise in an applicable Pricing Supplement none of the
Issuers or any intermediary will be required to pay any additional amounts with respect to the amounts
so withheld.

Program Securities are not deposits and are not covered by any deposit protection scheme.

THE PROGRAM SECURITIES ARE NOT DEPOSITS OR SAVINGS ACCOUNTS AND ARE NOT
INSURED BY THE U.S. FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION OR ANY OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY OR INSTRUMENTALITY OR DEPOSIT PROTECTION SCHEME
ANYWHERE, NOR ARE THEY OBLIGATIONS OF, OR GUARANTEED BY, A BANK.

No other person is authorised to give information on the Program Securities beyond what is in this
Offering Circular and related Pricing Supplement

No person has been authorised by any of Morgan Stanley, MSI plc, MSBV, MSFL, MSFII or MSESE to give
any information or to make any representation not contained or incorporated by reference in this Offering
Circular, and, if given or made, that information or representation should not be relied upon as having been
authorised by Morgan Stanley, MSI plc, MSBV, MSFL, MSFII or MSESE.

PRIIPs / IMPORTANT - EEA RETAIL INVESTORS - If the Pricing Supplement in respect of any
Program Securities includes a legend entitled ""Prohibition of Sales to EEA Retail Investors", the
Program Securities are not intended to be offered, sold or otherwise made available to and should not
be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail investor in the EEA. For these purposes, a
retail investor in the EEA means a person who is one (or more) of:

(A) a retail client as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) of MiFID Il, as amended;

(B) a customer within the meaning of Directive (EU) 2016/97, where that customer would not
qualify as a professional client as defined in point (10) of Article 4(1) of MiFID II; or

© not a qualified investor as defined in the Prospectus Regulation.

Consequently, if the Pricing Supplement in respect of any Program Securities includes a legend entitled
"Prohibition of Sales to EEA Retail Investors™, no key information document required by Regulation
(EU) No 1286/2014, as amended (the "PRIIPs Regulation') for offering or selling the Program
Securities or otherwise making them available to retail investors in the EEA has been or will be
prepared and therefore offering or selling the Notes or otherwise making them available to any retail
investor in the EEA may be unlawful under the PRIIPS Regulation.

UK PRIIPS/IMPORTANT — UK RETAIL INVESTORS - If the Pricing Supplement in respect of any
Program Securities includes a legend entitled ""Prohibition of Sales to UK Retail Investors", the
Program Securities are not intended to be offered, sold or otherwise made available to and should not
be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail investor in the United Kingdom (“UK?”). For
these purposes, a retail investor in the UK means a person who is one (or more) of:
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(A) a retail client as defined in point (8) of Article 2 of Regulation (EU) No 2017/565 as it forms
part of “retained EU law”, as defined in the EUWA; or

(B) a customer within the meaning of the provisions of the Financial Services and Markets Act
2000 (“FSMA”) and any rules or regulations made under the FSMA to implement Directive
(EU) 2016/97, where that customer would not qualify as a professional client, as defined in point
(8) of Article 2(1) of Regulation (EU) No 600/2014 as it forms part of “retained EU law”, as
defined in the EUWA; or

© not a qualified investor as defined in Article 2 of Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 as it forms part of
“retained EU law”, as defined in the EUWA.

Consequently, if the Pricing Supplement in respect of any Program Securities includes a legend entitled
“Prohibition of Sales to UK Retail Investors”, no key information document required by Regulation
(EU) No 1286/2014 as it forms part of “retained EU law”, as defined in the EUWA (the “UK PRIIPs
Regulation”) for offering or selling the Program Securities or otherwise making them available to retail
investors in the UK has been or will be prepared and therefore offering or selling the Program Securities
or otherwise making them available to any retail investor in the UK may be unlawful under the UK
PRIIPs Regulation.

The information in this Offering Circular (including any supplement) is subject to change.

Neither the delivery of this Offering Circular nor the offering, sale or delivery of any Program Securities will,
in any circumstances, create any implication that the information contained in this Offering Circular is true
subsequent to the date hereof or the date upon which this Offering Circular has been most recently amended
or supplemented or that there has been no adverse change in the financial situation of any of Morgan Stanley,
MSI plc, MSBV, MSFL, MSFII or MSESE since the date hereof or, as the case may be, the date upon which
this Offering Circular has been most recently amended or supplemented or the balance sheet date of the most
recent financial statements which have been incorporated into this Offering Circular by way of a supplement
to this Offering Circular, or that any other information supplied from time to time is correct at any time
subsequent to the date on which it is supplied or, if different, the date indicated in the document containing
the same. Investors should review, inter alia, the most recent financial statements of Morgan Stanley, MSI
plc, MSBV, MSFL, MSFII and/or MSESE (as applicable) when evaluating any Program Securities or an
investment therein (such financial statements shall not form a part of this Offering Circular unless they have
been expressly incorporated herein, including by way of a supplement to this Offering Circular).

Distribution

Each Issuer is offering the Program Securities on a continuing basis through the Distribution Agents, who
have agreed to use reasonable efforts to solicit offers to purchase the Program Securities. Each Issuer may also
sell Program Securities to the Distribution Agents as principal for their own accounts at a price to be agreed
upon at the time of sale. The Distribution Agents may resell any Program Securities they purchase as principal
at prevailing market prices, or at other prices, as they determine. Each Issuer or the Distribution Agents may
reject any offer to purchase Program Securities, in whole or in part. See "Subscription and Sale" and "Transfer
Restrictions" beginning on pages 886 and 902, respectively.

Compliance with all applicable laws

Each investor must comply with all applicable laws and regulations in each country or jurisdiction in or from
which the investor purchases, offers, sells or delivers the Program Securities or has in the investor's possession
or distributes this Offering Circular or any accompanying Pricing Supplement.

General restriction on distribution of this Offering Circular

The distribution of this Offering Circular and the offering, sale and delivery of Program Securities in certain
jurisdictions may be restricted by law. Persons into whose possession this Offering Circular comes are required
by Morgan Stanley, MSI plc, MSBV, MSFL, MSFII and MSESE to inform themselves about and to observe
those restrictions.
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No post-issuance information

Subject to the applicable Pricing Supplement, none of the Issuers, the Guarantor or the Distribution Agents
intends to provide post-issuance information in respect of the Program Securities unless required to do so by
applicable laws and regulations.

Read and construe with each supplement and document incorporated by reference

This Offering Circular does not constitute an offer of or an invitation to subscribe for or purchase any Program
Securities and should not be considered as a recommendation by any of Morgan Stanley, MSI plc, MSBV,
MSFL, MSFII or MSESE that any recipient of this Offering Circular should subscribe for or purchase any
Program Securities. Each recipient of this Offering Circular will be taken to have made its own investigation
and appraisal of the condition (financial or otherwise) of Morgan Stanley, MSI plc, MSBV, MSFL, MSFII or
MSESE (as applicable) and of the particular terms of any offered Program Securities.

General offer restriction

Neither this Offering Circular nor any Pricing Supplement may be used for the purpose of an offer or
solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction in which that offer or solicitation is not authorised or to any person
to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer or solicitation.

Important Swiss notice

The Program Securities do not qualify as units of a collective investment scheme according to the relevant
provisions of the Swiss Federal Act on Collective Investments Scheme (“CISA”), as amended, and are not
registered thereunder. Therefore, the Program Securities are neither governed by the CISA nor supervised by
the Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority. Accordingly, investors do not have the benefit of the
specific investor protection provided under the CISA. Investors should be aware that they are exposed to the
credit risk of the relevant Issuer and, if applicable, of the Guarantor.

Language

The language of this Offering Circular is English. Certain legislative references and technical terms have been
cited in their original language in order that the correct technical meaning may be ascribed to them under
applicable law.

Defined terms
See "Index of Defined Terms" at the end of this document.
CNY Program Securities

In this Offering Circular, references to "CNY Program Securities" are to Program Securities denominated in
CNY or Renminbi deliverable in Hong Kong, or such other CNYY Center as specified in the applicable Pricing
Supplement.

Stabilising legend

In connection with the issue of any tranche of Program Securities under the Program, any Distribution
Agent or any other agent specified for that purpose in the applicable Pricing Supplement as the
stabilising manager (or any person acting for the stabilising manager) may over allot or effect
transactions with a view to supporting the market price of any of the Program Securities at a level
higher than that which might otherwise prevail for a limited period. However, there is no assurance
that the stabilising manager (or any agent of the stabilising manager) will undertake stabilising action.
Any stabilising action may begin on or after the date on which adequate public disclosure of the terms
of the offer of the relevant tranche of Program Securities is made and, if commenced, may be
discontinued at any time, but must be brought to an end no later than the earlier of 30 days after the
issue date of the relevant tranche of Program Securities and 60 days after the date of the allotment of
the relevant tranche of Program Securities. Any stabilising action or over allotment must be conducted
by the stabilising manager (or any person acting for the stabilising manager) in accordance with all
applicable laws and rules.
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Overview

OVERVIEW

This overview must be read as an introduction to the Offering Circular relating to the Program Securities.
Any decision to invest in any Program Securities should be based on a consideration of the Offering Circular
as a whole, including the documents incorporated by reference.

For SIX Exchange Regulation purposes: This overview does not purport to be complete and is taken from,
and is qualified in its entirety by, the remainder of this Offering Circular and, in relation to the terms and
conditions of any Program Securities, the relevant Pricing Supplement. Investors are required to base their
investment decision on the information in this Offering Circular in its entirety and not on this overview.
Liability for this overview is limited to cases where the information contained herein is misleading,
inaccurate or inconsistent when read together with the other parts of this Offering Circular.

Words and expressions defined in the "Terms and Conditions of the English Law Notes" below or elsewhere
in this Offering Circular have the same meanings in this overview.

THE ISSUERS AND THE GUARANTOR

Legal name and
commercial name of
the Issuers:

Domicile and legal
form of the Issuers,
the legislation under
which the Issuers
operate and its
country of
incorporation:

Morgan Stanley ("Morgan Stanley")

Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc ("MSI plc")
Morgan Stanley B.V. ("MSBV")

Morgan Stanley Finance LLC ("MSFL")

Morgan Stanley Finance II Ltd (“MSFI1”)

Morgan Stanley Europe SE (“MSESE”)

Morgan Stanley was incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware. As
a financial holding company, it is regulated by the Board of Governors of the
Federal Reserve System (the "Federal Reserve") under the Bank Holding
Company Act of 1956, as amended (the "BHC Act"). As a major financial
services firm, Morgan Stanley is subject to extensive regulation by U.S.
federal and state regulatory agencies and securities exchanges and by
regulators and exchanges in each of the major markets where it conducts its
business. Morgan Stanley has its registered office at The Corporation Trust
Center, 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington, Delaware 19801, U.S.A., and its
principal executive office at 1585 Broadway, New York, NY 10036, U.S.A.

MSI plc was incorporated in England and Wales on 28 October 1986. MSI plc
was incorporated as a company limited by shares under the Companies Act
1985 and operates under the UK Companies Act 2006. MSI plc was re-
registered as a public limited company on 13 April 2007. MSI plc's registered
office is at 25 Cabot Square, Canary Wharf, London E14 4QA.

MSBYV was incorporated as a private company with limited liability (besloten
vennootschap met beperkte aansprakelijkheid) under the laws of The
Netherlands on 6 September 2001 for an unlimited duration. MSBV s
registered at the commercial register of the Chamber of Commerce (Kamer
van Koophandel). It has its corporate seat at Amsterdam, The Netherlands and
its offices are located at Luna Arena, Herikerbergweg 238, 1101 CM,
Amsterdam, Zuidoost, The Netherlands. MSBV is incorporated under, and
subject to, the laws of The Netherlands.

MSFL is a wholly-owned finance subsidiary of Morgan Stanley and a limited
liability company formed pursuant to the Delaware Limited Liability
Company Act on 27 March 2002 for an unlimited duration under the name of
Morgan Stanley Tower LLC. On 8 January 2016 Morgan Stanley Tower LLC
changed its name to Morgan Stanley Finance, LLC. On 12 January 2016
Morgan Stanley Finance, LLC changed its name to Morgan Stanley Finance
LLC. MSFL’S registered address is at Corporation Trust Center, 1209 Orange
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The group and the
Issuers' position
within the group:

Street, Wilmington, Delaware 19801. MSFL’s principal place of business is
1585 Broadway, New York, NY 10036. MSFL is formed under, and subject
to, the laws of the state of Delaware, United States.

MSFII is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Morgan Stanley. MSFII is
incorporated as a public company with limited liability under the laws of The
Bailiwick of Jersey on 24 September 1984 for an unlimited duration. MSFII
is registered under the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991 under number 35857. Its
registered office and principal place of business is located at 47 Esplanade, St
Helier, Jersey JE1 OBD, Channel Islands. MSFII's telephone number is +44
(0)1534 835 600. MSFII is subject to the laws of The Bailiwick of Jersey.

For U.S. federal income tax purposes, MSFII is disregarded as an entity
separate from Morgan Stanley. Therefore, unless otherwise indicated in an
applicable Pricing Supplement, a Note issued by MSFII will be treated as if it
were a Note issued by Morgan Stanley for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

MSESE was incorporated as a stock corporation under European Law
(European Company (Societas Europaea)) on 26 May 2017 and is based in
Frankfurt am Main with its registered office located at Grosse Gallusstrasse
18, 60312 Frankfurt am Main, Germany. MSESE is registered in the
Commercial Register B of the Local Court in Frankfurt am Main under
number HRB 109880.

Morgan Stanley is the ultimate parent undertaking of the group comprising
Morgan Stanley and its consolidated subsidiaries (the "Morgan Stanley
Group").

MSI plc forms part of a group of companies including MSI plc and all of its
subsidiary and associated undertakings ("MSI plc Group™). MSI plc's
ultimate UK parent undertaking is Morgan Stanley International Limited and
MSI plc's ultimate parent and controlling entity is Morgan Stanley.

MSBYV has no subsidiaries. It is ultimately controlled by Morgan Stanley.

MSFL has no subsidiaries. It is a wholly-owned finance subsidiary of Morgan
Stanley.

MSFII has no subsidiaries. It is awholly-owned subsidiary of Morgan Stanley.

Morgan Stanley Europe Holding SE is the sole shareholder of MSESE.
MSESE is the sole shareholder of Morgan Stanley Bank AG.
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Selected Historical
Key Financial
Information:

Selected key financial information relating to Morgan Stanley:

Consolidated

At 31 March (unaudited)

S fEi ial At 31 At 31
Pgastietzgﬁn(tﬁ s g;r:znma December December
millions) 2022 2021 2023 2022
Total assets 1,180,231 1,188,140 1,199,904 1,222,233
Total liabilities and 1,180,231 1,188,140 1,199,904 1,222,233
equity

Three months ended 31
Consolidated Income March (unaudited)
Statements (U.S.$ in 2022 2021
millions)

2023 2022
Net revenues 53,668 59,755 14,517 14,801
Income before 14,089 19,668 3,760 4,588
provision for income
taxes
Net income 11,179 15,120 3,033 3,715
Selected key financial information relating to MSI plc:

Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position (in U.S. $ 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021
millions)
Total assets 560,391 567,186
Total liabilities and equity 560,391 567186
Net trading income 4,265 4,996
Profit before tax 1,717 1,940
Profit for the year 1,396 1,351
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Selected key financial information relating to MSBV:

Statement of financial position

(in EUR '000) 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021
Total assets 10,444,666 9,793,864
Total liabilities and equity 10,444,666 9,793,864
Statement of comprehensive

income (in EUR '000) 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021
Net trading expense (1,393,424) (79,521)
Net income on other_ financial 1,393.424 79.521
instruments held at fair value

Profit before income tax 1,776 2,825
Proflt and total comprehensive 1318 2129
income for the year

Selected key financial information relating to MSFL.:

S_tatement 01_‘ F_manual Position 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021
(in U.S. $ millions)

Net income N -
Total assets 37,223 29,817
Total liabilities 36.959 30226

Selected key financial information relating to MSFII:

Statement of Financial Position (in

U.S. $ thousands) 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021
Net income (79) 4
Total assets 381,062 313,895
Total liabilities 370,662 313,416

Selected key financial information relating to MSESE:
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The Issuers' principal
activities:

The Group:

SIX Exchange
Regulation Ltd.:

Statement of Financial Position (in 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021
us. $)

Net income 42 22
Total assets 68,914 40,460
Total liabilities and equity capital 68,914 40,460

Morgan Stanley, a financial holding company, is a global financial services
firm that, through its subsidiaries and affiliates, advises, originates, trades,
manages and distributes capital for, governments, institutions and individuals.
Morgan Stanley maintains significant market positions in each of its business
segments — Institutional Securities, Wealth Management and Investment
Management.

The principal activity of the MSI plc Group is the provision of financial
services to corporations, governments and financial institutions. MSI plc
operates globally. It operates branches in the Dubai International Financial
Centre, South Korea, the Netherlands, Poland, the Qatar Financial Centre and
Switzerland.

MSBV's principal activity is the issuance of financial instruments and the
hedging of obligations arising pursuant to such issuances.

MSFL’s principal activity is the issuance of securities.
MSFII’s principal activity is the issuance of securities.

MSESE’s principal activity is the operation of banking activities and the
provision of financial services through the business units Institutional Equities
Division, Fixed Income Division, Investment Banking Division and Real
Assets to a client base mainly in the European Economic Area consisting of
corporations, governments, and financial institutions. MSESE operates branch
offices in France, Italy, the Netherlands, Sweden, Spain, and Poland.

MSI plc is wholly and directly owned by Morgan Stanley Investments UK and
is ultimately controlled by Morgan Stanley.

MSBYV is ultimately controlled by Morgan Stanley.

MSFL has no subsidiaries. It is a wholly-owned finance subsidiary of Morgan
Stanley.

MSFII has no subsidiaries. It is a wholly-owned finance subsidiary of Morgan
Stanley.

Morgan Stanley Europe Holding SE is the sole shareholder of MSESE.
MSESE is the sole shareholder of Morgan Stanley Bank AG.

This Offering Circular has been approved on 26 June 2023 as an offering
circular by SIX Exchange Regulation Ltd in its capacity as the Swiss review
body on the date mentioned.

The key information relating to the Program Securities and specific terms and
conditions of the Program Securities as well as information regarding the
public offer and admission to trading of the Program Securities are set out in
the Pricing Supplement in relation to the applicable Program Securities which
supplements the information comprised in this Offering Circular.
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The Pricing Supplement must be published and filed with the Swiss review
body as soon as possible after the final information is available; in the case of
an admission to trading, this shall be by no later than the time that the Program
Securities in question are admitted to trading, published and filed with the
Swiss review body.

Risks

The following is a summary only and must be read in conjunction with the section entitled "Risk Factors"
in the Registration Document dated 9 December 2022 (as supplemented) which is incorporated by reference
into this Offering Circular.

Key Risks Specificto  The following key risks affect Morgan Stanley and, since Morgan Stanley is
the Issuers and the the ultimate holding company of MSI plc, MSBV, MSFL, MSFII and MSESE,
Guarantor: also impact MSI plc, MSBV, MSFL, MSFII and MSESE:

Market Risk: Morgan Stanley’s results of operations may be materially
affected by market fluctuations and by global financial market and economic
conditions and other factors. Holding large and concentrated positions may
expose Morgan Stanley to losses. These factors may result in losses for a
position or portfolio owned by Morgan Stanley.

Credit Risk: Morgan Stanley is exposed to the risk that third-parties that are
indebted to it will not perform their obligations, as well as that a default by a
large financial institution could adversely affect financial markets. Such
factors give rise to the risk of loss arising when a borrower, counterparty or
issuer does not meet its financial obligations to Morgan Stanley.

Operational Risk: Morgan Stanley is subject to the risk of loss, or of damage
to its reputation, resulting from inadequate or failed processes or systems,
from human factors or from external events (e.g. cyber attacks or third party
vulnerabilities) that may manifest as, for example, loss of information,
business disruption, theft and fraud, legal and compliance risks, or damage to
physical assets. Morgan Stanley may incur operational risk across the full
scope of its business activities, including revenue-generating activities and
support and control groups (e.g. information technology and trade processing).
A cyber-attack, information or security breach or a technology failure of
Morgan Stanley or a third party could adversely affect Morgan Stanley’s
ability to conduct its business, manage its exposure to risk or result in
disclosure or misuse of confidential or proprietary information and otherwise
adversely impact its results of operations, liquidity and financial condition, as
well as cause reputational harm.

Liquidity Risk: Liquidity is essential to Morgan Stanley's businesses and
Morgan Stanley relies on external sources to finance a significant portion of
its operations. Morgan Stanley's borrowing costs and access to the debt capital
markets depend on its credit ratings. Morgan Stanley is a holding company,
has no operations and depends on dividends, distributions and other payments
from its subsidiaries to fund dividend payments and to fund all payments on
its obligations, including debt obligations. Further, Morgan Stanley's liquidity
and financial condition have in the past been, and in the future could be,
adversely affected by U.S. and international markets and economic conditions.
As a result of the foregoing, there is a risk that Morgan Stanley will be unable
to finance its operations due to a loss of access to the capital markets or
difficulty in liquidating its assets. Additionally, liquidity risk encompasses
Morgan Stanley’s ability (or perceived ability) to meet its financial obligations
without experiencing significant business disruption or reputational damage
that may threaten its viability as a going concern, as well as the associated
funding risks triggered by the market or idiosyncratic stress events that may
negatively affect its liquidity or may impact its ability to raise new funding.
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Legal, Regulatory and Compliance Risk: Morgan Stanley is subject to the
risk of legal or regulatory sanctions, material financial loss including fines,
penalties, judgments, damages and/or settlements, limitations on its business
or loss to reputation it may suffer as a result of its failure to comply with laws,
regulations, rules, related self-regulatory organization standards and codes of
conduct applicable to its business activities. Morgan Stanley is also subject to
contractual and commercial risk, such as the risk that a counterparty's
performance obligations will be unenforceable. Additionally, Morgan Stanley
is subject to anti-money laundering, anti-corruption and terrorist financing
rules and regulations.

Risk Management: Morgan Stanley's risk management strategies, models and
processes may not be fully effective in mitigating its risk exposures in all
market environments or against all types of risk, which could result in
unexpected losses. Replacement of London Interbank Offered Rate and
replacement or reform of other interest rate benchmarks could adversely affect
Morgan Stanley’s business, financial condition and results of operations.

Competitive Environment: Morgan Stanley faces strong competition from
financial services firms and others, which could lead to pricing pressures that
could materially adversely affect its revenues and profitability. Automated
trading markets and the introduction and application of new technologies may
adversely affect Morgan Stanley's business and may increase competition.
Morgan Stanley's ability to retain and attract qualified employees is critical to
the success of its business and the failure to do so may materially adversely
affect its performance.

International Risk: Morgan Stanley is subject to numerous political,
economic, legal, tax, operational, franchise and other risks that are inherent in
operating in many countries, including risks of possible nationalization,
expropriation, price controls, capital controls, exchange controls, increased
taxes and levies, cybersecurity, data transfer, and outsourcing restrictions,
prohibitions on certain types of foreign and capital market activities,
limitations on cross-border listings and other restrictive governmental actions,
as well as the outbreak of hostilities or political and governmental instability,
including tensions between China and the U.S., which could adversely impact
its businesses in many ways.

Acquisition, Divestiture and Joint Venture Risk: Morgan Stanley may be
unable to fully capture the expected value from acquisitions, divestitures, joint
ventures, partnerships, minority stakes or strategic alliances, and certain
acquisitions may subject our business to new or increased risk.

Risk Relating to the Exercise of Resolution Measures Powers: The
application of regulatory requirements and strategies in the U.S. or other
jurisdictions to facilitate the orderly resolution of large financial institutions
may pose a greater risk of loss for Morgan Stanley’s security holders, and
subject Morgan Stanley to other restrictions.

All material assets of MSBV are obligations of (or securities issued by) one or
more Morgan Stanley Group companies. If any of these Morgan Stanley
Group companies incurs losses with respect to any of its activities (irrespective
of whether those activities relate to MSBV or not) the ability of such company
to fulfil its obligations to MSBV could be impaired, thereby exposing holders
of securities issued by MSBYV to a risk of loss.

MSFL has no independent operations beyond the issuance and administration
of its securities and is expected to have no independent assets available for
distributions to holders of MSFL Program Securities if they make claims in
respect of the Program Securities in a bankruptcy, resolution or similar
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proceeding. Accordingly, any recoveries by such holders will be limited to
those available under the related Guarantee by Morgan Stanley and that
Guarantee will rank pari passu with all other outstanding unsecured and
unsubordinated obligations of Morgan Stanley present and future, but, in the
event of insolvency, only to the extent permitted by laws affecting creditors'
rights. Holders will have recourse only to a single claim against Morgan
Stanley and its assets under the Guarantee. Holders of Program Securities
issued by MSFL should accordingly assume that in any such proceedings they
would not have any priority over and should be treated pari passu with the
claims of other unsecured, unsubordinated creditors of Morgan Stanley,
including holders of Morgan Stanley issued securities.

The existence of substantial inter-relationships (including the provision of
funding, capital, services and logistical support to or by MSI plc, as well as
common or shared business or operational platforms or systems, including
employees) between MSI plc and other Morgan Stanley Group companies
exposes MSI plc to the risk that, factors which could affect the business and
condition of Morgan Stanley or other companies in the Morgan Stanley Group
may also affect the business and condition of MSI plc. Further, Notes issued
by MSI plc will not be guaranteed by Morgan Stanley. The application of
regulatory requirements and strategies in the United Kingdom to facilitate the
orderly resolution of large financial institutions may pose a greater risk of loss
for the holders of securities issued by MSI plc.

MSFII has no independent operations beyond the issuance and administration
of its securities and is expected to have no independent assets available for
distributions to holders of MSFII Program Securities if they make claims in
respect of the Program Securities in a bankruptcy, resolution or similar
proceeding. Accordingly, any recoveries by such holders will be limited to
those available under the related Guarantee by Morgan Stanley and that
Guarantee will rank pari passu with all other outstanding unsecured and
unsubordinated obligations of Morgan Stanley present and future, but, in the
event of insolvency, only to the extent permitted by laws affecting creditors'
rights. Holders will have recourse only to a single claim against Morgan
Stanley and its assets under the Guarantee. Holders of Program Securities
issued by MSFII should accordingly assume that in any such proceedings they
would not have any priority over and should be treated pari passu with the
claims of other unsecured, unsubordinated creditors of Morgan Stanley,
including holders of Morgan Stanley issued securities.

MSESE is subject to European regulatory requirements and strategies to
facilitate the orderly resolution of large financial institutions (as transposed
into German law). These provisions may severely affect the rights of the
holders of Program Securities issued by MSESE in the event that the
conditions for resolution of MSESE are met. This may result in the loss of
their entire investment and could, before the conditions for resolution are met
(and resolution is initiated), adversely affect the market price of the relevant
Program Securities.

PROGRAM SECURITIES

Type: MSI plc, MSBV, MSFL and MSESE may offer from time to time Program Securities in the form of
Notes, Warrants and Certificates. Morgan Stanley may offer from time to time Program Securities in the
form of Notes and Certificates only. MSFII may offer from time to time Registered Notes governed by
English Law only.

Listing: Applications have been made for Program Securities (other than Series B Notes which will not be
listed) to be admitted to the Official List of Euronext Dublin and trading on its Global Exchange Market; to
be admitted to the Official List of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and trading on its Euro MTF Market;
and to be listed on the Global Market of the Gibraltar Stock Exchange. Program Securities may also be
unlisted or listed on another exchange, all as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.
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No registration: The Program Securities, any interest therein and any Guarantee in respect thereof, and the
securities to be delivered on exercise or redemption of the Program Securities (if any), have not been and
will not be registered under the Securities Act or the securities laws of any state or other jurisdiction of the
United States and may not be offered, sold, pledged, assigned, delivered or otherwise transferred, exercised
or redeemed at any time, directly or indirectly, within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit
of, U.S. Persons (as defined in Regulation S under the Securities Act), unless they are sold in reliance on
Rule 144A under the Securities Act, in addition to Regulation S, as further described herein. See “Program
Securities in Global Form”. Hedging transactions involving any "equity securities" of "domestic issuers"
(as such terms are defined in the Securities Act and regulations thereunder) may only be conducted in
accordance with the Securities Act. The Program Securities are subject to transfer restrictions. See
"Subscription and Sale" and “Transfer Restrictions”.

Structural subordination; Morgan Stanley’s access to assets held by subsidiaries may be restricted: The
securities issued by Morgan Stanley, including the guarantees of the MSBV, MSFL and MSFII Program
Securities, are Morgan Stanley’s unsecured senior obligations, but Morgan Stanley’s assets consist
primarily of equity in, and receivables from, its subsidiaries. As a result, Morgan Stanley’s ability (i) to
make payments on its Notes and Certificates, (ii) to make payments with respect to its guarantee of Program
Securities issued by MSBV, MSFL and MSFII and (iii) to pay dividends on its preferred stock and common
stock, in each case depends upon its receipt of dividends, loan payments and other funds from its
subsidiaries. In addition, the direct creditors of any subsidiary will have a prior claim on the subsidiary’s
assets, if any, and Morgan Stanley’s rights and the rights of its creditors, including your rights as an owner
of Morgan Stanley’s Notes and Certificates or your rights under its guarantees of MSBV, MSFL and MSFII
Program Securities, will be subject to that prior claim, except to the extent that any claims Morgan Stanley
may have as a creditor of that subsidiary are paid. This subordination of parent company creditors to prior
claims of creditors of subsidiaries over the subsidiaries’ assets is referred to as structural subordination.

In addition, various statutes and regulations restrict some of Morgan Stanley’s subsidiaries from paying
dividends or making loans or advances to Morgan Stanley. These restrictions could prevent those
subsidiaries from paying the cash to Morgan Stanley that it needs in order to pay you. These restrictions
include:

e the net capital requirements under the Exchange Act, and the rules of some exchanges and other
regulatory bodies, which apply to some of Morgan Stanley’s principal subsidiaries, such as Morgan
Stanley & Co. LLC, MSI plc and MSESE, and

e banking regulations, which apply to Morgan Stanley Bank, N.A., a national bank, Morgan Stanley
Private Bank, National Association (formerly Morgan Stanley Trust FSB), a national bank, and other
bank subsidiaries of Morgan Stanley.

Total loss-absorbing capacity of New York Law Notes: Morgan Stanley intends that the New York Law
Notes will, when issued, constitute "loss-absorbing capacity” within the meaning of the final rules issued
by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System and, accordingly, will have only those provisions
described in this Offering Circular that will permit compliance thereof at such time of issuance. In this
respect, Morgan Stanley is a parent holding company and has no operations and depends on dividends,
distributions and other payments from its subsidiaries to fund its debt obligations (including New York Law
Notes). Under a support agreement that Morgan Stanley has entered with its material subsidiaries, upon the
occurrence of a resolution scenario, including a single-point-of-entry resolution strategy as contemplated in
its resolution plan, Morgan Stanley would be obligated to contribute or loan on a subordinated basis all of
its material assets, other than shares in its subsidiaries and certain intercompany payables, to provide capital
and liquidity, as applicable, to its material subsidiaries. That obligation will be secured, in accordance with
an amended and restated secured support agreement, on a senior basis by Morgan Stanley’s assets (other
than shares in its subsidiaries). As a result, claims of Morgan Stanley’s material subsidiaries against its
assets (other than shares in its subsidiaries) will be effectively senior to its unsecured obligations, including
New York Notes which would be at risk of absorbing Morgan Stanley’s and its subsidiaries’ losses.

Status of the MSI plc Program Securities; relationship with Morgan Stanley securities: The Program
Securities issued by MSI plc are its unsecured obligations and holders of these Program Securities are direct
creditors of MSI plc.

Status of the MSBV Program Securities; relationship with Morgan Stanley securities: The Program
Securities issued by MSBYV are its unsecured obligations and holders of these Program Securities are direct
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creditors of MSBV, as well as direct creditors of Morgan Stanley under the related guarantee. The Morgan
Stanley guarantee will rank pari passu with all other outstanding unsecured and unsubordinated obligations
of Morgan Stanley, present and future, but, in the event of insolvency, only to the extent permitted by laws
affecting creditors' rights.

Status of the MSFL Program Securities; relationship with Morgan Stanley securities: The Program
Securities issued by MSFL are its unsecured obligations and holders of these Program Securities are direct
creditors of MSFL, as well as direct creditors of Morgan Stanley under the related guarantee. As a finance
subsidiary, MSFL has no independent operations beyond the issuance and administration of its securities
and is expected to have no independent assets available for distributions to holders of MSFL Program
Securities if they make claims in respect of the securities in a bankruptcy, resolution or similar proceeding.
Accordingly, any recoveries by such holders will be limited to those available under the related guarantee
by Morgan Stanley and that guarantee will rank pari passu with all other outstanding unsecured and
unsubordinated obligations of Morgan Stanley, present and future, but, in the event of insolvency, only to
the extent permitted by laws affecting creditors' rights. Holders of Program Securities issued by MSFL
should accordingly assume that in any such proceedings they would not have any priority over and should
be treated pari passu with the claims of other unsecured, unsubordinated creditors of Morgan Stanley,
including holders of Morgan Stanley-issued securities.

Status of the MSFI1 Notes; relationship with Morgan Stanley securities: The Notes issued by MSFII are its
unsecured obligations and holders of these Notes are direct creditors of MSFII, as well as direct creditors of
Morgan Stanley under the related guarantee. MSFII has no independent operations beyond the issuance and
administration of its securities and is expected to have no independent assets available for distributions to
holders of MSFII Notes if they make claims in respect of the securities in a bankruptcy, resolution or similar
proceeding. Accordingly, any recoveries by such holders will be limited to those available under the related
guarantee by Morgan Stanley and that guarantee will rank pari passu with all other outstanding unsecured
and unsubordinated obligations of Morgan Stanley, present and future, but, in the event of insolvency, only
to the extent permitted by laws affecting creditors' rights. Holders of Notes issued by MSFII should
accordingly assume that in any such proceedings they would not have any priority over and should be treated
pari passu with the claims of other unsecured, unsubordinated creditors of Morgan Stanley, including
holders of Morgan Stanley-issued securities.

Status of the MSESE Program Securities; relationship with Morgan Stanley securities: The Program
Securities issued by MSESE are its senior unsecured obligations and holders of these Program Securities
are direct creditors of MSESE.

Guarantee: Payment of all amounts due in respect of Program Securities issued by MSBV will, unless
specified otherwise in the applicable Pricing Supplement, be guaranteed by Morgan Stanley. Payment of all
amounts in respect of Program Securities issued by MSFL will be guaranteed by Morgan Stanley. Payment
of all amounts due in respect of Program Securities issued by MSFII will be guaranteed by Morgan Stanley.
Payment of all amounts due in respect of Program Securities issued by MSI plc and MSESE will not be
guaranteed by Morgan Stanley, or by any other guarantor.

Distribution: Each Issuer is offering Program Securities on a continuing basis through the Distribution
Agents, who have agreed to use reasonable efforts to solicit offers to purchase the same. Each Issuer may
also sell Program Securities to the Distribution Agents as principal for their own accounts at prices agreed
upon at the time of sale. The Distribution Agents may resell Program Securities purchased as principal.
Each Issuer or the Distribution Agents may reject any offer to purchase Program Securities.

Form: Each Issuer may issue Program Securities in registered form. Program Securities in registered form
may be in either global registered form or individual registered form. MSBV and MSI plc may also issue
Nordic Notes or Nordic Securities in dematerialised form.

U.S. withholding requirement: In order to avoid certain U.S. withholding taxes on interest payments by
Morgan Stanley, MSFL or MSFII on a Program Security, a non-US beneficial owner is required to comply
with certain tax identification and certification rules generally by furnishing the appropriate IRS Form W-
8BEN or W-8BEN-E certifying (i) that it is not a U.S. person, (ii) in the case of an entity, that it is exempt
from FATCA withholding, and (iii) in the case of certain Program Securities, that it is eligible for a certain
exemption under an applicable tax treaty as described below under "United States Federal Taxation". U.S.
withholding may also apply with respect to certain Program Securities linked to U.S. equities or certain
indices issued by any Issuer. U.S. backup withholding may apply to payments generally unless an IRS Form

10



Overview

W-9 is furnished or an exemption is otherwise established. Unless specified otherwise in an applicable
Pricing Supplement, none of the Issuers or any intermediary will be required to pay additional amounts with
respect to any amount withheld.

Denomination of Notes: Notes may be denominated or payable in any currency, be issued at any price and
have any maturity, in each case subject to all applicable consents being obtained and compliance with
applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

Redemption of Notes: Notes may be redeemed at par or at such other redemption amount (detailed in a
formula or otherwise) or by delivery of securities of an issuer not affiliated with Morgan Stanley, as
specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

Early redemption: Early redemption or termination will be permitted for taxation reasons, or in certain
circumstances following the occurrence of an Administrator/Benchmark Event or relevant adjustment
events applicable to the Program Securities, but will otherwise be permitted only to the extent specified in
the applicable Pricing Supplement and the relevant Belgian Supplemental Conditions (Notes) or Belgian
Supplemental Conditions (Securities) (as applicable) as being applicable in respect of a series of Program
Securities in the applicable Pricing Supplement or as may be required in the event of a default by the Issuer.
In the case of certain Notes, if such Notes are redeemed early for any reason, the amount payable by the
Issuer may be less than the amount that would have been paid had the Notes been redeemed at maturity. In
the event of default by the Issuer, the investor would have an unsecured claim against the Issuer or, if
applicable, the Guarantor.

Interest on Notes: Notes may be interest bearing or non-interest bearing. Interest (if any) may accrue at a
fixed rate or a floating rate, or a rate which varies during the lifetime of the relevant Series.

Exercise of Warrants and Certificates: Upon exercise, Warrants and Certificates may entitle the holder to
receive from the relevant Issuer a Cash Settlement Amount, or may entitle the holder to receive delivery of
or to deliver an amount of securities (each as specified or calculated in accordance with the applicable
Pricing Supplement), and may be American, European or Bermudan Style Securities, as specified in the
applicable Pricing Supplement.

Governing law: Notes may be governed by New York law or English law, as specified in the applicable
Pricing Supplement. Warrants and Certificates will be governed by English law.

Use of proceeds: The net proceeds from the sale of Program Securities by Morgan Stanley, MSI plc, MSBV
or MSESE will be used by the relevant Issuer for general corporate purposes, in connection with hedging
its obligations under the Program Securities, or both.

Unless specified otherwise in the applicable Pricing Supplement, each of MSFL and MSFII intends to lend
the net proceeds from the sale of the Program Securities it offers to Morgan Stanley. Unless specified
otherwise in the applicable Pricing Supplement, Morgan Stanley intends to use the proceeds from such loans
for general corporate purposes.

Debt or derivative securities: Program Securities may not be ordinary debt securities and the return and/or
interest and/or principal may be linked to the performance of, amongst other things, one or more of an index
or formula, changes in the prices of securities, funds, exchange-traded notes, commaodities or futures
contracts, movements in currency exchange rates or benchmark rates and to the credit of one or more entities
not affiliated with the Issuers (such items are referred to in this Offering Circular in relation to Notes as the
"Relevant Underlying" and in relation to Certificates and Warrants, as the "Relevant Factor™). The return
on such Program Securities may be influenced by unpredictable factors, including the value of the
underlying or factor which may in turn be linked to the creditworthiness of an underlying entity, market
prices of underlying, market volatility, interest rates, currency exchange rates, inflation, the length of time
until maturity and other economic, financial, environmental, legal, regulatory, social and political influences
which may not be within the Issuers' control. Where Program Securities are linked to emerging market
countries or currencies, the impact of the factors outlined previously are magnified. These factors may
cause a partial or total loss of an investor's investment in Program Securities and may involve the
investor receiving a return that they might not have anticipated when purchasing Program Securities.

Credit risk: An investment in the Program Securities bears the risk that the relevant Issuer is not able to
fulfil its obligations in respect of such Program Securities.
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No rights in the underlying: Investment in Program Securities may carry similar risks to a direct investment
in the Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor; however investors will not have legal or beneficial
ownership in such underlying.

Illiquid secondary market: Investment in Program Securities may be illiquid and investors should be
prepared to hold Program Securities to maturity or expiration as there may be no secondary market therefor.

Conflicts of interest: Investors should be aware of potential conflicts of interest with the Determination
Agent. For further information, see “Conflicts of Interest” beginning on page 61.

Stamp duty and tax generally: There may be stamp duty implications for investors in the Warrants or
Certificates. Investors should seek professional tax advice in relation to the tax implications to them of an
investment in Program Securities.

Consult professional advisors: Prospective investors should consult with their own professional advisors if
they consider it necessary before purchasing any Program Securities.

Where to obtain documents: Certain documents relating to the Program Securities will be available at The
Bank of New York Mellon, One Canada Square, London E14 5AL and also at the principal executive offices
of Morgan Stanley and MSFL and the registered offices of MSIP, MSFII, MSBV and MSESE.
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RISK FACTORS RELATING TO THE PROGRAM SECURITIES

Prospective investors should read the entire Offering Circular (and where appropriate, any applicable
Pricing Supplement). Words and expressions defined elsewhere in this Offering Circular have the same
meanings in this section.

Prospective investors should consider the section entitled "Risk Factors" at pages 1 to 19 in the Registration
Document dated 9 December 2022 (as supplemented), in respect of Morgan Stanley, MSI plc, MSBV and
MSFL referred to in the section entitled "Incorporation by Reference" in this Offering Circular and the
factors described below and consult with their own professional advisors if they consider it necessary.
Prospective investors should note that the risks described below are not the only risks the Issuers and/or the
Guarantor face. Each of the Issuers and the Guarantor believe that such factors represent the principal risks
inherent in investing in Program Securities issued under the Program but the inability of an Issuer and/or
the Guarantor, if applicable, to pay interest, principal or other amounts on or in connection with any Program
Securities may occur for other reasons, which may not be considered significant risks by such Issuer based
on information currently available to it or which it may not currently be able to anticipate.

This section describes generally the most significant risks of investing in Program Securities linked to
securities, indices or funds, to futures contracts, to commodity prices, to currency prices, to benchmark rates,
to the credit of one or more entities not affiliated with the Issuers or to other assets. Each investor should
carefully consider whether the Program Securities, as described herein and in the applicable Pricing
Supplement, are suited to its particular circumstances before deciding to purchase any Program Securities.

Risk Factors relating to the Issuers and Guarantor
Credit risk

Holders of Program Securities issued by Morgan Stanley, MSI plc or MSESE bear the credit risk of the
relevant Issuer, that is the risk that the relevant Issuer is not able to meet its obligations under such Program
Securities, irrespective of whether such Program Securities are referred to as capital or principal protected
or how any principal, interest or other payments under such Program Securities are to be calculated. Holders
of Program Securities issued by MSBV, MSFL or MSFII bear the credit risk of the relevant Issuer and/or
the Guarantor, that is the risk that the relevant Issuer and/or the Guarantor is not able to meet its obligations
under such Program Securities, irrespective of whether such Program Securities are referred to as capital or
principal protected or how any principal, interest or other payments under such Program Securities are to
be calculated. If the Issuer and/or the Guarantor is not able to meet its obligations under the Program
Securities, then that would have a significant negative impact on the investor’s return on the Program
Securities and an investor may lose up to its entire investment.

The Issuer or the Guarantor may be substituted without the consent of the holders of Program Securities
and substitution may result in adverse U.S. federal income tax consequences to investors

The Issuer or the Guarantor (as applicable) may, without the consent of the holders of Program Securities
and provided certain conditions are satisfied, agree (i) to substitute Morgan Stanley (in the case of MSBV
Program Securities, MSFL Program Securities, MSI plc Program Securities, MSFII Program Securities and
MSESE Program Securities only) or a subsidiary of Morgan Stanley in place of the Issuer, or (ii) if
“Supplementary Provisions for Belgian Notes” or “Supplementary Provisions for Belgian Securities (as
applicable) is specified as not applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement, substitute a non-Morgan
Stanley Group entity in place of the Issuer or the Guarantor (if applicable) (provided that such non-Morgan
Stanley Group entity is of at least the equivalent creditworthiness to the Issuer or Guarantor, as applicable,
and provided further, in the case of Notes, that Condition 41.2 (Substitution of Issuer or Guarantor with non
Morgan Stanley Group entities) is specified as applicable in the relevant Pricing Supplement). Any such
substitution may result in a reduction in the value of the Program Securities. Additionally, if the Issuer
substitutes an entity in place of the Issuer, the tax consequences (including the withholding tax
consequences) of holding the Program Securities may change. Except as provided in "Description of New
York Law Notes — Payment of Additional Amounts" or Condition 28.1 (Additional Amounts) of the Terms
and Conditions of the English Law Notes, as applicable, if withholding is required on the Program
Securities, no additional amounts will be required to be paid. A substitution of the Issuer may result in a
deemed taxable exchange of the Notes for U.S. federal income tax purposes, in which event gain or loss
may be required to be recognized (and in the case of Notes treated as debt for U.S. federal income tax
purposes, the Notes may be subject to different interest accrual requirements after the substitution,
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depending on the facts at the time of substitution). Investors should consult their tax advisors regarding the
U.S. tax consequences of any substitution.

As a finance subsidiary, MSFL has no independent operations and is expected to have no independent
assets

The principal risks with respect to Morgan Stanley will also represent the principal risks with respect to
MSFL, either as an individual entity or as part of the Morgan Stanley Group. MSFL has no independent
operations beyond the issuance and administration of its securities and is expected to have no independent
assets available for distributions to holders of MSFL securities if they make claims in respect of the
securities in a bankruptcy, resolution or similar proceeding. Accordingly, any recoveries by such holders
will be limited to those available under the related guarantee by Morgan Stanley and that guarantee will
rank pari passu with all other outstanding unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of Morgan Stanley
present and future, but, in the event of insolvency, only to the extent permitted by laws affecting creditors’
rights. Holders will have recourse only to a single claim against Morgan Stanley and its assets under the
guarantee. Holders of securities issued by MSFL should accordingly assume that in any such proceedings
they would not have any priority over and should be treated pari passu with the claims of other unsecured,
unsubordinated creditors of Morgan Stanley, including holders of Morgan Stanley-issued securities.

MSFII has no independent operations and is expected to have no independent assets

The principal risks with respect to Morgan Stanley will also represent the principal risks with respect to
MSFII, either as an individual entity or as part of the Morgan Stanley Group.

MSFII has no independent operations beyond the issuance and administration of its securities and is
expected to have no independent assets available for distributions to holders of MSFII securities if they
make claims in respect of the securities in a bankruptcy, resolution or similar proceeding. Accordingly, any
recoveries by such holders will be limited to those available under the related guarantee by Morgan Stanley
and that guarantee will rank pari passu with all other outstanding unsecured and unsubordinated obligations
of Morgan Stanley present and future, but, in the event of insolvency, only to the extent permitted by laws
affecting creditors' rights. Holders will have recourse only to a single claim against Morgan Stanley and its
assets under the guarantee. Holders of MSFII securites should accordingly assume that in any such
proceedings they would not have any priority over and should be treated pari passu with the claims of other
unsecured, unsubordinated creditors of Morgan Stanley, including holders of Morgan Stanley-issued
securities.

Risks in relation to the exercise of potential resolution powers under UK law

MSI plc, as an investment firm for the purposes of the Banking Act 2009 (the "Banking Act"), is subject to
provisions of that Act which give wide powers in respect of UK banks and investment firms (such as MSI
plc) to HM Treasury, the Bank of England, the Prudential Regulation Authority and the United Kingdom
Financial Conduct Authority ("FCA™) (each a "relevant UK Regulatory Authority") in circumstances
where the relevant UK bank or investment firm (a "relevant financial institution™) is failing or is likely to
fail. The Banking Act implemented the provisions of Directive 2014/59/EU (the "Bank Recovery and
Resolution Directive" or "BRRD").

These powers include powers to: (a) transfer all or some of the liability in respect of the securities issued by
a relevant financial institution, or all or some of the property, rights and liabilities of a relevant financial
institution (which could include instruments issued by MSI plc), to a commercial purchaser or, in the case
of securities, to HM Treasury or an HM Treasury nominee, or, in the case of property, rights or liabilities,
to an entity owned by the Bank of England; (b) override any default provisions in contracts or other
agreements, including provisions that would otherwise allow a party to terminate a contract or accelerate
the payment of an obligation; (c) commence certain insolvency procedures in relation to a relevant financial
institution; and (d) override, vary or impose contractual obligations, for reasonable consideration, between
a relevant financial institution and its parent, in order to enable any transferee or successor of the relevant
financial institution to operate effectively. The Banking Act also gives power to HM Treasury to make
further amendments to the law for the purpose of enabling it to use the special resolution regime powers
effectively, potentially with retrospective effect.

By reason of its group relationship with certain other Morgan Stanley Group companies (including
companies incorporated outside the UK) which are banks, investment firms or third—country institutions for
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the purposes of the Banking Act, MSI plc is a banking group company within the meaning of the Banking
Act. Accordingly, the relevant UK Regulatory Authority can exercise substantially similar special resolution
powers in respect of MSI plc in its capacity as a banking group company where the Prudential Regulation
Authority or third country authority having jurisdiction over the relevant Morgan Stanley Group company
is satisfied that such Morgan Stanley Group company meets the relevant conditions for resolution action
(including that it is failing or likely to fail, that it is not reasonably likely that other measures would prevent
its failure, and that it is in the public interest to exercise those powers) or that it satisfies an equivalent test
in the relevant jurisdiction (irrespective of whether at that time MSI plc is failing or likely to fail).
Additionally, where a relevant third country Morgan Stanley Group company becomes subject to resolution
or similar measures, the relevant UK Regulatory Authority may recognise the application of some of those
measures to MSI plc (irrespective of whether at that time MSI plc is failing or likely to fail).

The powers granted to the relevant UK Regulatory Authority include (but are not limited to) a "bail-in"
power.

The "bail-in" power gives the relevant UK Regulatory Authority the power, in relation to a failing relevant
financial institution or a banking group company in respect of a bank, investment firm or third-country
institution (whether or not incorporated in the UK) which is failing or likely to fail, to cancel all or a portion
of certain of its unsecured liabilities and/or to convert certain of its liabilities into another security, including
ordinary shares of the surviving entity, if any. Under the Banking Act, such power could be utilised in
relation to MSI plc were it to be failing or likely to fail, or were a bank, investment firm or third-country
institution (whether or not incorporated in the UK) in respect of which MSI plc is a banking group company
to be failing or likely to fail. Were such power to be utilised in relation to MSI plc, it could be utilised in
relation to securities issued by MSI plc.

The Banking Act requires the relevant UK Regulatory Authority to apply the "bail-in" power in accordance
with a specified preference order which differs from the ordinary insolvency order. In particular, the relevant
UK Regulatory Authority must write-down or convert debts in the following order: (i) additional tier 1, (ii)
tier 2, (iii) other subordinated claims and (iv) eligible senior claims.

Although the exercise of the bail-in power under the Banking Act is subject to certain pre-conditions, there
remains uncertainty regarding the specific factors (including, but not limited to, factors outside the control
of MSI plc or not directly related to MSI plc) which the relevant UK Regulatory Authority would consider
in deciding whether to exercise such power with respect to MSI plc and its securities or other
liabilities. Moreover, as the relevant UK Regulatory Authority may have considerable discretion in relation
to how and when it may exercise such power, holders of securities issued by MSI plc may not be able to
refer to publicly available criteria in order to anticipate a potential exercise of such power and consequently
its potential effect on MSI plc and securities issued by MSI plc.

As well as a "bail-in" power, the powers of the relevant UK Regulatory Authority under the Banking Act
include broad powers to (i) direct the sale of the relevant financial institution or the whole or part of its
business on commercial terms without requiring the consent of the shareholders or complying with the
procedural requirements that would otherwise apply, (ii) transfer all or part of the business of the relevant
financial institution to a "bridge institution" (an entity created for such purpose that is wholly or partially in
public control) and (iii) separate assets by transferring impaired or problem assets to one or more publicly
owned asset management vehicles to allow them to be managed with a view to maximising their value
through eventual sale or orderly wind-down (this can be used together with another resolution tool
only). The Bank of England has broad powers to make one or more share transfer instruments (in the case
of a transfer to a private sector purchaser described in (i) or a transfer to a "bridge institution" in the case of
(ii)) or one or more property transfer instruments (in all three cases). A transfer pursuant to a share transfer
instrument or a property transfer instrument will take effect despite any restriction arising by virtue of
contract or legislation or in any other way.

In addition, the Banking Act gives the relevant UK Regulatory Authority power to amend the maturity date
and/or any interest payment date of debt instruments or other eligible liabilities of the relevant financial
institution and/or impose a temporary suspension of payments and/or discontinue the listing and admission
to trading of debt instruments.

The Banking Act provides that HM Treasury must, in making regulations about compensation arrangements
in the case of the exercise of a bail-in power, have regard to the "no creditor worse off" principle, and HM
Treasury has made regulations governing compensation arrangements upon the exercise of a bail-in power.
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, the exercise by the relevant UK Regulatory Authority of any of the above
powers under the Banking Act (including especially the bail-in power) could lead to the holders of securities
issued by MSI plc losing some or all of their investment. Moreover, trading behaviour in relation to the
securities issued by MSI plc, including market prices and volatility, may be affected by the use or any
suggestion of the use of these powers and accordingly, in such circumstances, such securities are not
necessarily expected to follow the trading behaviour associated with other types of securities. There can be
no assurance that the taking of any actions under the Banking Act by the relevant UK Regulatory Authority
or the manner in which its powers under the Banking Act are exercised will not materially adversely affect
the rights of holders of securities issued by MSI plc, the market value of an investment in such securities
and/or MSI plc's ability to satisfy its obligations under such securities.

Risks in relation to the exercise of potential resolution powers under German/EU Law

MSESE is subject to the European Union recovery and resolution framework as set out in Regulation (EU)
No 806/2014 establishing uniform rules and a uniform procedure for the resolution of credit institutions and
certain investment firms in the framework of a single resolution mechanism (*SSM") and a single resolution
fund (the "SRM Regulation™) and Directive 2014/59/EU establishing a framework for the recovery and
resolution of credit institutions and investment firms. as amended (the "Bank Recovery and Resolution
Directive” or "BRRD", and as amended by Directive (EU) 2019/879, "BRRD I1"). BRRD was transposed
into national German law by the German Recovery and Resolution Act (Sanierungs- und
Abwicklungsgesetz, "SAG"). In November 2020 the Risk Reduction Act (Risikoreduzierungsgesetz) has
been adopted to implement BRRD Il in Germany, which led to, inter alia, amendments to the SAG.

BRRD (as transposed into national law) and the SRM Regulation give wide powers in respect of German
banks and investment firms (such as MSESE) to the Single Resolution Board, the European Central Bank
("ECB") and the German Federal Financial Supervisory Authority (Bundesanstalt fir
Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht, "BaFin"), as applicable, (each a "relevant Regulatory Authority") in
circumstances where the relevant German bank or investment firm (a "relevant financial institution") is
likely to fail.

These powers include, but are not limited to powers to: (a) transfer all or some of the liability in respect of
the securities issued by a relevant financial institution, or all or some of the property, rights and liabilities
of a relevant financial institution (which could include instruments issued by MSESE), to another entity; (b)
override any default provisions in contracts or other agreements, including provisions that would otherwise
allow a party to terminate a contract or accelerate the payment of an obligation; (c) commence certain
insolvency procedures in relation to a relevant financial institution; and (d) override, vary or impose
contractual obligations, for reasonable consideration, between a relevant financial institution and its parent,
in order to enable any transferee or successor of the relevant financial institution to operate effectively.

By reason of its group relationship with certain other Morgan Stanley Group companies (including
companies incorporated outside of Germany) which are banks, investment firms or third—country
institutions, MSESE is a banking group company (gruppenangehdériges Unternehmen) within the meaning
of the SAG. Accordingly, the relevant Regulatory Authority can exercise substantially similar special
resolution powers in respect of MSESE in its capacity as a banking group company where the BaFin or third
country authority having jurisdiction over the relevant Morgan Stanley Group company is satisfied that such
Morgan Stanley Group company meets the relevant conditions for resolution action (including that it is
failing or likely to fail, that it is not reasonably likely that other measures would prevent its failure, and that
it is in the public interest to exercise those powers) or that it satisfies an equivalent test in the relevant
jurisdiction (irrespective of whether at that time MSESE is failing or likely to fail). Additionally, where a
relevant third country Morgan Stanley Group company becomes subject to resolution or similar measures,
the relevant Regulatory Authority may recognise the application of some of those measures to MSESE
(irrespective of whether at that time MSESE is failing or likely to fail).

The powers granted to the relevant Regulatory Authority include (but are not limited to) a "bail-in" power.

The "bail-in" power gives the relevant Regulatory Authority the power, in relation to a relevant financial
institution or a banking group company in respect of a bank, investment firm or third-country institution
(whether or not incorporated in Germany) which is failing or likely to fail, of (a) cancellation of all or a
portion of certain of its unsecured liabilities, (b) permanent reduction of claims for payment of principal,
interest or other amounts under the Notes, including to zero, (c) conversion of certain of its liabilities into
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another security of the surviving entity, if any. Such power could be utilised in relation to MSESE were it
to be failing or likely to fail, or were a bank, investment firm or third-country institution (whether or not
incorporated in Germany) in respect of which MSESE is a banking group company to be failing or likely to
fail. Were such power to be utilised in relation to MSESE, it could be utilised in relation to securities issued
by MSESE.

The SRM and the provisions of the SAG, respectively, require the relevant Regulatory Authority to apply
the "bail-in" power in accordance with a specified preference order which differs from the ordinary
insolvency order. In particular, the relevant Regulatory Authority must write-down or convert debts in the
following order: (i) additional tier 1, (ii) tier 2, (iii) other subordinated claims and (iv) eligible senior claims.
Generally, no creditor should incur a greater loss than it would have incurred if the institution had been
wound up under regular insolvency proceedings (so called "no creditor worse-off" principle).

Although the exercise of the bail-in power under the SRM Regulation, the SAG and other applicable rules
and regulations is subject to certain pre-conditions, there remains uncertainty regarding the specific factors
(including, but not limited to, factors outside the control of MSESE or not directly related to MSESE) which
the relevant Regulatory Authority would consider in deciding whether to exercise such power with respect
to MSESE and its securities or other liabilities. Moreover, as the relevant Regulatory Authority may have
considerable discretion in relation to how and when it may exercise such power, holders of securities issued
by MSESE may not be able to refer to publicly available criteria in order to anticipate a potential exercise
of such power and consequently its potential effect on MSESE and securities issued by MSESE.

The holders of securities are bound by any resolution measure taken by the relevant Regulatory Authority.
Holders would have no claim or any other right against the MSESE, arising out of any resolution measure
against MSESE, to make payments under the Notes. This would occur if MSESE becomes, or is deemed by
the competent authority to have become, failing or likely to fail (in particular if it's continued existence is
at risk (Bestandsgefahrdung)) and certain other conditions are met (as set forth in the SRM Regulation, the
SAG and other applicable rules and regulations).

As well as a "bail-in" power, the powers of the relevant Regulatory Authority include broad powers to (i)
direct the sale of the relevant financial institution or the whole or part of its business on commercial terms
without requiring the consent of the shareholders or complying with the procedural requirements that would
otherwise apply, (ii) transfer all or part of the business of the relevant financial institution to a "bridge
institution" ((Briickeninstitut) an entity created for such purpose that is wholly or partially in public control)
and (iii) separate assets by transferring impaired or problem assets to one or more publicly owned asset
management vehicles (Vermdgensverwaltungsgesellschaft) to allow them to be managed with a view to
maximising their value through eventual sale or orderly wind-down (this can be used together with another
resolution tool only).

In addition, the SAG gives the relevant Regulatory Authority power to amend the maturity date and/or any
interest payment date of debt instruments or other eligible liabilities of the relevant financial institution
and/or impose a temporary suspension of payments and/or discontinue the listing and admission to trading
of debt instruments.

The SAG provides that BaFin must, in making regulations about compensation arrangements in the case of
the exercise of a bail-in power, have regard to the "no creditor worse off" principle, and BaFin has made
regulations governing compensation arrangements upon the exercise of a bail-in power. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, the exercise by the relevant Regulatory Authority of any of the above powers under the SRM
and the provisions of the SAG respectively (including especially the bail-in power) could lead to the holders
of securities issued by MSESE losing some or all of their investment. Moreover, trading behaviour in
relation to the securities issued by MSESE, including market prices and volatility, may be affected by the
use or any suggestion of the use of these powers and accordingly, in such circumstances, such securities are
not necessarily expected to follow the trading behaviour associated with other types of securities. There can
be no assurance that the taking of any actions under the SRM Regulation, the SAG or other applicable laws
and regulations by the relevant Regulatory Authority or the manner in which its powers under these laws
are exercised will not materially adversely affect the rights of holders of securities issued by MSESE, the
market value of an investment in such securities and/or MSESE's ability to satisfy its obligations under such
securities.
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U.S. Special Resolution Regime

In the event that MSFL, MSBV, MSI plc, MSFII, MSESE or Morgan Stanley becomes subject to any
proceedings under the Federal Deposit Insurance Act or Title Il of the Dodd Frank Wall Street Reform and
Consumer Protection Act (together the "U.S. Special Resolution Regime"), the relevant regulators have
various tools to deal with the entity. The U.S. requirements for the orderly resolution of MSFL, MSBV,
MSI plc, MSFII, MSESE or Morgan Stanley could require MSFL, MSBV, MSI plc, MSFII, MSESE or
Morgan Stanley to reorganise its business. This may involve the transfer of Program Securities issued or
guaranteed by MSFL, MSBV, MSI plc, MSFII, MSESE or Morgan Stanley to another entity or vary the
default provisions of such Program Securities. Prospective investors should therefore consider the relevant
risk factors contained in the Registration Document and the MS 10-K 2022 for further information on the
U.S. Special Resolution Regime. In particular and in respect of any Program Securities which are Warrants
(and the Securities Agency Agreement under which such Warrants are to be issued), such Warrants may be
subject to specific provisions of the U.S. Special Resolution Regime which may involve the transfer of the
obligations of the issuer and guarantor in respect of Warrants, the Securities Agency Agreement and the
Guarantee under the terms of such U.S. Special Resolution Regime. Notwithstanding that such Warrants
and the Securities Agency Agreement are governed by English law, Warrantholders in purchasing the
Warrants should be aware that such transfer pursuant to the U.S. Special Resolution Regime may take effect
as if the Warrants of the Securities Agency Agreement were governed by the laws of the United States or a
state of the United States.

Furthermore, in the event that MSFL, MSBYV, MSI plc, MSESE or Morgan Stanley or any of their respective
affiliates becomes subject to a U.S. Special Resolution Regime, Warrantholders should be aware that the
rights of the Warrantholders under the terms and conditions of the Warrants and under the Securities Agency
Agreement (including in respect of an event of default) may be overridden by and only be exercised to the
extent that such rights could be exercised under the U.S. Special Resolution Regime as if the Warrants and
Securities Agency Agreement were governed by the laws of the United States or any state of the United
States.

Conflicts of interest

The Issuer, the Guarantor and their affiliates may act in a number of capacities in connection with the
Program Securities, including, without limitation, as Determination Agent or Calculation Agent, and need
not take into account the specific interests of any individual holder of such Program Securities. Such a party
may also enter into business dealings relating to the Program Securities or the Relevant Underlying or any
asset to which the Program Securities or Relevant Underlying are exposed, from which such party may
derive revenues and profits in addition to any fees stated in the various documents, without any duty to
account therefor, or act in a way that is adverse to the interests of the holders of the Program Securities
generally.

For further information, see "Conflicts of Interest” beginning on page 61.

Risk Factors relating to the Program Securities

Program Securities linked to one or more securities, indices, funds, futures contracts, exchange-traded notes,
commodities, currencies, benchmark rates and/or underlying credits.

The Issuers may issue (i) Notes with principal and/or interest determined by reference to a single security,
index, futures contract, exchange traded fund ("ETF") or other funds, to baskets of securities, indices,
futures contracts, ETFs or other funds, to currency prices, exchange-traded notes, commodity prices,
benchmark rates, to the credit of one or more entities not affiliated with the Issuers, or other assets or
instruments (each, a "Relevant Underlying™) and (ii) Warrants and Certificates with a return determined
by reference to an index or formula, to changes in the prices of securities, indices, ETFs, funds, futures
contracts or commadities, to movements in currency exchange rates or benchmark rates, to the credit of one
or more entities not affiliated with the Issuers, or other factors (each a "Relevant Factor™). In addition, the
Issuers may issue Notes with principal or interest payable in one or more currencies which may be different
from the currency in which the Notes are denominated. Potential investors should be aware that:
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(@) they may lose all or a substantial portion of their principal or investment, depending on the
performance of each Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor, as applicable;

(b) the market price of such Program Securities may be very volatile;

(©) Warrants and Certificates, unless specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement, do not pay interest
and investors in Notes may receive no interest;

(d) payment or payment of principal or interest, if applicable, may occur at a different time or in a
different currency than expected;

(e) a Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor, as applicable may be subject to significant fluctuations
that may not correlate with changes in interest rates, currencies or other indices, or prices of futures
contracts;

()] if a Relevant Underlying is applied to Notes or a Relevant Factor is applied to Warrants and

Certificates in conjunction with a multiplier greater than one or such Relevant Underlying or
Relevant Factor contains some other leverage factor, the effect of changes in the value of the
Relevant Underlying on principal or interest payable on such Notes or Relevant Factor, on such
Warrants or Certificates, is likely to be magnified; and

(o) the timing of changes in a Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor, as applicable may affect the
actual yield to investors, even if the average level is consistent with their expectations. In general,
the earlier the change in the value of the Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor, the greater the
effect on yield.

The Program Securities are not ordinary debt securities

The terms of certain Notes and of the Warrants and Certificates differ from those of ordinary debt securities
because the Notes may not pay interest, the Warrants and Certificates do not pay interest and, at maturity or
upon redemption, exercise or cancellation (as applicable), depending on the performance of the Relevant
Underlying or Relevant Factor, as applicable, may return less than the amount invested or nothing, or may
return assets or securities of an issuer that is not affiliated with the Issuer, the value of which is less than the
amount invested. Prospective investors who consider purchasing the Program Securities should reach an
investment decision only after carefully considering the suitability of the Program Securities in light of their
particular circumstances. The price of the Program Securities may fall in value as rapidly as it may rise, and
investors in the Program Securities may potentially lose all of their investment. Investors in Warrants or
Certificates will sustain a total loss of their investment if the Warrants or Certificates expire out of the
money.

Issuer call option risk

The Issuer may have the right to call for the termination of the Program Securities at any time or at the time
as specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement. Following the exercise by the Issuer of such Issuer call
option, the investors will be entitled to receive a pre-determined amount which may be less than the amount
that the investors would have been entitled to receive under the terms of the Program Securities if such
option had not been exercised.

In addition, investors in such Program Securities will no longer be able to realise his or her expectation for
a gain in the value of such Program Securities and, if applicable, will no longer participate in the
performance of the Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor, as applicable.

An optional termination feature of the Program Securities is likely to limit their market value. During any
period when the Issuer may elect to terminate the Program Securities, the market value of those Program
Securities generally will not rise substantially above the price at which they can be terminated.

The Issuer may be expected to terminate the Program Securities when its cost of borrowing is lower than
the interest rate on the Program Securities. At those times, an investor generally would not be able to reinvest
the termination proceeds at an effective interest rate as high as the interest rate on the Program Securities
being terminated and may only be able to do so at a significantly lower rate. Investors should consider
reinvestment risk in light of other investments available at the time.
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The determination to terminate the Program Securities shall be made by the Issuer at its discretion (unless
Condition 24.6 (Redemption at the Non-discretionary Option of the Issuer), in the case of Notes, or
Condition 7.2 (Issuer Call Option — Non-discretionary Call Option), in the case of Warrants or Certificates
apply), taking into account a number of factors, including the current level of the reference asset and the
likelihood that such levels will be maintained, or will increase or decrease, in the future. In making such
determination, the Issuer will consider whether the expected performance of the reference asset could imply
that a higher amount could be payable in the future under the Program Securities than the Optional
Redemption Amount (Call) (in the case of Notes) or the Optional Settlement Amount (in the case of
Warrants or Certificates). As a result, it is likely that the Issuer will exercise the call option at a time in
which the termination of the Program Securities is least favourable for the investors. The Issuer shall make
such determination without taking into account the interest of the investors. Any non-discretionary exercise
of the call option shall be determined by reference to a proprietary valuation model of Morgan Stanley
which, similarly, shall not take into account the interest of the investors. Accordingly, the call option
whether or not discretionary can limit the possibility for investors to realise in full the expected returns.

Program Securities issued by MSBV, MSFL and MSFI1 will not have the benefit of any cross-default
or cross-acceleration with other indebtedness of MSBV, MSFL, MSFI11 or Morgan Stanley; A Morgan
Stanley covenant default or bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization event does not constitute an
Event of Default with respect to MSBV, MSFL or MSFII Program Securities

Unless otherwise stated in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the Program Securities issued by MSBV,
MSFL and MSFII will not have the benefit of any cross-default or cross-acceleration with other
indebtedness of MBSV, MSFL, MSFII or Morgan Stanley (as applicable). In addition, a covenant default
by Morgan Stanley, as guarantor, or an event of bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization of Morgan
Stanley, as guarantor, does not constitute an event of default with respect to any Program Securities issued
by MSBV, MSFL or MSFII. Holders of the Program Securities should be aware that they will not have the
right to request the Issuer to redeem the Program Securities following a default by MSBV, MSFL, MSFII
or Morgan Stanley (as applicable) under its other indebtedness or following such covenant default or event
of bankruptcy or insolvency or reorganisation of Morgan Stanley, as Guarantor.

The value of the Program Securities linked to the Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor, as
applicable may be influenced by unpredictable factors

The value of the Program Securities may be influenced by several factors beyond the Issuer’s, and/or its
Affiliates” and, where applicable, the Guarantor’s control including:

1. Valuation of the Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor. The market price or value of a Program
Security at any time is expected to be affected primarily by changes in the price or level of the
Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor to which the Program Securities are linked. It is impossible
to predict how the price or level of the Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor will vary over time.
The historical performance value (if any) of the Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor does not
indicate the future performance of the Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor. Factors which may
have an effect on the value of the Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor include the rate of return
of the Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor and, where relevant, the financial position and
prospects of the issuer of the Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor, the specified entity with
respect to credit-linked notes (“Credit-Linked Notes™) or credit-linked warrants or certificates
(“Credit-Linked Securities” and, together, “Credit-Linked Program Securities”), or the market
price or value of the applicable underlying security, index, ETF, fund, futures contract or basket of
securities, indices, ETFs, funds or futures contracts. In addition, the level of the Relevant
Underlying or Relevant Factor may depend on a number of inter-related factors, including global,
national and regional economic, financial, geopolitical, political, regulatory and judicial events and
their effect on the capital markets generally and relevant stock exchanges. Potential investors
should also note that whilst the market value of the Program Securities is linked to the Relevant
Underlying or Relevant Factor and will be influenced (positively or negatively) by the Relevant
Underlying or Relevant Factor, any change may not be comparable and may be disproportionate.
Itis possible that while the Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor is increasing in value, the value
of the Program Securities may fall. Further, the Conditions of the Program Securities will allow
the Determination Agent to make adjustments or take any other appropriate action if circumstances
occur where the Program Securities or any exchanges or price sources are affected by market
disruption, adjustment events or circumstances affecting normal activities;
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Volatility. The term “volatility” refers to the actual and anticipated frequency and magnitude of
changes of the market price with respect to a Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor. Volatility is
affected by a number of factors such as macroeconomic factors (i.e. those economic factors which
have broad economic effects), speculative trading and supply and demand in the options, futures
and other derivatives markets. Volatility of a Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor will move
up and down over time (sometimes more sharply than at other times) and different Relevant
Underlyings or Relevant Factors will most likely have separate volatilities at any particular time;

Dividend Rates and other Distributions. The value of certain Equity and Proprietary Index-Linked
Notes, Fund-Linked Notes and Futures Contract-Linked Notes and of the Warrants and Certificates
could, in certain circumstances, be affected by fluctuations in the actual or anticipated rates of
dividend (if any) or other distributions on a Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor;

Interest Rates. Investments in the Notes may involve interest rate risk. The interest rate level may
fluctuate on a daily basis and cause the value of the Notes to change on a daily basis. The interest
rate risk is a result of the uncertainty with respect to future changes of the market interest rate level.
In general, the effects of this risk increase as the market interest rates increase;

Remaining Term. Generally, the effect of pricing factors over the term of the Program Securities
will decrease as the maturity date approaches. However, this reduction in the effect of pricing
factors will not necessarily develop consistently up until the maturity date, but may undergo
temporary acceleration and/or deceleration. Even if the price of the Relevant Underlying or
Relevant Factor rises or falls there may a reduction or increase, as the case may be, in the value of
the Program Securities due to the other value determining factors. Given that the term of the
Program Securities is limited, investors cannot rely on the price of the Relevant Underlying or
Relevant Factor or the value of the Program Securities recovering again prior to maturity;

Creditworthiness. Any prospective investor who purchases the Program Securities is relying upon
the creditworthiness of the Issuer and/or the Guarantor, if applicable, and has no rights against any
other person. If the Issuer and/ or the Guarantor, if applicable, becomes insolvent, investors may
suffer potential loss of their entire investment irrespective of any favourable development of the
other value determining factors, such as a Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor; and

Exchange Rates. Even where payments in respect of the Program Securities are not expressly
linked to a rate or rates of exchange between currencies, the value of the Program Securities could,
in certain circumstances, be affected by such factors as fluctuations in the rates of exchange
between any currency in which any payment in respect of the Program Securities is to be made and
any currency in which a Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor is traded, appreciation or
depreciation of any such currencies and any existing or future or governmental or other restrictions
on the exchangeability of such currencies. There can be no assurance that rates of exchange
between any relevant currencies which are current rates at the date of issue of the Program
Securities will be representative of the relevant rates of exchange used in computing the value of
the Program Securities at any time thereafter. Where Notes are described as being “quantoed”, the
value of the Relevant Underlying will be converted from one currency (the “Relevant Underlying
Currency”) into a new currency (the “Settlement Currency”) on the date and in the manner
specified in, or implied by, the Conditions using a fixed exchange rate. The cost to the Issuer of
maintaining such a fixing between the Relevant Underlying Currency and the Settlement Currency
will have an implication on the value of the Notes. The implication will vary during the term of the
Notes. No assurance can be given as to whether or not, taking into account relative exchange rate
and interest rate fluctuations between the Relevant Underlying Currency and the Settlement
Currency, a quanto feature in a Note would at any time enhance the return on the Note over a level
of a similar security issued without such a quanto feature, and a quanto feature may worsen the
return.

Some or all of the above factors will influence the price investors will receive if an investor sells its Program
Securities prior to maturity, which is usually referred to as “secondary market practice”. For example,
investors may have to sell certain Program Securities at a substantial discount from the principal amount or
investment amount if the market price or value of the applicable Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor is
at, below, or not sufficiently above the initial market price or value or if market interest rates rise. The
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secondary market price may be lower than the market value of the issued Program Securities as at the Issue
Date to take into account, amongst other things, amounts paid to distributors and other intermediaries
relating to the issue and sale of the Program Securities and amounts relating to the hedging of the Issuer’s
obligations. As a result of all of these factors, any investor that sells the Program Securities before the stated
expiration or maturity date, may receive an amount in the secondary market which may be less than the then
intrinsic market value of the Program Securities and which may also be less than the amount the investor
would have received had the investor held the Program Securities through to maturity.

“Risks and possible U.S. tax reporting where the Program Securities are linked to an “actively managed”
basket of Relevant Underlyings

Program Securities may be linked to a basket of Relevant Underlyings which is “actively managed”, where
a third party allocator (the “Allocator”) is solely responsible for determining from time to time the Relevant
Underlyings comprising the basket. An “actively managed” basket follows a notional strategy and is rules-
based and the value of such basket may go down as well as up, depending on the performance of Relevant
Underlyings comprising such basket. There can be no assurance as to the future performance of any such
basket, and the value of such basket on any day may not reflect either its past performance or its future
performance. The strategy that an “actively managed” basket has been developed to reflect may not be
successful in achieving the investment objectives of any potential investor. Any past performance of an
“actively managed” basket (actual or simulated) is not an indication of its future performance.

The successs or failure of an “actively managed” basket or any Relevant Underlying comprising such basket
to achieve any investment or hedging objective or any particular performance is solely affected by the
abilities of, and determinations made by, the relevant Allocator and certain key individuals employed by the
relevant Allocator. There can be no assurance that the relevant Allocator will be successful in its decision
or the rebalancing of an “actively managed” basket or generating positive performance, and any such
decision or rebalancing by the relevant Allocator may cause such basket to perform in a worse manner than
if such decision or rebalancing had not been made. Furthermore, the loss of one of more such key individuals
at the relevant Allocator may have a material adverse impact on the performance and value of the relevant
“actively managed” basket. Any of the foregoing may have a negative impact on the value of, and return
under, the Program Securities linked to an “actively managed” basket.

Under Notice 2015-74 issued by the IRS, certain transactions that reference a basket of underlying assets
were identified as “transactions of interest” subject to reporting requirements pursuant to the “reportable
transactions” rules set forth in Section 6011 of the Code. Very generally, the IRS notice applies to an
instrument that makes payments based on the performance of a basket of referenced assets (such as
securities, commodities or foreign currency) and the investor or its designee has the discretion to change the
assets that comprise the basket, or change the trading algorithm that determines the assets. The notice is not
intended to apply where the investor is a non-U.S. person whose income or gain from the investment is not
effectively connected with the investor’s U.S. trade or business. However, the relevant Issuer is not expected
to be able to reliably associate investments in Program Securities linked to an “actively managed” basket
with valid documentation from an investor (such as an IRS Form W-8BEN or W8BEN-E) that would
establish the investor’s non-U.S. status for U.S. tax purposes. Therefore, and although the circumstances
that require disclosure pursuant to the IRS Notice are not always clear, an Issuer that issues Program
Securities linked to an “actively managed” basket to the IRS may report the issuance to the IRS, possibly
on a protective basis, as potential transactions of interest.

Moreover, changes to an “actively managed” basket of Relevant Underlyings may result in a taxable deemed
disposition of certain Program Securities. The IRS has indicated it may, under certain circumstances, seek
to treat certain contracts that reference a basket of underlying assets, where the underlying assets are changed
during the term of the contract, as having had a taxable deemed disposition under Section 1001 of the Code.
It is thus possible that the IRS may seek to assert that certain Program Securities linked to an “actively
managed” basket of Relevant Underlyings are subject to a taxable deemed distribution, in which case
holders may be subject to adverse tax consequences.

Notes where denominations involve integral multiples

In relation to any issue of Notes which have denominations consisting of a minimum Specified
Denomination plus one or more higher integral multiples of another smaller amount, it is possible that such
Notes may be traded in amounts in excess of the minimum Specified Denomination that are not integral
multiples of such minimum Specified Denomination. In such a case a holder who, as a result of trading such
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amounts, holds an amount which is less than the minimum Specified Denomination in his account with the
relevant clearing system would not be able to sell the remainder of such holding without first purchasing a
principal amount of Notes at or in excess of the minimum Specified Denomination such that its holding
amounts to a Specified Denomination. Further, a holder who, as a result of trading such amounts, holds an
amount which is less than the minimum Specified Denomination in his account with the relevant clearing
system at the relevant time may not receive a definitive Note in respect of such holding (should definitive
Notes be printed) and would need to purchase a principal amount of Notes at or in excess of the minimum
Specified Denomination such that its holding amounts to a Specified Denomination.

Certain considerations regarding the use of the Program Securities as hedging instruments

Any person intending to use the Program Securities as a hedge instrument should recognise the “correlation
risk” of doing this. Correlation risk is the potential differences in exposure for a potential investor that may
arise from the ownership of more than one financial instrument. The Program Securities may not hedge
exactly a Relevant Underlying, Relevant Factor or portfolio of which a Relevant Underlying or Relevant
Factor forms a part. In addition, it may not be possible to liquidate the Program Securities at a level which
directly reflects the price of the Relevant Underlying, Relevant Factor or portfolio of which the Relevant
Underlying or Relevant Factor forms a part. Potential investors should not rely on the ability to conclude
transactions during the term of the Program Securities to offset or limit the relevant risks. This depends on
the market situation and the specific Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor conditions. It is possible that
such transactions will only be concluded at an unfavourable market price, resulting in a corresponding loss
for the Noteholder or the Securityholder.

Effect on the Program Securities of hedging transactions by the Issuer

The Issuer may use a portion of the total proceeds from the sale of the Program Securities for transactions
to hedge the risks of the Issuer relating to the Program Securities, including by trading in instruments related
to the Relevant Underlying(s). In such case, the Issuer or any of its Affiliates may conclude transactions
that correspond to the obligations of the Issuer under the Program Securities. As a rule, such transactions
are concluded prior to or on the Issue Date, but it is also possible to conclude such transactions after issue
of the Program Securities. On or before a valuation date the Issuer or any of its Affiliates may take the steps
necessary for closing out any hedging transactions. As a result, these entities may be winding or adjusting
hedge positions during the term of the Program Securities, and the hedging strategy may involve greater
and more frequent dynamic adjustments to the hedge as a valuation date approaches. It cannot, however, be
ruled out that the price of a Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor will be influenced by such transactions.
Entering into or closing out these hedging transactions may influence the probability of occurrence or non-
occurrence of determining events in the case of Program Securities with a value based on the occurrence of
a certain event in relation to a Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor. Also, as noted above, these hedging
activities could affect the price, rate, level or other value of the Relevant Underlying(s). In addition, the
Issuer and/or its Affiliates may also trade financial instruments related to the Relevant Underlying(s) as part
of their general broker-dealer and other businesses. Accordingly, the hedging activities of the Issuer and its
affiliates could have a significant negative (or positive) impact on the investor’s return on the Program
Securities.

Financial Transaction Tax Risk

If “Implementation of Financial Transaction Tax” is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement to be
applicable to a Series, then if, on or after the Trade Date, due to the adoption of or any change in any
applicable law or regulation (including, without limitation, any law or regulation implementing a system of
financial transaction tax in any jurisdiction, including the European Union, relating to any tax payable in
respect of the transfer of, or issue or modification or redemption of, any financial instruments), the Issuer
determines that it (directly or through an Affiliate) would incur or has incurred a materially increased
amount of tax, transfer tax, duty, stamp duty, stamp duty reserve tax, expense or fee (other than brokerage
commissions) in relation to its obligations under such Series or its related hedge positions (“Additional
Tax”), the Issuer may adjust the Conditions of such Series to reduce the amount otherwise payable under
such Series to holders of such Program Securities in order to pass on to the holders of such Program
Securities the full amount of such Additional Tax imposed on the Issuer.

The Regulation S/Rule 144A Securities will not be listed on any U.S. securities exchange and secondary
trading may be limited; transfer restrictions apply.
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The Regulation S/Rule 144 A Securities will not be listed on any U.S. securities exchange. Therefore, there
may be little or no secondary market for the Regulation S/Rule 144A Securities. The Distribution Agents
may, but are not obligated to, make a market in the Regulation S/Rule 144A Securities and, if one or both
of the Distribution Agents chooses to make a market, may cease doing so at any time. When a Distribution
Agent does make a market, it will generally do so for transactions of routine secondary market size at prices
based on its estimate of the current value of the Regulation S/Rule 144A Securities, taking into account its
bid/offer spread, the relevant Issuer’s credit spreads, market volatility, the notional size of the proposed sale,
the cost of unwinding any related hedging positions, the time remaining to maturity and the likelihood that
it will be able to resell the Regulation S/Rule 144A Securities. Even if there is a secondary market, it may
not provide enough liquidity to allow you to trade or sell the Regulation S/Rule 144A Securities easily.
Since other broker-dealers may not participate significantly in the secondary market for the Regulation
S/Rule 144A Securities, the price at which you may be able to trade your Regulation S/Rule 144A Securities
is likely to depend on the price, if any, at which a Distribution Agent is willing to transact. If, at any time,
the Distribution Agents were to cease making a market in the Regulation S/Rule 144A Securities, it is likely
that there would be no secondary market for the Regulation S/Rule 144A Securities. Accordingly, you
should be willing to hold your Regulation S/Rule 144A Securities to maturity. Transfers of the Regulation
S/Rule 144A Securities are subject to the requirements of Regulation S or Rule 144A under the Securities
Act, as applicable.

Secondary trading of the Program Securities may be limited

Potential investors should be willing to hold the Program Securities until maturity. The nature and extent of
any secondary market in the Program Securities cannot be predicted and there may be little or no secondary
market in the Program Securities. As a consequence any person intending to hold the Program Securities
should consider liquidity in the Program Securities as a risk. Where the Program Securities are listed or
quoted on an exchange or quotation system, this does not imply greater or lesser liquidity than if equivalent
Program Securities were not so listed or quoted and the Issuer cannot guarantee that the listing or quotation
will be permanently maintained. Where the Program Securities are not listed or quoted, it becomes more
difficult to purchase and sell such Program Securities and there may also be a lack of transparency with
regard to pricing information.

Further, although an Issuer may apply to have certain issuances of Program Securities admitted to the
Official List of Euronext Dublin and trading on its Global Exchange Market, admitted to listing on the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange and to trading on the Luxembourg Stock exchange’s Euro MTF market, listed
on the Global Market of the Gibraltar Stock Exchange, or admitted to listing, trading and/or quotation by
any other listing authority, stock exchange and/or quotation system, approval for any listing is subject to
meeting the relevant listing requirements. Even if there is a secondary market, it may not provide enough
liquidity to allow the investor to sell or trade the Program Securities easily. MSI plc and other affiliates of
Morgan Stanley may from time to time, make a market in the Program Securities, but they are not required
to do so. If at any time MSI plc and other affiliates of the Issuers were to cease making a market in the
Program Securities, it is likely that there would be little or no secondary market for the Program Securities.
This may impact the ability of the investor of such Program Securities to sell the Program Securities at any
time.

Investors have no shareholder rights

As an owner of Program Securities, investors should be aware that they will not have voting rights or rights
to receive dividends, interest or other distributions, as applicable, or any other rights with respect to any
underlying security, ETF, other fund, index or futures contract. An investment in the Program Securities is
not the same as an investment in the Relevant Underlying. A holder should be aware that the amount(s) it
receives in respect of its Program Securities linked to a Relevant Underlying may be less than a direct
investment in the Relevant Underlying.

Modification and waiver

The Conditions of the English Law Notes and the Conditions of the Warrants and Certificates contain
provisions for calling meetings of Noteholders and Securityholders (as applicable) to consider matters
affecting their interests generally. These provisions permit defined majorities to bind all holders of the
relevant Program Securities, including holders who did not attend and vote at the relevant meeting and
holders who voted in a manner contrary to the majority.
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The Conditions of the New York Law Notes contain provisions for Noteholder votes to consider matters
affecting their interests generally. These provisions permit defined majorities to bind all Noteholders
including Noteholders who did not vote and Noteholders who voted in a manner contrary to the majority.

Holders of the Program Securities should be aware that if they are not party of the defined majority,
including if such holder did not attend the relevant meeting, they will be bound by the decision of the defined
majority on matters which may negatively affect the interests of such holder.

Restricted secondary trading if the electronic trading system is unavailable

Trading in the Program Securities may be conducted via one or more electronic trading systems so that
“buy” and “sell” prices can be quoted for exchange and off exchange trading. If an electronic trading system
used by the Issuer and/or its Affiliates were to become partially or completely unavailable, such a
development would have a corresponding effect on the ability of investors to trade the Program Securities.

Settlement risk

If (with respect to any Program Securities that are physically settled) prior to the delivery of any specified
asset(s), the Determination Agent for the Notes determines that a settlement disruption event (as defined,
(in respect of the English Law Notes) in Condition 27.3 (Settlement Disruption of Physical Settlement) and
Condition 27.4 (Delivery Disruption of Physical Settlement) and in Condition 20.1(c) (Settlement
Disruption) (in respect of the Warrants and Certificates), a "Settlement Disruption Event") is subsisting,
then the obligation to deliver such asset(s) shall be postponed to the first following business day on which
no Settlement Disruption Event is subsisting. Prospective investors should note that any such determination
may affect the value of the Program Securities and/or may delay settlement in respect of the Program
Securities.

Prospective investors should note that for so long as any delivery of any part of the specified asset(s) is not
practicable by reason of a Settlement Disruption Event, then the relevant Issuer may, in its reasonable
discretion, satisfy its obligations to deliver such part of the specified asset(s) by payment of a disrupted cash
settlement price. Prospective investors should note that the disrupted cash settlement price will reflect the
fair market value of the Program Securities less the cost to the relevant Issuer and/or any of its Affiliates of
unwinding any Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor related hedging arrangements and that any such
determination may adversely affect the value of the Program Securities.

Risks relating to regulatory reform

It is possible that government regulation of various types of financial instruments, including the Program
Securities and the Relevant Underlyings, may affect the ability of an Issuer to offer or sell such Program
Securities in the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons. In addition, regulatory
reform could ultimately affect the performance of the Relevant Underlyings and hence the performance of
the Program Securities. In particular, some legislative and regulatory proposals, such as those in the Dodd-
Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the “Dodd-Frank Act”), will, upon
implementation, impose limits on the maximum position that could be held by a single trader in certain
Relevant Underlyings and may subject certain Relevant Underlyings (and therefore any Program Securities
linked to those Relevant Underlyings) to new forms of regulation that could create barriers to some types
of investment activity, including investments via the Program Securities. Other provisions may require
certain of the Notes to be cleared and traded on an exchange, expand entity registration requirements and
impose business conduct requirements on persons active in the swaps market. While certain provisions of
the Dodd-Frank Act have already come into effect or are the subject of final rules that by their terms will
come into effect at specified dates in the future, other provisions must be implemented through future
rulemaking. While any such regulatory or legislative activity may not necessarily have a direct or indirect,
immediate effect upon an Issuer or the Program Securities, it is possible that, upon implementation of these
measures or any future measures, such regulatory reform could potentially limit or completely restrict the
ability of an Issuer to offer Program Securities, increase the costs of offering the Program Securities or make
them less effective, which could then affect the performance of the Program Securities.

Potential U.S. Withholding Tax under FATCA and on U.S. Dividend Equivalent Amounts

As discussed in "United States Federal Taxation™" below, sections 1471 through 1474 of the U.S. Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") and any regulations thereunder or official guidance in
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connection therewith, an agreement entered into with the IRS pursuant to such sections of the Code, an
intergovernmental agreement (an "IGA"™) between the United States and another jurisdiction in furtherance
of such sections of the Code, or any non-U.S. laws or rules implementing an IGA (collectively referred to
as "FATCA") may impose a withholding tax of 30 per cent. on payments made on the Program Securities
(including payments made by financial intermediaries to non-U.S. persons), unless various U.S. information
reporting and due diligence requirements have been satisfied.

Furthermore, Section 871(m) of the Code and the regulations thereunder require withholding (up to 30 per
cent. depending on whether an income tax treaty applies) on payments or deemed payments made to non-
U.S. persons on certain financial instruments to the extent that such payments are treated, for U.S. federal
income tax purposes, as being U.S.-source dividend equivalent amounts.

If withholding is so required, none of the Issuers nor any intermediary will be required to pay any additional
amounts with respect to the amounts so withheld. Either of the foregoing rules may affect the amounts paid
to an investor on the Program Securities.

U.S. Federal Withholding Tax on Interest and Other Coupons

Payments to non-U.S. persons in respect of a Note issued by Morgan Stanley, MSFL or MSFII that are
treated as interest for U.S. tax purposes may be subject to U.S. withholding tax of 30 per cent. if the
beneficial owner of the Notes does not meet the criteria for being exempt from this withholding tax. These
criteria include the requirement that the non-U.S. beneficial owner (or a financial institution holding the
Notes on behalf of the beneficial owner) comply with certain tax identification and certification rules,
generally by furnishing the appropriate IRS Form W-8BEN or W-8BEN-E on which the beneficial owner
certifies under penalties of perjury that it is not a United States person. Other U.S. withholding taxes may
apply in respect of a Note as described below under “United States Federal Taxation”.

In addition, in the case of certain coupon-paying Notes, a non-U.S. investor may be required to establish an
exemption under the “other income” provision of a Qualifying Treaty (as defined below) in order to receive
payments from Morgan Stanley, MSFL or MSFII without U.S. withholding tax of 30 per cent. An income
tax treaty between a non-U.S. jurisdiction and the United States is a “Qualifying Treaty” if it provides for
a 0 per cent. rate of tax on “other income” earned by a resident of the non-U.S. jurisdiction from sources
within the United States. Because most income tax treaties contain complex eligibility rules and limitations,
a non-U.S. investor should consult its tax advisor about its eligibility for this exemption.

If withholding is so required, and unless specified otherwise in an applicable Pricing Supplement, none of
Morgan Stanley, MSFL, MSFII or any intermediary will be required to pay any additional amounts with
respect to the amounts so withheld.

See “United States Federal Taxation” for further discussion regarding the potential U.S. withholding taxes
that could apply to payments with respect to the Notes.

Because MSF11 is a Disregarded Entity for U.S. Federal Income Tax Purposes, Payments it Makes Could
be Subject to U.S. Withholding Tax

For U.S. federal income tax purposes, MSFII is disregarded as an entity separate from Morgan Stanley.
Therefore, a Note issued by MSFII will be treated as if it were issued by Morgan Stanley solely for U.S.
federal income tax purposes. Consequently, even though MSFII was not organized under U.S. law,
payments of interest or certain coupons made in respect of a Note issued by MSFII will be treated as U.S.-
source income, and could be subject to U.S. federal withholding tax at a rate of 30 per cent. unless an
applicable exemption from withholding is established, as discussed under “United States Federal Taxation”.

Total loss-absorbing capacity of New York Law Notes

Morgan Stanley intends that the New York Law Notes will, when issued, constitute "loss-absorbing
capacity" within the meaning of the final rules issued by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
System and, accordingly, will have only those provisions described in this Offering Circular that will permit
compliance thereof at such time of issuance. In this respect, Morgan Stanley is a parent holding company
and has no operations and depends on dividends, distributions and other payments from its subsidiaries to
fund its debt obligations (including New York Law Notes). Under a support agreement that Morgan Stanley
has entered with its material subsidiaries, upon the occurrence of a resolution scenario, including a single-
point-of-entry resolution strategy as contemplated in its resolution plan, Morgan Stanley would be obligated
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to contribute or loan on a subordinated basis all of its material assets, other than shares in its subsidiaries
and certain intercompany payables, to provide capital and liquidity, as applicable, to its material
subsidiaries. That obligation will be secured, in accordance with an amended and restated secured support
agreement, on a senior basis by Morgan Stanley’s assets (other than shares in its subsidiaries). As a result,
claims of Morgan Stanley’s material subsidiaries against its assets (other than shares in its subsidiaries) will
be effectively senior to its unsecured obligations, including New York Notes which would be at risk of
absorbing Morgan Stanley’s and its subsidiaries’ losses.

The Program Securities may be redeemed or terminated (as applicable) prior to maturity

Unless in the case of any particular Tranche of Notes or series of Securities the applicable Pricing
Supplement specifies otherwise, in the event that the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor (if applicable) would
be obliged to increase the amounts payable in respect of any Program Securities due to any withholding or
deduction for or on account of, any present or future taxes, duties, assessments or governmental charges of
whatever nature imposed, levied, collected, withheld or assessed by or on behalf of any relevant jurisdiction,
or in certain circumstances following the occurrence of an Administrator/Benchmark Event or relevant
adjustment events applicable to the Program Securities, the relevant Issuer may redeem or settle (as
applicable) all outstanding Program Securities in accordance with, if “Supplementary Provisions for Belgian
Notes” or “Supplementary Provisions for Belgian Securities” is specified as not applicable in the applicable
Pricing Supplement, the Conditions, at the redemption or settlement price (as applicable) specified in the
applicable Pricing Supplement, or, if “Supplementary Provisions for Belgian Notes” or “Supplementary
Provisions for Belgian Securities” is specified as applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the
Belgian Supplemental Conditions (Notes) or the Belgian Supplemental Conditions (Securities) respectively,
at the redemption or settlement amounts specified in the risk factor “The Program Securities may be
redeemed or terminated prior to maturity (where the Supplementary Provisions for Belgian Notes or the
Supplementary Provisions for Belgian Securities apply)” below.

In addition, if in the case of any particular Tranche of Notes the applicable Pricing Supplement specifies
that the Notes are redeemable at the relevant Issuer’s option in certain other circumstances the relevant
Issuer may choose to redeem the Notes at times when prevailing interest rates may be relatively low. In such
circumstances an investor may not be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds in a comparable security at
an effective interest rate as high as that of the relevant Notes.

In addition, an optional redemption feature or optional termination feature in any particular Tranche of
Notes or series of Securities is likely to limit their market value. During any period when the relevant Issuer
may elect to redeem or terminate Program Securities, the market value of those Program Securities generally
will not rise substantially above the price at which they can be redeemed or settled. This also may be true
prior to any redemption or settlement period.

In the case of certain Program Securities, if such Program Securities are redeemed or terminated early for
any reason, the amount payable by the Issuer may be less than the amount that would have been paid had
the Program Securities been redeemed or settled at maturity or the expiration date.

In addition, in the circumstance of an event of default by the relevant Issuer and acceleration of the Program
Securities, the investor would have an unsecured claim against the Issuer or, if applicable, the Guarantor for
the amount due on the early redemption or early termination of the Program Securities.

The Program Securities may be redeemed or settled prior to maturity (where the Supplementary
Provisions for Belgian Notes or the Supplementary Provisions for Belgian Securities apply)

If “Supplementary Provisions for Belgian Notes” or “Supplementary Provisions for Belgian Securities” (as
applicable) is specified as applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement and any outstanding Program
Securities may be redeemed or settled by the Issuer following the occurrence of certain events that
significantly alter the economics of the relevant Program Securities that existed on the relevant Trade Date,
the amount payable by the Issuer will depend on whether such event is an event that definitively prevents
the performance of the Issuer’s or the Determination Agent’s obligations under the Program Securities and
for which the Issuer or the Determination Agent is not accountable (a “Force Majeure Event”).

If the relevant event is a Force Majeure Event, the Issuer will (if and to the extent permitted by applicable
law and regulation) pay an amount on the relevant early redemption date which will be equal to the fair
market value of the Program Securities.
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If the relevant event is not a Force Majeure Event, then:

@ if Minimum Redemption Amount or Minimum Settlement Amount (as applicable) is specified as
not applicable in the relevant Issue Terms, the Issuer will pay an amount on the relevant early
redemption or settlement date which will be equal to the fair market value of the Program Securities
(plus a pro-rata reimbursement of the costs of the Issuer paid by the original Noteholder or
Securityholder as part of the Issue Price of the Program Securities, as adjusted to take into account
the time remaining until maturity or the expiration date); or

(b) if Minimum Redemption Amount or Early Settlement Amount is specified as applicable in the
relevant Issue Terms, the Issuer will pay an amount on the Maturity Date or the Expiration Date
(as applicable) of the Program Securities equal to the minimum level of the final redemption
amount or cash settlement amount payable on the Maturity Date or the Expiration Date
respectively, plus the sum of the value of the derivative component of such Program Security, plus
a sum representing the reimbursement of costs initially charged to investors by the Issuer for issuing
the Program Security (as adjusted to take into account the time remaining to maturity),
compounded at a rate of interest for comparable debt instruments issued by the Issuer (or, in the
case of any Program Securities guaranteed by the Guarantor, the Guarantor) for the remaining term
of the Program Securities. However, the holder of a Program Security may instead choose to
receive payment prior to the Maturity Date or the Expiration Date by electing to receive an amount
equal to the fair market value of the Program Securities (plus a pro-rata reimbursement of the costs
of the Issuer paid by the original Noteholder or Securityholder as part of the Issue Price of the
Program Securities, as adjusted to take into account the time remaining until maturity) on the
relevant early redemption date or early settlement date (as applicable).

The Issuer’s obligations under the Program Securities shall be satisfied in full upon payment of such
amounts.

The amount payable by the Issuer in the circumstances set out above may be less than the amount that would
have been paid had the Program Securities been redeemed at maturity or exercised on the Expiration Date
(as applicable).

Prospective investors should review the Conditions as amended by the Belgian Supplemental Conditions
(Notes) or the Belgian Supplemental Conditions (Securities) (as applicable) to ascertain how such
provisions apply to the Program Securities and what may constitute an early redemption event or an early
settlement event or a force majeure event.

Fixed/Floating Rate Notes

Fixed/Floating Rate Notes may bear interest at a rate that the relevant Issuer may elect to convert from a
fixed rate to a floating rate, or from a floating rate to a fixed rate. The relevant Issuer’s ability to convert the
interest rate will affect the secondary market and the market value of the Notes since the relevant Issuer
may be expected to convert the rate when it is likely to produce a lower overall cost of borrowing. If the
relevant Issuer converts from a fixed rate to a floating rate, the spread on the Fixed/Floating Rate Notes may
be less favourable than then prevailing spreads on comparable Floating Rate Notes tied to the same reference
rate. In addition, the new floating rate at any time may be lower than the rates on other Notes. If the relevant
Issuer converts from a floating rate to a fixed rate, the fixed rate may be lower than then prevailing rates on
its Notes.

Notes issued at a substantial discount or premium

The market values of securities issued at a substantial discount or premium from their principal amount tend
to fluctuate more in relation to general changes in interest rates than do prices for conventional interest
bearing securities. Generally, the longer the remaining term of the securities, the greater the price volatility
as compared to conventional interest bearing securities with comparable maturities.

Program Securities linked to the credit of one or more specified entities entail significant risks not associated
with similar investments in conventional debt securities

Because the payment of principal and, where applicable, interest, on Credit-Linked Program Securities is
contingent on the credit of one or more specified entities and such specified entities’ satisfaction of their
present and future financial obligations, investors will take credit risk with respect to such specified entities
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in addition to credit risk with respect to the relevant Issuer and/or the Guarantor, if applicable. If one or
more of such specified entities becomes bankrupt or subject to other insolvency procedures or fails to make
payments on, repudiates or restructures any of the debt or other obligations described in the applicable
Pricing Supplement, a credit event may occur.

If a credit event occurs, the maturity or termination (as applicable) of the Credit-Linked Program Securities
will be accelerated. Upon acceleration of the Credit-Linked Program Securities, the investor will receive
the deliverable obligations, or a cash amount calculated by reference to the value of certain obligations, each
as described in the applicable Pricing Supplement instead of the principal amount of the Credit-Linked
Program Securities and, in the case of Credit-Linked Notes, interest payments on the Credit-Linked Notes
will cease if so provided in the applicable Pricing Supplement. The market value of those deliverable
obligations following a credit event will probably be significantly less than the principal amount of the
Credit-Linked Program Securities. Such obligations may even be worthless. Thus, if a credit event occurs,
the investor may lose all of its investment in the Credit-Linked Program Securities.

Several factors, many of which are beyond the relevant Issuer’s and, where applicable, the Guarantor’s
control will influence the value of the Credit-Linked Program Securities and the possibility of early
acceleration, including: (i) the creditworthiness of the specified entity or entities underlying the Credit-
Linked Program Securities, (ii) the creditworthiness of the relevant Issuer and/or the Guarantor, if
applicable, and (iii) economic, financial and political events that affect the markets in which such specified
entity or entities and the relevant Issuer and, where applicable, the Guarantor do business and the markets
for the debt or other obligations of such specified entity or entities and of the relevant Issuer and, where
applicable, the Guarantor.

An Issuer may amend the terms and conditions of the Program Securities, the Guarantee and the
applicable Deeds of Covenant without Noteholder or Securityholder consent if, in its reasonable opinion,
such amendments are not materially prejudicial to Noteholders or Securityholders.

Condition 34.2 (Modification) of the terms and conditions of the English Law Notes and Condition 33.3
(Modification) of the terms and conditions of the Warrants and Certificates allows an Issuer to amend the
terms and conditions of the Program Securities, the Guarantee, the Deeds of Covenant, the Issue and Paying
Agency Agreement, the SEB Issuing and Paying Agency Agreement, the Euroclear Agreement and the
Securities Agency Agreement without the consent of the holders if, in that Issuer’s opinion, the amendment
is: to correct a manifest error or to effect a modification which is of a formal, minor or technical nature; to
cure any ambiguity or correct or supplement any defective provisions; to correct an error or omission such
that, in the absence of such correction, the relevant terms proposed to be corrected would not otherwise
represent the intended terms on which the relevant Program Securities were sold and have since traded; or
not materially prejudicial to the holders. When considering if a modification is materially prejudicial to a
holder, the Issuer need not have regard to any particular circumstances of any such holder. Prospective
investors should be aware that an Issuer is not required to consult with any other party, including the
Noteholders or the Securityholders, prior to making such amendment. An Issuer is entitled to exercise its
discretion in making these determinations and Noteholders and Securityholders will be bound by any such
amendments made pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Program Securities, notwithstanding that the
Noteholders’ or Securityholders’ consent may not be required for such amendments.

United Kingdom stamp duty and stamp duty reserve tax

Potential purchasers of Warrants or Certificates should note that each Warrant or Certificate may constitute
an instrument which is subject to United Kingdom stamp duty on issue by reference to the amount of the
consideration given for the Warrants or Certificates so represented. If stamp duty is payable on the Warrants
or Certificates, interest will be payable (in addition to the stamp duty) in respect of the period from 30 days
after the date of execution of the Warrants or Certificates to the date of payment. Penalties may also be
payable if the Warrants or Certificates are not stamped within 30 days of the date of execution of the
Warrants or Certificates. If a Warrant or Certificate is subject to United Kingdom stamp duty, it would be
inadmissible in evidence in an English court unless duly stamped. Potential purchasers should note that UK
stamp duty reserve tax may become payable upon the issue of the Warrants or Certificates depending on the
nature of the underlying securities and the precise terms of the Warrants or Certificates. Furthermore,
potential purchasers should also note that UK stamp duty or stamp duty reserve tax may be payable on the
transfer and / or exercise of the Warrants or Certificates depending on the nature of the Relevant Factor and
the precise terms of the Warrants or Certificates.
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Holders must exercise Warrants and Certificates or risk loss of investment

Where the terms and conditions of the Warrants and Certificates provide that the Warrants and Certificates
must be exercised in order for the purchasers of the Warrants and Certificates to receive their settlement
amount in respect of such Warrants and Certificates, and the applicable Pricing Supplement specifies
“Deemed Exercise” to be not applicable, you must exercise your rights to receive payment in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the Warrants and Certificates and the requirements of relevant clearing
system or the relevant Agent, as applicable; otherwise you may lose your initial investment.

Risks relating to the occurrence of a Regulatory Event

Noteholders of Notes issued by MSBV should note that if Condition 30 (Illegality and Regulatory Event)
of the “Terms and Conditions of the English Law Notes” below is specified as being applicable in the
relevant Pricing Supplement, the Issuer shall have the right to redeem the Notes early (at the amount
specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement) if the Issuer has determined that a Regulatory Event has
occurred.

Noteholders should note in this regard the circumstances in which a Regulatory Event may be deemed by
the Issuer to have occurred pursuant to the definition of “Regulatory Event” under Condition 2.1
(Definitions) of the “Terms and Conditions of the English Law Notes” below. There can be no assurance
that a Regulatory Event will not occur and Noteholders should be aware that, should a Regulatory Event
occur, it may lead to an early redemption of the Notes.

Risks relating to the provision of notices

Pursuant to the Conditions, the Issuer, the Determination Agent or the Calculation Agent, as applicable, in
certain circumstances have obligations to provide Noteholders with notice of the occurrence of particular
events with respect to the Notes including, without limitation, (i) notice of the occurrence of an event which
the Issuer has determined shall lead to the early redemption of the Notes, or (ii) notice of a determination
by the Determination Agent that certain adjustments are to be made to the terms of the Notes following the
occurrence of a particular event in respect of which the Issuer has determined that the Notes shall continue.
Holders of the Program Securities should be aware that, notwithstanding any such obligation to provide
notice, in accordance with Condition 36 (Notices) of the “Terms and Conditions of the English Law Notes”
below, any failure by the Issuer, the Calculation Agent, the Determination Agent or any other party to
provide Noteholders with any notice due to be given to Noteholders in accordance with the Conditions shall
not of itself affect the validity of the determination, adjustment, event or any other occurrence to which such
notice relates.

Risk Factors relating to currencies and exchange rates
Currency exchange conversions may affect payments on some Warrants and Certificates

The applicable Pricing Supplement may provide for (i) payments on a non-U.S. Dollar denominated Warrant
or Certificate to be made in U.S. Dollars or (ii) payments in respect of Warrants or Certificates to be made
in a currency other than U.S. Dollars. In these cases, Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc, in its capacity
as Exchange Rate Agent (the “Exchange Rate Agent”), or such other exchange rate agent identified in the
applicable Pricing Supplement, will convert the applicable currency into U.S. Dollars or U.S. Dollars into
the applicable currency. The investor will bear the costs of the conversion through deductions from those
payments.

Emerging markets currencies

Where the Program Securities are denominated in an emerging market currency or linked to one or more
emerging market currencies, such emerging market currencies can be significantly more volatile than
currencies of more developed markets. Emerging markets currencies are highly exposed to the risk of a
currency crisis happening in the future and this could trigger the need for the Determination Agent (Morgan
Stanley & Co. International plc or other specified entity) to make adjustments to the terms and conditions
of the Program Securities. Such adjustments may have an adverse effect on the value or return of the
Program Securities.
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Exchange rates and exchange controls may affect the value or return of the Program Securities

General Exchange Rate and Exchange Control Risks. An investment in a Program Security denominated
in, or the payment of which is linked to the value of, currencies other than the investor’s home currency
entails significant risks. These risks include the possibility of significant changes in rates of exchange
between its home currency and the other relevant currencies and the possibility of the imposition or
modification of exchange controls by the relevant governmental authorities. These risks generally depend
on economic and political events over which the Issuers have no control. Such risks may impact the
payments due under the Program Securities and therefore the value or return of the Program Securities.

Exchange Rates Will Affect the Investor’s Investment. In recent years, rates of exchange between some
currencies have been highly volatile and this volatility may continue in the future. Fluctuations in any
particular exchange rate that have occurred in the past are not necessarily indicative, however, of
fluctuations that may occur during the term of any Program Security. Depreciation against the investor’s
home currency or the currency in which a Program Security is payable would result in a decrease in the
effective yield of the Program Security (in the case of a Note) below its coupon rate and could result in an
overall loss to an investor on the basis of the investor’s home currency. In addition, depending on the specific
terms of a Currency-Linked Note or Warrant or Certificate, changes in exchange rates relating to any of the
relevant currencies could result in a decrease in its effective yield and in the investor’s loss of all or a
substantial portion of the value of that Program Security.

Neither the Issuers nor the Guarantor Has Any Control Over Exchange Rates. Currency exchange rates can
either float or be fixed. Exchange rates of most economically developed nations are permitted to fluctuate
in value relative to each other. However, from time to time governments may use a variety of techniques,
such as intervention by a country's central bank, the imposition of regulatory controls or taxes, or changes
in interest rate to influence the exchange rates of their currencies. Governments may also issue a new
currency to replace an existing currency or alter the exchange rate or relative exchange characteristics by a
devaluation or revaluation of a currency. These governmental actions could change or interfere with
currency valuations and currency fluctuations that would otherwise occur in response to economic forces,
as well as in response to the movement of currencies across borders.

As a consequence, these government actions could adversely affect yields or payouts in the investor's home
currency for (i) Program Securities denominated or payable in currencies other than U.S. Dollars and (ii)
Currency-Linked Notes or Currency Program Securities.

Subject to the Terms and Conditions of the relevant Program Securities, the Issuers will not make any
adjustment or change in the terms of the Program Securities in the event that exchange rates should become
fixed, or in the event of any devaluation or revaluation or imposition of exchange or other regulatory controls
or taxes, or in the event of other developments affecting any currency. Therefore the investor will bear those
risks, which may adversely impact the return on and value of the Program Securities.

Some Currencies May Become Unavailable. Governments have imposed from time to time, and may in the
future impose, exchange controls that could also affect the availability of a Specified Currency (as defined
herein). Even if there are no actual exchange controls, it is possible that the applicable currency for any
security would not be available when payments on that security are due. Prospective investors in Currency-
Linked Notes or Currency Program Securities should be aware that the Determination Agent may determine
that a Currency Disruption Event has occurred or exists on a relevant date of valuation, and any
consequential determination of the Settlement Rate by the Determination Agent in accordance with the
Currency Disruption Fallbacks may have an adverse effect on the return on and value of the Program
Securities.

Alternative Payment Method Used If Payment Currency Becomes Unavailable. If a payment currency is
unavailable in respect of New York Law Notes or English Law Notes, Morgan Stanley would make required
payments in U.S. Dollars on the basis of the Market Exchange Rate (as defined below under "Description
of New York Law Notes — General” or Condition 2.1 (Definitions) of the Terms and Conditions of the
English Law Notes, as applicable). However, if the applicable currency for any such Note is not available
because the euro has been substituted for that currency, the relevant Issuer would make the payments in
euro. Some Notes may specify a different form of payment if a non U.S. payment currency is unavailable
to the relevant Issuer.
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Currency Exchange Information may be provided in the Pricing Supplement. The applicable Pricing
Supplement or offering circular supplement, where relevant, may include information with respect to any
relevant exchange controls and any relevant historic exchange rate information for any Program Security.
An investor in Currency-Linked Notes or Currency Program Securities should not assume that any historic
information concerning currency exchange rates will be representative of the range of, or trends in,
fluctuations in currency exchange rates that may occur in the future. Future fluctuations in currency
exchange rates, the range of such fluctuation or trends in such fluctuations may adversely impact the return
on and value of the Program Securities.

Exchange rates may affect the value of a judgment

The English law Notes and the Warrants and Certificates and any non-contractual obligations arising out of
or in connection with them shall be governed by English law. Although an English court has the power to
grant judgment in the currency in which a Program Security is denominated, it may decline to do so in its
discretion. If judgment were granted in a currency other than that in which a Program Security is
denominated, the investor will bear the relevant currency risk.

The New York Law Notes will be governed by the laws of the State of New York. If a New York court
were to enter a judgment in an action on any securities denominated in a foreign currency, such court would
either enter a judgment in U.S. Dollars based on the prevailing rate of exchange between the foreign
currency and U.S. Dollars on the date such judgment is entered or enter judgment in the foreign currency
and convert the judgment or decree into U.S. Dollars at the prevailing rate of exchange on the date such
judgment or decree is entered.

Risks relating to inflation

Inflation is the general increase in prices and fall in the purchasing value of money over time. Due to the
impact of inflation, the same amount of money will buy fewer goods and services over time.

The real return (or yield) on an investment in the Program Securities will be reduced by inflation.
Consequently, the higher the rate of inflation, the lower the real yield on a Program Security will be. If the
inflation rate is equal to or greater than the yield under a Program Security, the real yield a holder of such
Program Security will achieve will be zero or even negative. Accordingly, inflation may have a negative
effect on the value of and return on the Program Securities, and you should consider the potential impact of
inflation (including if the rate of inflation is anticipated to rise over the term of the Program Securities)
before purchasing Program Securities.

Risk Factors relating to the Relevant Underlying

Program Securities linked to a single emerging market security, a single emerging market ETF or other
fund, or a basket of securities or a basket of indices composed, in part or in whole, of emerging market
securities or a basket of ETFs or other funds composed, in part or in whole, of emerging market ETFs
or funds or futures contracts linked to any of the foregoing

Fluctuations in the trading prices of the underlying emerging market equity will affect the value of Equity
and Proprietary Index-Linked Notes, Fund-Linked Notes or Futures Contract-Linked Notes where the
underlying asset is such a share or comprised of any such shares and of Warrant and Certificates linked to
emerging market securities, futures contracts and/or ETFs or other funds. Changes may result over time
from the interaction of many factors directly or indirectly affecting economic and political conditions in the
related countries or member nations, including economic and political developments in other countries. Of
particular importance to potential risks are (i) rates of inflation; (ii) interest rate levels; (iii) balance of
payments; and (iv) the extent of governmental surpluses or deficits in the relevant country. All of these
factors are, in turn, sensitive to the monetary, fiscal and trade policies pursued by the related countries, the
governments of the related countries and member nations (if any), and other countries important to
international trade and finance. Government intervention could materially and adversely affect the value of
such Program Securities. Governments use a variety of techniques, such as intervention by their central
bank or imposition of regulatory controls or taxes to affect the trading of the underlying equity. Thus, a
special risk in purchasing such Program Securities is that their trading value and amount payable at maturity
could be affected by the actions of governments, fluctuations in response to other market forces and the
movement of currencies across borders. Emerging markets stocks may be more volatile than the stocks in
more developed markets.
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Risk Factors relating to Program Securities linked to securities (including ChiNext Shares and STAR
Shares) listed on PRC Stock Exchanges

The Program Securities may be linked to Shares which are eligible to be traded through the China Connect
Service. The Issuer or its affiliates or others (each a "Hedge Provider") may obtain exposure to the Shares
through the Qualified Foreign Institutional Investor ("QFII") regime. Where this is the case, it should be
noted that on 29 September 2009, the State Administration for Foreign Exchange ("SAFE") issued the
Provisions on the Foreign Exchange Administration of Domestic Securities Investment by Qualified
Foreign Institutional Investors, which expressly prohibit a QFII (which may include the relevant Hedge
Provider) from transferring or selling its investment quota. There are regulatory uncertainties as to whether
issuing or providing hedging arrangements for market access products is regarded as being in compliance
with the relevant rules, which prohibit transferring or selling investment quota by a QFII. In addition, the
China Securities Regulatory Commission and SAFE may implement further measures from time to time.

Alternatively, a Hedge Provider may obtain exposure to the Shares through the China Connect Service. The
China Connect Service is a securities trading and clearing programme under which the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited provides order-routing and related services for certain securities traded on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange and/or Shenzhen Stock Exchange (as the case may be), and the Shanghai Stock Exchange
and/or the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (as the case may be) and Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company
Limited providing clearing, settlement, depository and related services in relation to such securities. Unlike
an investment through the QFII regime, a Hedge Provider need not be approved as a QFII and is not subject
to an individual investment quota. Nonetheless, trading through the China Connect Service is expected to
be subject to a number of restrictions including pre-trade checking requirements, shareholding limits and
aggregate and daily Renminbi quotas that apply to the market in general. The China Connect Service may
also be disrupted or terminated. In addition, the China Connect Service is in its initial stages and accordingly
further developments are likely. There are also further regulatory uncertainties that apply in each case,
including the taxes to which trades are subject.

Investors should also note that any investments in Program Securities linked to Shares traded through the
China Connect Service involves a high investment risk. In particular, profitability and other financial
requirements for listing of shares on the ChiNext Board of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (the “ChiNext
Board”) and the STAR Board of the Shanghai Stock Exchange (the “STAR Board”) are less stringent than
the Main Board and the SME Board of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
respectively. Companies listed on the ChiNext Board or the STAR Board may include enterprises in the
innovation and technology sector as well as other start-up and/or growth enterprises with a smaller operating
scale and share capital. Stock prices may also be more susceptible to manipulation due to fewer circulating
shares. Accordingly, the ChiNext Shares and/or STAR Shares may be very volatile and illiquid. It may be
more common and easier for companies listed on the ChiNext Board or the STAR Board to be delisted. The
ChiNext Shares and/or STAR Shares may become very illiquid after delisting. Any of these factors could
affect the value of Program Securities linked to ChiNext Shares and/or STAR Shares. In addition, current
information on such companies may be limited and may not be widely available.

In light of the above, investments in Program Securities linked to ChiNext Shares and/or STAR Shares
through the China Connect Service may involve a more significant risk of loss compared to investments in
Program Securities linked to other PRC underlying assets.

There are also further regulatory uncertainties that apply, including the taxes to which trades are subject.
The above factors may affect Program Securities with one or more PRC underlying assets.

Program Securities linked to ADRs

An investment in Program Securities linked to American Depositary Receipts ("ADRs") entails significant
risks in addition to those associated with Equity and Proprietary Index-Linked Notes and Equity and
Proprietary Index-Linked Securities and with investments in a conventional debt security. There are
important differences between the rights of holders of ADRs and the rights of holders of the equity issuer
represented by such ADRs. An ADR is a security that represents capital stock of the relevant underlying
equity issuer. The relevant deposit agreement for the ADR sets forth the rights and responsibilities of the
depositary (being the issuer of the ADR), the underlying equity issuer and holders of the ADRs which may
be different from the rights of holders of the underlying equities. The legal owner of the underlying equities
is the custodian bank which at the same time is the issuing agent of the ADR. Depending on the jurisdiction
under which the ADRs have been issued and the jurisdiction to which the custodian agreement is subject, it
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is possible that the corresponding jurisdiction would not recognise the purchaser of the ADR as the actual
beneficial owner of the underlying equities. Particularly in the event that the custodian bank becomes
insolvent or that enforcement measures are taken against the custodian bank, it is possible that an order
restricting free disposition could be issued with respect to the underlying equities or that such shares are
realised within the framework of an enforcement measure against the custodian bank. If this is the case, the
holder of the ADR loses their rights under the underlying equities and the relevant Program Securities would
become worthless. Adjustment to the terms and conditions or replacement of the underlying equities
following certain corporate events in relation to the underlying equities may materially and adversely affect
the value of the Program Securities linked to ADRs.

Risks relating to Program Securities linked to Shares

Factors affecting the performance of Shares may adversely affect the value of Program Securities linked to
Shares

The performance of Shares is dependent upon macroeconomic factors, such as interest and price levels on
the capital markets, currency developments, political factors and company-specific factors such as earnings
position, market position, risk situation, shareholder structure and distribution policy. These factors are not
within the relevant Issuer, Morgan Stanley or any of Morgan Stanley's affiliates' control and may result in
a decline in the value of the Program Securities.

Holders have no claim against the Share Issuer(s) or recourse to the Shares

Program Securities linked to Shares do not represent a claim against or an investment in any Share Issuer(s)
and investors will not have any right of recourse under such Program Securities to any such company or the
Shares. Program Securities linked to Shares are not in any way sponsored, endorsed or promoted by any
Share Issuer(s) and such companies have no obligation to take into account the consequences of their actions
for any holders. Accordingly, the Share Issuer(s) may take any actions in respect of such Share without
regard to the interests of the investors in such Program Securities, and any of these actions could adversely
affect the market value of Program Securities linked to Shares.

Determinations made by the Issuer and the Determination Agent in respect of Potential Adjustment Events,
Merger Events, Tender Offers, Delisting, Nationalisations, Insolvencies and Additional Disruption Events
may have an adverse effect on the value of Program Securities linked to Shares

Upon the determination by the Determination Agent, in its reasonable discretion, that a Potential Adjustment
Event, Merger Event, Tender Offer, Delisting, Nationalisation, Insolvency or Additional Disruption Event
has occurred in relation to an underlying Share or Share Company, the Issuer (in the case of a Merger Event,
Tender Offer, Delisting, Nationalisation, Insolvency or an Additional Disruption Event) will, in its
reasonable discretion, determine whether the relevant Program Securities shall continue or shall be
redeemed early, any of which determinations may have an adverse effect on the value of such Program
Securities and, in the case of a Potential Adjustment Event, the Determination Agent may, in its reasonable
discretion, make certain determinations to account for the occurrence of the relevant event, including to
make adjustments to the terms of the Program Securities. In particular, in the event that the Program
Securities are early settled/redeemed, the amount payable to holders may be significantly less than the
investor's initial investment, and may be as low as zero. If the Issuer determines that the relevant Program
Securities shall be redeemed early, the Issuer shall provide notice of such early redemption to holders a
prescribed number of days prior to the date fixed for redemption.

If the Issuer determines that the relevant Program Securities shall continue following the occurrence of such
an event, the Determination Agent may, in its reasonable discretion, make certain determinations to account
for the occurrence of the relevant event, including to make adjustments to the terms of the Program
Securities.

Potential Adjustment Events include (a) a sub-division, consolidation or re-classification of the Shares, (b)
a distribution, issue or dividend to existing holders of the Shares, (c) an extraordinary dividend, (d) a call of
the Shares that are not fully paid, (e) a repurchase by the Share Issuer, or one of its subsidiaries, of the
Shares, (f) a separation of rights from the Shares or (g) any event having a dilutive or concentrative effect
on the value of the Shares. Additional Disruption Events can include, if “Supplementary Provisions for
Belgian Notes” or “Supplementary Provisions for Belgian Securities” (as applicable) is specified as not
applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement, (1) a change in applicable law since the Trade Date that
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makes it illegal to hold, acquire or dispose of the Shares or more expensive for the relevant Issuer to hedge
its obligations under the relevant Program Securities, (2) Increased Cost of Hedging and (3) Hedging
Disruption, or if "Supplementary Provisions for Belgian Notes” or “Supplementary Provisions for Belgian
Securities” (as applicable) is specified as applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement, (1) a change in
applicable law since the Trade Date that makes it illegal to hold, acquire or dispose of the Shares, (2) an
insolvency filing by or on behalf of any issuer of the relevant Share(s).

General Risks relating to regulatory actions, such as sanctions

Governmental regulatory actions, including, without limitation, sanctions-related actions by the U.S. or a
foreign government, could prohibit or otherwise restrict persons from holding Program Securities or the
Relevant Underlying(s), or engaging in transactions in them, and any such action could adversely affect the
value of the Relevant Underlying(s). These regulatory actions could result in restrictions on Program
Securities and could result in the loss of a significant portion or all of your initial investment in Program
Securities, including if you are forced to divest the Program Securities due to the government mandates,
especially if such divestment must be made at a time when the value of Program Securities has declined.

General Risks relating to Notes linked to preference shares

The Issuers may issue Notes with principal determined by reference to the changes in the value of preference
shares ("Preference Shares"), which may fluctuate up or down depending on the performance of the
relevant underlying asset(s) or basis of reference to which Preference Shares are linked (the "Preference
Share Underlying") as set out in the terms and conditions of the Preference Shares (the "Terms of the
Preference Shares"). If, as a result of the performance of the Preference Share Underlying, the performance
of the Preference Shares is negative the value of the Preference Share-Linked Notes will be adversely
affected. Purchasers of Preference Share-Linked Notes risk losing all or a part of their investment if the
value of the Preference Shares falls.

An investment in Preference Share-Linked Notes will entail significant risks not associated with a
conventional debt or equity security. Purchasers of Preference Share-Linked Notes should conduct their
own investigations and, in deciding whether or not to purchase the Preference Share-Linked Notes,
prospective purchasers should form their own views of the merits of an investment related to the Preference
Shares based upon such investigations and not in reliance on any information given in this document.

As set out below, Preference Share-Linked Notes will be subject to early redemption if an Extraordinary
Event or, if applicable, an Additional Disruption Event occurs or if an Early Redemption Event occurs. In
these circumstances the Issuer may redeem the Notes at the Early Redemption Amount or the Early Share
Redemption Note Amount, as applicable. The Early Redemption Amount or Early Preference Share
Redemption Note Amount may be less (and in certain circumstances, significantly less) than investors'
initial investment.

Exposure to the Preference Share Underlying

The Preference Share Underlying may be a specified index or basket of indices, a specified equity or basket
of equities, a specified currency or basket of currencies, a specified fund share or unit or basket of fund
shares or units or such other underlying instruments, bases of reference or factors as may be determined by
the issuer of the relevant Preference Shares (the "Preference Share Issuer™) and specified in the terms and
conditions of the relevant series of Preference Shares. Consequently potential investors should also
consider the risk factors set out on pages 13-54 in respect of the risks involved in investing in Notes (in
this case the Preference Shares) linked to certain Relevant Underlying(s).

The Terms of the Preference Shares provide that the Preference Shares will be redeemable on their final
redemption date (or otherwise in accordance with the Terms of the Preference Shares). On redemption, the
Preference Shares will carry preferred rights to receive an amount calculated by reference to the Preference
Share Underlying.

Investors should review the Terms of the Preference Shares and consult with their own professional advisors
if they consider it necessary.
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Credit and Fraud Risk of Preference Share Issuer

Preference Share-Linked Notes are linked to the performance of the relevant Preference Shares. Investors
bear the risk of an investment in the Preference Share Issuer. The value of the Preference Share-Linked
Notes is dependent on the value of the Preference Shares, which will depend in part on the creditworthiness
of the Preference Share Issuer, which may vary over the term of the Preference Share-Linked Notes. The
Preference Share Issuer is not an operating company. Its sole business activity is the issue of redeemable
preference shares. The Preference Share Issuer does not have any trading assets and does not generate any
significant net income. As its funds are limited any misappropriation of funds or other fraudulent action by
the Preference Share Issuer or a person acting on its behalf would have a significant adverse effect on the
value of the Preference Shares and will adversely affect the value of the Preference Share-Linked Notes.

Determination of Extraordinary Events and Additional Disruption Events

The Determination Agent may determine the occurrence of a Merger Event, Tender Offer, Insolvency or
Additional Disruption Event in relation to the Preference Share-Linked Notes. Upon such determination,
the relevant Issuer may, at its option redeem the Preference Share-Linked Notes in whole at the Early
Redemption Amount which may be less than the amount invested in the Preference Share-Linked Notes.
Noteholders will not benefit from any appreciation of the Preference Shares that may occur following such
redemption.

No ownership rights

An investment in Preference Share-Linked Notes is not the same as an investment in the Preference Shares
and does not confer any legal or beneficial interest in the Preference Shares or any Preference Share
Underlying or any voting rights, right to receive dividends or other rights that a holder of the Preference
Shares or any Preference Share Underlying may have. The Preference Share-Linked Notes are
unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the relevant Issuer.

Hedging activities of the Issuer and affiliates

The relevant Issuer or its affiliates may carry out hedging activities related to the Preference Share-Linked
Notes, including purchasing the Preference Shares and/or the Preference Share Underlying, but will not be
obliged to do so. Certain of the Issuer's affiliates may also purchase and sell the Preference Shares and/or
purchase and sell the Preference Share Underlying on a regular basis as part of their securities businesses.
Any of these activities could potentially affect the value of the Preference Share Underlying and,
accordingly, the value of the Preference Shares and the Preference Share-Linked Notes.

Program Securities linked to commaodities

Commodity markets are influenced by, among other things, changing supply and demand relationships,
weather, governmental, agricultural, commercial and trade programs and policies designed to influence
commodity prices, world political and economic events, changes in interest rates and factors affecting the
exchange(s) or quotation system(s) on which any such commodities may be traded.

Where a Program Security linked to a commodity references a futures contract, this reference should be
taken as if the futures contract had the specified commodity as the underlying commodity. Investments in
futures and options contracts involve additional risks including, without limitation, leverage (margin is
usually a percentage of the face value of the contract and exposure can be nearly unlimited).

A holder of a futures position may find such positions become illiquid because certain commodity
exchanges limit fluctuations in certain futures contract prices during a single day by regulations referred to
as "daily price fluctuation limits" or "daily limits". Under such daily limits during a single trading day no
trades may be executed at prices beyond the daily limits. Once the price of a contract for a particular future
has increased or decreased by an amount equal to the daily limit, positions in the future can neither be taken
nor liquidated unless traders are willing to effect trades at or within the limit. This could prevent a holder
from promptly liquidating unfavourable positions and subject it to substantial losses. Futures contract prices
in various commaodities occasionally have exceeded the daily limit for several consecutive days with little
or no trading. Similar occurrences could prevent the liquidation of unfavourable positions and subject an
investor in a Program Security linked to such contract prices to substantial losses.

36



Risk Factors Relating to the Program Securities

Commodity future prices reflect the expectations of the market players as to the future value of the
commodity and may not be consistent with the current prices of the relevant commaodity.

Risks related to CNY Program Securities
Renminbi is not a freely convertible currency at present.

The PRC government continues to regulate conversion between Renminbi and foreign currencies. The
People’s Bank of China ("PBOC") has established Renminbi clearing and settlement systems for certain
locations pursuant to settlement agreements relating to the clearing of Renminbi business between PBOC
and certain clearing banks. However, the current size of Renminbi and Renminbi denominated financial
assets outside the PRC remains limited, and its growth is subject to many constraints which are directly
affected by PRC laws and regulations on foreign exchange and may adversely affect the liquidity of CNY
Program Securities.

There is no assurance that the PRC government will continue to gradually liberalise control over cross-
border remittance of Renminbi in the future or that new regulations in the PRC will not be promulgated in
the future which have the effect of restricting or eliminating the remittance of Renminbi into or outside the
PRC. In the event that funds cannot be repatriated outside the PRC in Renminbi, this may affect the overall
availability of Renminbi outside the PRC and the ability of the Issuer to source Renminbi to finance its
obligations under the CNY Program Securities.

The limited availability of Renminbi outside the PRC may affect the liquidity of the CNY Program
Securities and the Issuer’s ability to source Renminbi on satisfactory terms to make payments in respect of
the CNY Program Securities.

Investment in CNY Program Securities is subject to exchange rate risks

The value of Renminbi against the Hong Kong Dollar and other foreign currencies fluctuates and is affected
by developments in or affecting the PRC, PBOC currency exchange policy, international political and
economic conditions and many other factors. All payments with respect to the CNY Program Securities will
be made in CNY, except in the case of CNY Inconvertibility, CNY Non-Transferability or CNY llliquidity
(as defined in Condition 23 (CNY Disruption Events) of the Terms and Conditions of the English Law Notes
(in respect of English Law Notes) and Condition 23 (CNY Disruption Events) of the Terms and Conditions
of the Warrants and Certificates (in respect of Warrants and Certificates)), in which case all payments and
settlement in CNYY will be made in accordance with the provisions of Condition 23 (CNY Disruption Events)
of the Terms and Conditions of the English Law Notes (in respect of English Law Notes) and Condition 23
(CNY Disruption Events) of the Terms and Conditions of the Warrants and Certificates (in respect of
Warrants and Certificates). As a result, the value of CNY payments may vary with the prevailing exchange
rates in the marketplace. If the value of CNY depreciates against the relevant currency, the value of the
investment in relevant currency will have declined. In the case of CNY Inconvertibility, CNY Non-
Transferability or CNY Illiquidity (as defined in Condition 23 (CNY Disruption Events) (in respect of the
English Law Notes) and Condition 23 (CNY Disruption Events) (in respect of Warrants and Certificates)),
such a decline may be very substantial.

Payments for the CNY Program Securities will only be made to investors in the manner specified in the CNY
Program Securities

All payments to investors in respect of the Program Securities will be made solely (i) for so long as the CNY
Program Securities are represented by a Registered Global Instrument held with the common depositary for
Clearstream Banking société anonyme and Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. or any alternative clearing system by
transfer to a CNY bank account maintained outside the PRC, or (ii) for so long as the CNY Program
Securities are in definitive form, by transfer to a CNY bank account maintained outside the PRC, in each
case in accordance with prevailing rules and regulations. The Issuer cannot be required to make payment
by any other means (including in any other currency or by transfer to a bank account in the PRC). In addition,
there can be no assurance that access to Renminbi for the purposes of making payments under the CNY
Program Securities or generally may remain or will not become restricted. If it becomes impossible to
convert Renminbi from/to another freely convertible currency, or transfer Renminbi between accounts in
the relevant offshore CNY center(s), or the general Renminbi exchange market in the relevant offshore CNY
center(s) becomes illiquid, any payment of Renminbi under the CNY Program Securities may be delayed
or all payments and settlement will be made in accordance with the Disruption Fallbacks described in
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Condition 23 (CNY Disruption Events) (in respect of the English Law Notes) or Condition 23 (CNY
Disruption Events) (in respect of Warrants and Certificates).

Effect of the liquidity of the Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor on Program Security pricing

An Issuer's and/or its Affiliates' hedging costs tend to be higher the less liquidity the Relevant Underlying
or Relevant Factor has or the greater the difference between the "buy"” and "sell" prices for the Relevant
Underlying, Relevant Factor or derivatives contracts referenced to the Relevant Underlying or Relevant
Factor. When quoting prices for the Program Securities, the Issuer and/or its Affiliates will factor in such
hedging costs and will pass them on to the Noteholders and Securityholders by incorporating them into the
"buy" and "sell" prices. Thus, Noteholders and Securityholders selling their Program Securities on an
exchange or on the over-the-counter market may be doing so at a price that is substantially lower than the
actual value of the Program Securities at the time of sale.

Fluctuations in value of a component of the Relevant Underlying

Fluctuations in the value of any one component of the Relevant Underlying may, where applicable, be offset
or intensified by fluctuations in the value of other components, which could adversely affect the value of
the Program Securities, the return on the Program Securities and the price at which the holder of such
Program Securities can sell such Program Securities.

Historical value of the Relevant Underlying

The historical value (if any) of the Relevant Underlying or the components of the Relevant Underlying does
not indicate their future performance. Holders of the Program Securities should be aware that the Relevant
Underlying or the components of the Relevant Underlying may perform differently than they have
historically, which could adversely affect the value of the Program Securities, the return on the Program
Securities and the price at which the holder of such Program Securities can sell such Program Securities.

Exchange rate risk on the components

Where the value of the components is determined in a different currency to the value of the Relevant
Underlying, investors may be exposed to exchange rate risk. In the event that exchange rates should become
fixed, or in the event of any devaluation or revaluation or imposition of exchange or other regulatory controls
or taxes, or in the event of other developments affecting any currency in connection with the components
of the Relevant Underlying, the investor will bear those risks, which may adversely impact the return on
and value of the Program Securities.

Risks relating to Program Securities linked to an index or indices

The Issuers may issue Notes with principal and/or interest, or Warrants and Certificates whose return is,
determined by reference to an index or indices.

Factors affecting the performance of indices may adversely affect the value of such Program Securities

Indices are comprised of a synthetic portfolio of shares, bonds, currency exchange rates, commaodities,
property or other assets, and as such, the performance of an index is dependent upon the performance of
components of such index, which may include interest rates, currency developments, political factors,
market factors such as the general trends in capital markets or broad based indices and (in the case of shares)
company-specific factors such as earnings position, market position, risk situation, shareholder structure
and distribution policy, as well as governmental regulatory actions, including, but not limited to, sanctions-
related actions by the U.S. or foreign governments. If an index does not perform as expected, this will
materially and adversely affect the value of Program Securities that reference indices.

Returns on such Program Securities do not reflect a direct investment in underlying shares or other assets
comprising the index

The return payable on Program Securities that reference indices may not reflect the return a potential
investor would realise if it actually owned the relevant assets comprising the components of the index or
owned a different form of interest in the relevant index. For example, if the components of the indices are
shares, holders will not receive any dividends paid or distributions made on those shares and will not
participate in the return on those dividends or distributions unless the relevant index takes such dividends
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into account for purposes of calculating the relevant level. Similarly, holders will not have any voting rights
in the underlying shares or any other assets which may comprise the components of the relevant index.
Accordingly, holders of Program Securities that reference indices as Relevant Underlying may receive a
lower payment upon redemption/settlement of such Program Securities than such holder would have
received if it had invested in the components of the index directly or other comparable instruments linked
to the index.

A change in the composition or discontinuance of an index could adversely affect the market value of the
Program Securities

The sponsor of any index can add, delete or substitute the components of such index or make other
methodological changes that could change the level of one or more components. The changing of
components of any index may affect the level of such index as a newly added component may perform
significantly worse or better than the component it replaces, which in turn may affect the payments made
by the relevant Issuer to the holders of Program Securities that reference indices. The sponsor of any such
index may also alter, discontinue or suspend calculation or dissemination of such index. Except where an
index is a proprietary index, the sponsor of an index will have no involvement in the offer and sale of the
Program Securities that reference that index and will have no obligation to any holder of such Program
Securities. Accordingly, the sponsor of an index may take any actions in respect of such index without
regard to the interests of the holder of the Program Securities, and any of these actions could adversely
affect the market value of Program Securities that reference indices.

Exposure to Index Modification, Index Cancellation, Index Disruption, Administrator/ Benchmark Event
and correction of index levels

The Determination Agent may in its reasonable discretion make certain determinations and adjustments, to
replace the original Relevant Underlying with another and/or to cause early redemption/settlement of the
Program Securities, any of which may be adverse to holders in connection with Index Modification, Index
Cancellation, Index Disruption and Administrator/Benchmark Event. The Determination Agent may
determine that the consequence of any such event is to make adjustments to the amounts payable by the
Issuer under the Program Securities, to make adjustments to the other terms and conditions of the Program
Securities, or to replace such index with another or to cause early redemption/settlement of the Program
Securities. The Determination Agent may (subject to the terms and conditions of the relevant Program
Securities) also amend the relevant index level due to corrections in the level reported by the index sponsor.
The consequences of such amendments could adversely affect the market value of Program Securities that
reference indices.

Program Securities linked to property indices

The Issuers may issue Notes with principal and/or interest, or Warrants and Certificates whose return is,
determined by reference to a residential or commercial property index or indices ("Property Indices").
Property Indices may only be a reference guide to a certain property market and may not be representative
of the relevant property market as a whole. The relevant Property Index may only measure the capital growth
component of property only and may not include any income return component. A Property Index may be
based on valuation data only and, as such, a Property Index may not necessarily reflect actual market prices
and may rely on the ability of the index provider to gather property valuations and conduct continuous, close
monitoring of such property valuations.

Property markets are illiquid and complex. The impact of price fluctuations in the property market may not
immediately be reflected in the relevant Property Index (if at all). Properties may only be valued on an
annual basis for the purposes of calculating the relevant Property Index and, as such, the level at which the
Property Index stands may not be representative of actual market prices or transactions in the relevant
property market. The provider of a Property Index may reserve the right to change the constituents of the
relevant Property Index and the methodology used in its calculation. The publication of the Property Index
may be delayed and/or subject to correction. Any of the foregoing may affect the return of the Program
Securities.

Program Securities linked to proprietary indices
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The Issuers may issue Notes with principal and/or interest, or Warrants and Certificates whose return is,
determined by reference to a “proprietary index”, where Morgan Stanley or a Morgan Stanley affiliate is
the owner and sponsor such an index.

A proprietary index is a notional, rules-based index comprising its component(s) and the level of such index
may go down as well as up, depending on the performance of the components and their effect on the strategy
that the proprietary index has been developed to reflect. There can be no assurance as to the future
performance of any such index, and the index level on any day may not reflect either its past performance
or its future performance. The strategy that any such index has been developed to reflect may not be
successful in achieving the investment objectives of any potential investor, and other strategies using the
components and alternative indices and benchmarks may perform better than such index. Any past
performance of a proprietary index (actual or simulated) is not an indication of its future performance.

Prospective investors in any Program Securities linked to a proprietary index should be familiar with
investments in the global financial and commodity markets, financial instruments and indices generally.

An investor in Program Securities linked to a proprietary index will have no rights in respect of the
proprietary index or any components of such proprietary index

The investment exposure provided by any proprietary index is notional or synthetic. Investors in Program
Securities will (1) have no legal or beneficial ownership interest in any proprietary index or any component
comprising a proprietary index (or components thereof) and therefore have no recourse to any such
component; (2) have no right to take delivery of any such component; (3) have no rights generally with
respect to any such component (where in relation to voting or otherwise); and (4) have no right to receive
dividends, distributions or other payments with respect to any such component.

A proprietary index may have a limited operating history and may perform in unanticipated ways

A proprietary index may be a relatively new strategy. Where limited historical performance data exists with
respect to the components referenced by such index and/or the index itself, any investment in respect of
which returns are linked to the performance of such an index or its components may involve greater risk
than an investment linked to returns generated by an investment strategy with a proven track record. While
a longer history of actual performance could provide more reliable information on which to assess the
validity of a strategy that a proprietary index is intended to reflect and on which to base an investment
decision, the fact that such an index and/or the relevant components are relatively new would not allow this.
There can be no guarantee or assurance that a proprietary index or its components will operate in a manner
consistent with the data available.

Where Morgan Stanley or an affiliate of Morgan Stanley is the sponsor of the proprietary index, the
sponsor hedging activity may affect the level of such index

By executing products linked to a proprietary index where Morgan Stanley or a Morgan Stanley affiliate is
the sponsor of such index, Morgan Stanley and/or its affiliates will have an exposure to such index and its
components. Morgan Stanley will take risk positions to hedge this exposure in its sole discretion and in a
principal capacity. Investors in any Program Securities linked to such an index will not have any rights in
respect of any Morgan Stanley hedge positions, including without limitation, any shares, futures, options,
commaodities or currencies. Morgan Stanley may execute its hedging activity by trading in the components
of any index at any time and this may have an adverse impact on the performance of a Proprietary Index.
Morgan Stanley’s hedging activity, and hence the size of such impact, may be linked to the amount of new
and outstanding products (including any Program Securities) linked to the relevant index at the relevant
time.

Additionally, Morgan Stanley may generate revenues if it executes its hedging activity at different levels
from those used to determine the value of a proprietary index. Such hedging activity could generate
significant returns to Morgan Stanley that will not be passed on to investors in Program Securities linked to
any such proprietary index.

Where a proprietary index is “actively managed”, the actions of the relevant index allocator may
adversely affect the performance and level of such index

Program Securities may be linked an “actively managed” proprietary index, where a third party “index
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allocator” is solely responsible for determining from time to time the selected constituents of such
proprietary index. The success or failure of an “actively managed” proprietary index or any constituent of
such index to achieve any investment or hedging objective or any particular performance is solely affected
by the abilities of, and determinations made by, the relevant index allocator and certain key individuals
employed by the relevant index allocator. There can be no assurance that the relevant index allocator will
be successful in its decision or the rebalancing of an “actively managed” proprietary index or generating
positive returns, and any such decision or rebalancing by the index allocator may cause such index to
perform in a worse manner than if such decision or rebalancing had not been made. Furthermore, the loss
of one of more such key individuals at the relevant index allocator may have a material adverse impact on
the performance and level of the relevant “actively managed” proprietary index. Any of the foregoing may
have a negative impact on the value of, and return under, the Program Securities linked to an “actively
managed” proprietary index.

Risk associated with estimating the price of the Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor if its domestic
market is closed while secondary trading in the Program Securities is open

If the Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor is traded on its domestic market during the opening hours for
secondary trading in the Program Securities by the Issuers or their Affiliates or any stock exchange on which
the Program Securities are listed, the price of the Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor is incorporated
into the price calculation for the Program Securities. In certain cases, however, the price of the Relevant
Underlying or Relevant Factor may need to be estimated if the Program Securities are traded at a time when
the market for the Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor is closed. In general, this problem could apply
to the Program Securities irrespective of the time at which they are traded because the Issuers and/or their
Affiliates currently offer off exchange trading in the Program Securities at times when the Relevant
Underlying or Relevant Factor is not traded on the local markets or stock exchanges. This problem applies
in particular to a Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor that is traded in time zones different from
European time zones. The same problem arises if the Program Securities are traded on days on which the
domestic market for the Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor is closed because of a public holiday. If
the Issuers and/or any of their Affiliates estimates the price of the Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor
when the domestic market is closed, its estimate may prove to be accurate, too high or too low within just a
few hours of the domestic market re-opening for trade in the Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor.
Correspondingly, the prices used by the Issuers and/or any of their Affiliates for the Program Securities
prior to the opening of business on the domestic market may subsequently prove to be too high or too low.
Holders of the Program Securities should be aware that where the estimated price of the Relevant
Underlying is too low, the secondary trading price of the Program Securities may be less than if the price of
the Relevant Underlying had not been estimated.

Market Disruption Event, Disrupted Day, Adjustments and Early Redemption or termination of Program
Securities

The Determination Agent may determine that a Market Disruption Event or a failure to open of an Exchange
or Related Exchange has occurred or exists on a relevant date of valuation, and any consequential
postponement of such date of valuation may have an adverse effect on the value of the Program Securities.

In addition the Determination Agent may make adjustments to the Program Securities to account for relevant
adjustments or events in relation to the Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor including, but not limited
to, determining a successor to the Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor or its sponsor (in the case of an
Index), or determining a successor or substitute futures contract (in the case of a Futures Contract). In
addition, in certain circumstances, the relevant Issuer may redeem or terminate the Program Securities early
following any such event. In this case, in relation to each Note, the relevant Issuer will pay an amount, if
any, determined as provided in the Conditions.

Prospective investors should review the Conditions to ascertain whether and how such provisions apply to
the Program Securities and what constitutes a Market Disruption Event or relevant adjustment event.

In making these determinations and adjustments, the Determination Agent is entitled to exercise substantial
discretion and may be subject to conflicts of interest. The Determination Agent is not required but has the
discretion to make adjustments (or to early redeem the Program Securities) with respect to each and every
corporate action.

Program Securities linked to the performance of funds
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The Issuers may issue Program Securities where the redemption amount or, if applicable, the interest amount
in relation to Fund-Linked Notes or the return, in relation to Fund-Linked Securities (together with the Fund-
Linked Notes, "Fund-Linked Program Securities") is linked to the performance of a unit, share or other
interest in a fund (each, a "Fund Interest") or a basket of Fund Interests. Such funds may include mutual
funds or any other types of fund in any jurisdiction, or any combination of the foregoing. Investments
offering direct or indirect exposure to the performance of funds are generally considered to be particularly
risky and may bear similar risks, including but not limited to, market risks in relation to a direct investment
in funds.

Prospective investors should note that payments on redemption or termination of Fund-Linked Program
Securities at maturity, expiration, early redemption or early termination may be postponed, in accordance
with the Conditions, up to any specified long stop date. If the specified long stop date is reached, for the
purposes of determining the Redemption Amount or any other such payment or settlement amounts, as
applicable, the affected fund interests may be deemed to have a zero value. Prospective investors should
also be aware that if one or more events occurs in relation to the Fund or any Fund Service Provider,
including insolvency of the Fund or Fund Service Provider, then where "Fund Event Unscheduled
Redemption™ or "Fund Event Unscheduled Termination” (as applicable) is specified in the applicable
Pricing Supplement, the relevant Issuer may, in its reasonable discretion, determine whether the Fund-
Linked Program Securities will continue or whether they will be redeemed or terminated on a date other
than the scheduled Maturity Date or Expiration Date (as applicable). If the relevant Issuer determines that
the Fund-Linked Program Securities will continue, this may result in the substitution of the affected Fund
Interest with other Fund Interests with similar characteristics or adjustments to the Conditions of the
Program Securities to account for the occurrence of the relevant event. These actions may have an adverse
effect on the return and risk profile of the relevant Fund-Linked Program Securities, and consequently, the
value of such Fund-Linked Program Securities and if the Fund-Linked Program Securities are redeemed or
terminated early the amount investors receive may be considerably less than their original investment and
may even be zero.

Neither the Issuer nor the Determination Agent has any obligation to monitor and/or determine if a Fund
Event has occurred at any time or to take any action in respect thereof. In certain circumstances, it may be
the case that if action were taken by the Issuer or the Determination Agent at a different time or at all,
amounts due to holders or the terms of any other adjustment made to the Program Securities would have
resulted in a higher return to investors.

The risks associated with investing in Fund-Linked Program Securities are similar to the risks attached to a
direct investment in the underlying fund or funds. There are substantial risks in directly or indirectly
investing in funds including, without limitation, the risks set out below. Prospective investors should note
that references to funds below can refer both to the funds referenced in any Fund-Linked Program Securities
and also to any funds in which any of those funds invests its assets from time to time:

Investments risks that prospective investors should be aware of include the following:
1. different types of funds are subject to differing levels of regulatory supervision.

2. funds may have varying restrictions on leverage. Leverage presents the potential for a higher rate
of return but also increases the volatility of the fund and increases the risk of a total loss of the
amount invested.

3. funds may have differing investment restrictions and some funds may invest in assets which are
illiquid or difficult to transfer. This may have an effect on the realisation of such assets and in turn,
the value and performance of the fund. In addition, a fund's assets or investments may be
concentrated in a few markets, countries, industries, commodities, sectors of an economy or
issuers. If so, adverse movements in a particular market, country, industry, commodity, economy
or industry or in the value of the securities of a particular issuer could have a severely negative
effect on the value of such a fund. In addition, a fund may use a single advisor or employ a single
strategy, which could mean a lack of diversification and higher risk.

4. substantial redemptions by holders of Fund Interests in a fund within a short period of time could

require the fund's investment manager(s) and/or advisor(s) to liquidate positions more rapidly than
would otherwise be desirable, which could adversely affect the value of the fund's assets.
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5. the performance of a fund will be heavily dependent on the performance of investments selected
by its advisors or investment managers and the skill and expertise of such fund service providers
in making successful and profitable investment decisions. Such skill and expertise may be
concentrated in a number of the advisor's or investment manager's key personnel. Should these key
personnel leave or become no longer associated with the fund's advisor or investment manager, the
value or profitability of the fund's investments may be adversely affected as a result.

Program Securities linked to the performance of futures contracts

The Issuers may issue Notes, Warrants or Certificates, where the redemption amount or, if applicable, the
interest amount ("Futures Contract-Linked Notes", "Futures Contract Securities" and “Futures
Contract Basket Securities”, as applicable) is linked to the performance of a futures contract (a "Futures
Contract") or a basket of Futures Contracts. The underlying of such Futures Contracts may include equity
indices (including equity indices giving exposure to dividends paid by the constituent companies or the
volatility of those constituent companies), single stocks, foreign exchange rates, bonds, or other types of
underlying asset(s), contracts or property. It is important that an investor in Program Securities linked to the
performance of futures contracts understands the contract specification of the relevant Futures Contract(s),
including the applicable underlying(s) and term for which exposure is given.

The risks associated with investing in Futures Contract-Linked Notes, Futures Contract Securities or Futures
Contract Basket Securities are similar to the risks attached to a direct investment in the relevant futures
contract(s). There are substantial risks in directly or indirectly investing in futures contracts including,
without limitation, the risks set out below.

Investment risks that prospective investors should be aware of include the following:

€)] The value of the futures contract(s) underlying the Program Securities may vary over time and may
increase or decrease by reference to a variety of factors which include the factors affecting any
underlying of the futures contract(s) such as:

e the expectations of performance in relation to the underlying of the futures contract or the
constituent assets of any index or indices underlying the Futures Contract from time to time;

¢ inthe case of an index underlying the Futures Contract, any changes in the constituents of that
index;

e market interest and yield rates;
e economic, political, structural supply and demand and macro-economic factors;
e changes in applicable law and regulation; and

e in the case of Program Securities linked to dividend futures contracts (the value of which
typically tracks dividends paid by the constituent companies of the underlying equity index
during a specified time period), the dividend policy of the relevant constituent companies of
the related underlying index and the terms as to which dividends are relevant realised
dividends (which often exclude special or extraordinary dividends). Investors should be aware
that such constituent companies may pay reduced relevant dividends or no such dividends in
respect of the relevant contract period or dividends that may bear no relation to dividends paid
during a prior contract period.

In addition, the value of future contract(s) also depends on factors relating to the relevant futures
contract itself, such as the time remaining to the final settlement date, and the liquidity of such
futures contract(s), the contract specification and the terms of the relevant underlying(s).

Prior to purchasing Futures Contract-Linked Notes, Futures Contract Securities or Futures Contract
Basket Securities, prospective investors should ensure they are familiar with investments in global
capital markets and with derivatives generally, and carefully consider such factors, as the value of
the Futures Contract(s) will affect the return on the Program Securities.
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(b) The Program Securities give rise to obligations of the Issuer and will not give rise to any obligations
or rights in respect of the Futures Contract(s) or any underlying(s) of the Futures Contract(s). The
return on investment may have been higher if made in the Futures Contract(s) or underlying(s) of
the Futures Contract(s) rather than by purchasing the Program Securities.

(©) The performance of a similar futures contract or its underlying(s) over a prior contract period will
not necessarily be indicative of the performance of the relevant Futures Contract(s) to which the Program
Securities relate.

The regulation and reform of “benchmarks” may adversely affect the value of and return on Program
Securities linked to or referencing such “benchmarks”

Regulation (EU) 2016/1011 on indices used as benchmarks in financial instruments and financial contracts
or to measure the performance of investment funds (the “EU Benchmark Regulation”) is a key element of
the ongoing regulatory reform of benchmarks in the EU and has applied since 1 January 2018. The EU
Benchmark Regulation has been amended by Regulation (EU) 2019/2089 as regards EU Climate Transition
Benchmarks, EU Paris-aligned Benchmarks and sustainability-related disclosures, by Regulation (EU)
2019/2175 and by Regulation (EU) 2021/168, the latter of which introduced new powers for regulators to
mandate one or more replacement rates for critical or systemically important benchmarks in certain limited
circumstances and a limited exemption for certain foreign exchange rates.

Following the end of the Brexit transitional period at 11.00 p.m (London time) on 31 December 2020 the
EU Benchmark Regulation in its then current form was saved into UK domestic law subject to a number of
modifications (the “UK Benchmark Regulation” and, together with the EU Benchmark Regulation, the
“Benchmark Regulations”).

In addition to so-called “critical benchmarks” other interest rates, foreign exchange rates and certain indices,
will in most cases be within scope of the EU Benchmark Regulation as "benchmarks"” where they are used
to determine the amount payable under, or the value of, certain financial instruments (including Program
Securities listed on an EU (in the case of the EU Benchmark Regulation) or UK (in the case of the UK
Benchmark Regulation) regulated market or multilateral trading facility (“MTF”)), and in a number of other
circumstances.

Each Benchmark Regulation applies to the provision of benchmarks, the contribution of input data to a
benchmark and the use of a benchmark within the EU (in the case of the EU Benchmark Regulation) or the
UK (in the case of the UK Benchmark Regulation). Among other things, it (i) requires benchmark
administrators to be authorised or registered (or, if not based in the EU (in the case of the EU Benchmark
Regulation) or UK (in the case of the UK Benchmark Regulation), to be subject to an equivalent regime or
otherwise recognised or endorsed) and (ii) prevents certain uses by supervised entities of “benchmarks”
provided by administrators that are not authorised or registered (or, if not based in the EU (in the case of the
EU Benchmark Regulation) or UK (in the case of the UK Benchmark Regulation), not deemed equivalent
or recognised or endorsed), subject in each case to transitional provisions for benchmarks provided by third-
country benchmark administrators.

The Benchmark Regulation could have a material impact on any Program Securities linked to or referencing
a “benchmark”. For example:

e arate or index which is a “benchmark” may not be used in certain ways by a supervised entity
if (subject to applicable transitional provisions) its administrator does not obtain authorisation
or registration (or, if a non-EU or non-UK (as the case may be) entity, does not satisfy the
“equivalence” conditions and is not “recognised” pending an equivalence decision). If the
benchmark administrator does not obtain or maintain (as applicable) such authorisation or
registration or, if a non-EU entity, “equivalence” is not available and it is not recognised, then
the Program Securities may be redeemed prior to maturity; and

e the methodology or other terms of the “benchmark” could be changed in order to comply with
the requirements of the relevant Benchmark Regulation, and such changes could reduce or
increase the rate or level or affect the volatility of the published rate or level, and (depending
on the terms of the particular Program Securities) could lead to adjustments to the terms of the
Program Securities as the Determination Agent deems necessary or appropriate.
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Any of the international or national reforms, or the general increased regulatory scrutiny of “benchmarks”,
could increase the costs and risks of administering or otherwise participating in the setting of a “benchmark”
and complying with any such regulations or requirements. Such factors may have the following effects on
certain “benchmarks”: (i) discourage market participants from continuing to administer or contribute to the
“benchmark”; (ii) trigger changes in the rules or methodologies used in the “benchmark” and/or (iii) lead to
the disappearance of the “benchmark”. Any of the above changes or any other consequential changes as a
result of international or national reforms or other initiatives or investigations, could have a material adverse
effect on the value of and return on any Program Securities linked to or referencing a “benchmark” and the
Determination Agent may be entitled to make corresponding adjustments to the conditions of the Program
Securities.

Reform of EURIBOR and Other Interest Rate Index and Equity, Commodity and Foreign Exchange
Rate Index “Benchmarks”

The Euro Interbank Offered Rate (“EURIBOR”) and other indices which are deemed “benchmarks” are
the subject of recent national, international and other regulatory guidance and proposals for reform. Some
of these reforms are already effective while others are still to be implemented. These reforms may cause
such “benchmarks” to perform differently than in the past, or to disappear entirely, or have other
consequences which cannot be predicted. Any such consequence could have a material adverse effect on
any Program Securities linked to a “benchmark”.

Any of the international, national or other proposals for reform or the general increased regulatory scrutiny
of “benchmarks” could increase the costs and risks of administering or otherwise participating in the setting
of a “benchmark” and complying with any such regulations or requirements. Such factors may have the
effect of discouraging market participants from continuing to administer or participate in certain
“benchmarks,” trigger changes in the rules or methodologies used in certain “benchmarks” or lead to the
disappearance of certain “benchmarks”. The disappearance of a “benchmark” or changes in the manner of
administration of a “benchmark” could have materially adverse consequences in relation to securities linked
to such “benchmark”.

Swap Rates may be materially amended or discontinued

EURIBOR and other "IBORs" are used as the floating leg in the calculation of the EUR Swap Rate and
other swap rates (collectively, the "Swap Rates", and each a "Swap Rate") and these may be used as CMS
Reference Rates, Underlying CMS Reference Rates, other Relevant Rates Benchmarks or other Relevant
Underlying Rates Benchmarks, in respect of the Program Securities (as applicable). Consequently, if
EURIBOR and/or other relevant "IBORs" are discontinued, it may not be possible to calculate the relevant
Swap Rate(s), and the Swap Rate may be discontinued. The occurrence of these events may trigger the
applicable fallbacks that are contained in Conditions 6.18 (Relevant Rates Benchmark Discontinuance or
Prohibition on Use) to 6.20 (General Fallback Arrangements) and/or Conditions 19.9 (Relevant Underlying
Rates Benchmark Discontinuance or Prohibition on Use) to 19.11 (General Fallback Arrangements) of the
terms and conditions of the English law Notes, or Conditions 18.9 (Relevant Underlying Rates Benchmark
Discontinuance or Prohibition on Use) to 18.11 (General Fallback Arrangements) of the terms and
conditions of the Warrants and Certificates (as applicable) having the consequences and risks described
below.

EURIBOR, CMS Reference Rates, SOFR, SONIA, €STR, SARON, TONA and other benchmark rate
discontinuance or prohibition on use may lead to adjustments to the terms of the Program Securities or
an early redemption or termination of the Program Securities

Fallback arrangements under (1) English Law Notes (A) where (i) the Relevant Rates Benchmark is other
than SOFR or a CMS Reference Rate, and (ii) the provisions of Condition 6.18 (Relevant Rates Benchmark
Discontinuance or Prohibition on Use) are applicable or (B) where (i) the Relevant Underlying Rates
Benchmark is other than SOFR or a CMS Underlying Reference Rate, and (ii) the provisions of Condition
19.9 (Relevant Underlying Rates Benchmark Discontinuance or Prohibition on Use) are applicable; or (2)
Warrants or Certificates where (i) the Relevant Underlying Rates Benchmark is other than SOFR or a CMS
Underlying Reference Rate, and (ii) the provisions of Condition 18.9 (Relevant Underlying Rates
Benchmark Discontinuance or Prohibition on Use) are applicable

Where any variable by reference to which interest (in the case of Notes only) or amounts payable on
redemption or settlement is payable under the Program Securities is an index, benchmark, rate or price
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source which is specified in the Conditions as a “Relevant Rates Benchmark” or “Relevant Underlying
Rates Benchmark”, the administrator or sponsor (or the Relevant Rates Benchmark or Relevant Underlying
Rate Benchmark, as the case may be) may be required to be authorised, registered, recognised, endorsed or
otherwise included in an official register in order for the Issuer, the Determination Agent or the Calculation
Agent to be permitted to use the Relevant Rates Benchmark or Relevant Underlying Rate Benchmark (as
applicable) and perform their respective obligations under the Notes. If the Determination Agent determines
that such a requirement applies to the administrator or sponsor (or the Relevant Rates Benchmark) but it has
not been satisfied, and if the applicable Pricing Supplement specifies that the provisions of Condition 6.18
or Condition 19.9 of the terms and conditions of the English law Notes, or Condition 18.9 of the terms and
conditions of the Warrants and Certificates (each such Condition headed Relevant Rates Benchmark
Discontinuance or Prohibition on Use) are applicable, then an “Administrator/Benchmark Event” will
occur.

In order to address the risk of an Administrator/Benchmark Event occurring and the risk of discontinuance
of reference rates, the Conditions include certain fallback provisions. These provisions apply to “Relevant
Rates Benchmarks” and “Relevant Underlying Rates Benchmarks” (which will include EURIBOR, SONIA,
€STR, SARON and TONA and other similar interbank rates). Unless otherwise specified in the applicable
Pricing Supplement, where ISDA Determination is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement as the
manner in which the Rate of Interest or other applicable rate is to be determined, the fallbacks described
below will only apply after application of any ISDA Bespoke Fallbacks specified in the relevant Floating
Rate Option to apply and the application of such ISDA Bespoke Fallbacks fails to provide a means of
determining the relevant Floating Rate.

The fallback provisions will be triggered if the Determination Agent determines that (i) the administrator or
regulatory supervisor (or other applicable regulatory body) in connection with such Relevant Rates
Benchmark or Relevant Underlying Rates Benchmarks (as applicable) announces that the administrator has
ceased or will cease permanently or indefinitely to provide such Relevant Rates Benchmark or Relevant
Underlying Rates Benchmarks, as the case may be, and there is no successor administrator that will continue
to provide the Relevant Rates Benchmark or Relevant Underlying Rates Benchmarks or (ii) unless otherwise
specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, an Administrator/Benchmark Event occurs in relation to
such Relevant Rates Benchmark or Relevant Underlying Rates Benchmarks, as the case may be.

Following the occurrence of any of these events the Determination Agent may replace the Relevant Rates
Benchmark or Relevant Underlying Rates Benchmarks with any “Alternative Pre-nominated Reference
Rate” which has been specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement or if no Alternative Pre-nominated
Reference Rate is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, with an alternative rate that is consistent
with accepted market practice (the Alternative Pre-nominated Reference Rate or any such other alternative
rate, the “Alternative Rate™). If an Alternative Rate is used then the Determination Agent may also make
other adjustments to the Notes, including to the new Alternative Rate and to the Margin, which are consistent
with accepted market practice for the use of such Alternative Rate for debt obligations such as the Notes. If
the Determination Agent is unable to identify an Alternative Rate and determine the necessary adjustments
to the terms of the Notes then the Issuer may redeem the Notes. The replacement of the Relevant Rates
Benchmark or Relevant Underlying Rates Benchmarks, as the case may be, by an Alternative Rate and the
making of other adjustments to the relevant Program Securities and other determinations, decisions or
elections that may be made under the terms of such Program Securities in connection with the replacement
of a Relevant Rates Benchmark or Relevant Underlying Rates Benchmarks (as applicable) could adversely
affect the value of the relevant Program Securities, the return on such Program Securities and the price at
which the holder can sell such Program Securities. Any early redemption or termination of the relevant
Program Securities will result in the holder losing any future return on such Program Securities and may
result in the holder incurring a loss on its investment in the relevant Program Securities.

Any determination or decision of the Determination Agent described above will be made in the
Determination Agent’s discretion (in some cases after consultation with the Issuer).

Potential investors in any Program Securities that reference a Relevant Rates Benchmark or Relevant
Underlying Rates Benchmarks (other than SOFR for the purposes of this risk factor) should be aware that
(i) the composition and characteristics of the Alternative Rate will not be the same as those of the Relevant
Rates Benchmark or Relevant Underlying Rates Benchmark which it replaces, the Alternative Rate will not
be the economic equivalent of the Relevant Rates Benchmark or Relevant Underlying Rates Benchmark
that it replaces, there can be no assurance that the Alternative Rate will perform in the same way as the
Relevant Rates Benchmark or Relevant Underlying Rates Benchmark that it replaces would have at any
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time and there is no guarantee that the Alternative Rate will be a comparable substitute for the Relevant
Rates Benchmark or Relevant Underlying Rates Benchmark which it replaces, (each of which means that
the replacement of the Relevant Rates Benchmark or Relevant Underlying Rates Benchmark, as the case
may be, by the Alternative Rate could adversely affect the value of the relevant Program Securities, the
return on such Program Securities and the price at which the holder can sell such Program Securities), (ii)
any failure of the Alternative Rate to gain market acceptance could adversely affect the relevant Program
Securities, (iii) the Alternative Rate may have a very limited history and the future performance of the
Alternative Rate cannot be predicted based on historical performance, (iv) the secondary trading market for
Program Securities linked to the Alternative Rate may be limited and (v) the administrator of the Alternative
Rate may make changes that could change the value of the Alternative Rate or discontinue the Alternative
Rate and has no obligation to consider the holder’s interests in doing so.

Fallback arrangements under (a) English Law Notes (b) Warrants or Certificates and (c) New York Law
Notes where the Relevant Rates Benchmark, Relevant Underlying Rates Benchmark or the Base Rate (as
applicable) is SOFR: If SOFR is discontinued, any Program Securities referencing SOFR will bear interest
or otherwise pay amounts determined by reference to a different base rate, which could adversely affect the
value of the the relevant Program Securities, the return on such Program Securities and the price at which
the holder can sell such Program Securities; there is no guarantee that any Benchmark Replacement will
be a comparable substitute for SOFR.

If the Issuer or its designee determines that a Benchmark Transition Event and its related Benchmark
Replacement Date have occurred in respect of SOFR (in the case of Program Securities referencing SOFR)
or the Base Rate (with the applicable Index Maturity) (as applicable), then the relevant rate under the
Program Securities will no longer be determined by reference to SOFR, but instead will be determined by
reference to a different base rate, which will be a different benchmark than SOFR, plus a spread adjustment,
which is referred to as a “Benchmark Replacement”, as further described in the relevant terms and
conditions.

If a particular Benchmark Replacement or Benchmark Replacement Adjustment cannot be determined, then
the next available Benchmark Replacement or Benchmark Replacement Adjustment will apply. These
replacement rates and adjustments may be selected, recommended or formulated by (i) the Relevant
Governmental Body, (ii) ISDA or (iii) in certain circumstances, the Issuer or its designee. In addition, the
terms of the relevant Program Securities expressly authorize the Issuer or its designee to make Benchmark
Replacement Conforming Changes with respect to, among other things, changes to the definition of “interest
period” or “reference period” (as applicable), timing and frequency of determining rates and making
payments of interest and/or principal, and other administrative matters. The determination of a Benchmark
Replacement, the calculation of amounts payable under the Program Securities by reference to a Benchmark
Replacement (including the application of a Benchmark Replacement Adjustment), any implementation of
Benchmark Replacement Conforming Changes and any other determinations, decisions or elections that
may be made under the terms of the relevant Program Securities in connection with a Benchmark Transition
Event could adversely affect the value of such Program Securities, the return on such Program Securities
and the price at which the holder can sell such Program Securities.

Any determination, decision or election described above will be made in the Issuer’s or its designee’s sole
discretion.

Potential investors in any Program Securities that reference SOFR should be aware that (i) the composition
and characteristics of the Benchmark Replacement will not be the same as those of SOFR, the Benchmark
Replacement will not be the economic equivalent of SOFR, there can be no assurance that the Benchmark
Replacement will perform in the same way as SOFR would have at any time and there is no guarantee that
the Benchmark Replacement will be a comparable substitute for SOFR (each of which means that a
Benchmark Transition Event could adversely affect the value of the relevant Program Securities, the return
on such Program Securities and the price at which the holder can sell such Program Securities), (ii) any
failure of the Benchmark Replacement to gain market acceptance could adversely affect the relevant
Program Securities, (iii) the Benchmark Replacement may have a very limited history and the future
performance of the Benchmark Replacement cannot be predicted based on historical performance, (iv) the
secondary trading market for Program Securities linked to the Benchmark Replacement may be limited and
(v) the administrator of the Benchmark Replacement may make changes that could change the value of the
Benchmark Replacement or discontinue the Benchmark Replacement and has no obligation to consider the
holder’s interests in doing so.
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See also “Risk Factors Relating to the Program Securities—Reform of EURIBOR and Other Interest Rate
Index and Equity, Commodity and Foreign Exchange Rate Index “Benchmarks” and “—EURIBOR, SONIA,
€STR, SARON, TONA and other interest rate benchmark discontinuance or prohibition on use may lead to
adjustments to the terms of the Program Securities or an early redemption or termination of the Program
Securities” above.

Fallback arrangements under English Law Notes, or Warrants or Certificates, where the Relevant Rates
Benchmark is a CMS Reference Rate or where the Relevant Underlying Rates Benchmark is a CMS
Underlying Reference Rate (as applicable): If the CMS Reference Rate or CMS Underlying Reference Rate
is discontinued, any Program Securities referencing that CMS Reference Rate or CMS Underlying
Reference Rate (as applicable) will bear interest (in the case of Notes only) or otherwise pay amounts,
determined by reference to a different base rate, which could adversely affect the value of the relevant
Program Securities, the return on the Program Securities and the price at which the holder can sell such
Program Securities; there is no guarantee that any Benchmark Replacement will be a comparable substitute
for the current CMS Reference Rate or CMS Underlying Reference Rate (as applicable)

If the applicable Pricing Supplement specifies that the provisions of (a) Condition 6.18 (Relevant Rates
Benchmark Discontinuance or Prohibition on Use) of the terms and conditions of the English law Notes or
(b) Condition 19.9 of the terms and conditions of the English law Notes or Condition 18.9 of the terms and
conditions of the Warrants and Certificates (each such Condition headed “Relevant Underlying Rates
Benchmark Discontinuance or Prohibition on Use”) are applicable to the relevant Program Securities and
an Index Cessation Event and its related Index Cessation Effective Date (as each term is defined in Condition
6.19 (CMS Reference Rate - Effect of Index Cessation Event) of the terms and conditions of the English law
Notes, Condition 19.10 of the terms and conditions of the English law Notes and Condition 18.10 of the
terms and conditions of the Warrants and Certificates (each such Condition headed “CMS Underlying
Reference Rate - Effect of Index Cessation Event”)) have occurred with respect to the applicable tenor of
the CMS Reference Rate or CMS Underlying Reference Rate (as applicable), then the relevant rate on the
Notes will no longer be determined by reference to the CMS Reference Rate. Instead the rate will be
determined by reference to a different base rate, which will be a different benchmark than the initial or then
current CMS Reference Rate or CMS Underlying Reference Rate (as applicable), which is referred to as a
"Benchmark Replacement,” plus any adjustment spread (which may be positive, negative or zero), all as
further described in Condition 6.19 (CMS Reference Rate - Effect of Index Cessation Event) of the terms
and conditions of the English law Notes, Condition 19.10 of the terms and conditions of the English law
Notes and Condition 18.10 of the terms and conditions of the Warrants and Certificates (each such Condition
headed “CMS Underlying Reference Rate - Effect of Index Cessation Event”), as applicable). In such a case,
in the first instance, the rate will be determined based on any alternative reference rate, index or benchmark
that is specified for such purpose in the applicable Pricing Supplement (an “Alternative Pre-nominated
Reference Rate”). In the absence of an Alternative Pre-nominated Reference Rate, the rate will be
determined based on (1) the alternate rate that has been selected or recommended by the relevant
governmental body or agency with jurisdiction over the then current CMS Reference Rate for the applicable
index maturity, or (2) if no such rate of interest has been selected or recommended by such a governmental
body or agency, the alternate rate of interest that has been selected by the Determination Agent as the
replacement for the then-current CMS Reference Rate for the applicable index maturity giving due
consideration to any industry-accepted rate of interest as a replacement for the then-current CMS Reference
Rate or CMS Underlying Reference Rate (as applicable) denominated in the Index Currency at such time,
including any alternate rate recommended by the International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc. or
any successor thereto There can be no assurance that an alternative rate to the CMS Reference Rate or CMS
Underlying Reference Rate (as applicable) will be selected or recommended by a governmental body or
agency with the consequence that the replacement rate will be selected by the Determination Agent.

In addition, the relevant terms of the Program Securities expressly authorise the Determination Agent or its
designee to make Benchmark Replacement Conforming Changes with respect to, among other things,
changes to the definition of "interest period" or “reference period” (as applicable), timing and frequency of
determining rates and making payments of interest and/or principal, and other administrative matters. The
determination of a Benchmark Replacement, the calculation of amounts payable under the Program
Securities by reference to a Benchmark Replacement (including the determination by the Determination
Agent of any “adjustment spread” that will be added or subtracted from the Benchmark Replacement), any
implementation of Benchmark Replacement Conforming Changes and any other determinations, decisions,
selections or elections that may be made under the terms of the relevant Program Securities in connection
with a Benchmark Transition Event could adversely affect the value of such Program Securities, the return
on such Program Securities and the price at which the holder can sell such Program Securities.
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Potential investors in any Program Securities that reference one or more CMS Reference Rates or CMS
Underlying Reference Rates (as applicable) should be aware that (i) the composition and characteristics of
the Benchmark Replacement will not be the same as those of the initial or then current CMS Reference
Rate, the Benchmark Replacement will not be the economic equivalent of the initial or then current CMS
Reference Rate or CMS Underlying Reference Rate (as applicable), there can be no assurance that the
Benchmark Replacement will perform in the same way as such initial or then current CMS Reference Rate
or CMS Underlying Reference Rate would have at any time and there is no guarantee that the Benchmark
Replacement will be a comparable substitute for such initial or then current CMS Reference Rate or CMS
Underlying Reference Rate (each of which means that an Index Cessation Event could adversely affect the
value of the relevant Program Securities, the return on such Program Securities and the price at which the
holder can sell such Program Securities), (ii) any failure of the Benchmark Replacement to gain market
acceptance could adversely affect the relevant Program Securities, (iii) the Benchmark Replacement may
have a very limited history and the future performance of the Benchmark Replacement cannot be predicted
based on historical performance, (iv) the secondary trading market for Program Securities linked to the
Benchmark Replacement may be limited and (v) the administrator of the Benchmark Replacement may
make changes that could change the value of the Benchmark Replacement or discontinue the Benchmark
Replacement and has no obligation to consider the holder's interests in doing so. If the implementation of
any Benchmark Replacement or Benchmark Replacement Conforming Changes results in a calculation of
the CMS Reference Rate or CMS Underlying Reference Rate (as applicable) that is not consistent with
market practice as determined by the Determination Agent, the Issuer may, in its reasonable discretion,
redeem or terminate the Program Securities as of any later date.

Any determination, decision, selection or election described above that may be made by the Issuer, the
Determination Agent or their respective designees will be made in such person’s sole discretion.

See also the risk factors entitled “Risk Factors— Reform of EURIBOR and Other Interest Rate Index and
Equity, Commodity and Foreign Exchange Rate Index “Benchmarks” above.

Fallback arrangements - general

The application of any of these fallbacks may adversely affect the value of the holder’s investment in the
relevant Program Securities.

If (2) none of the fallbacks described above in “Fallback arrangements under (1) English Law Notes where
(A) (i) the Relevant Rates Benchmark is other than SOFR or a CMS Reference Rate, (ii) the provisions of
Condition 6.18 (Relevant Rates Benchmark Discontinuance or Prohibition on Use) are applicable” or (B)
where (i) the Relevant Underlying Rates Benchmark is other than SOFR or a CMS Underlying Reference
Rate, and (ii) the provisions of Condition 19.9 (Relevant Rates Benchmark Discontinuance or Prohibition
on Use) are applicable; or (2) Warrants or Certificates where (i) the Relevant Underlying Rates Benchmark
is other than SOFR or a CMS Underlying Reference Rate, and (ii) the provisions of Condition 18.9 (Relevant
Underlying Rates Benchmark Discontinuance or Prohibition on Use) are applicable, “Fallback
arrangements under (a) English Law Notes (b) Warrants or Certificates and (c) New York Law Notes where
the Relevant Rates Benchmark, Relevant Underlying Rates Benchmark or the Base Rate (as applicable) is
SOFR: If SOFR is discontinued, any Program Securities referencing SOFR will bear interest or otherwise
pay amounts determined by reference to a different base rate, which could adversely affect the value of the
the relevant Program Securities, the return on such Program Securities and the price at which the holder
can sell such Program Securities; there is no guarantee that any Benchmark Replacement will be a
comparable substitute for SOFR” or “Fallback arrangements under English Law Notes, or Warrants or
Certificates, where the Relevant Rates Benchmark is a CMS Reference Rate or where the Relevant
Underlying Rates Benchmark is a CMS Underlying Reference Rate (as applicable): If the CMS Reference
Rate or CMS Underlying Reference Rate is discontinued, any Program Securities referencing that CMS
Reference Rate or CMS Underlying Reference Rate (as applicable) will bear interest (in the case of Notes
only) or otherwise pay amounts, determined by reference to a different base rate, which could adversely
affect the value of the relevant Program Securities, the return on the Program Securities and the price at
which the holder can sell such Program Securities; there is no guarantee that any Benchmark Replacement
will be a comparable substitute for the current CMS Reference Rate or CMS Underlying Reference Rate (as
applicable)” applies; and (b) EURIBOR, SONIA, €STR, SARON or TONA has been permanently
discontinued,, the Determination Agent will use, as a substitute for EURIBOR, SONIA, €STR, SARON or
TONA (as the case may be), and for each future Interest Determination Date or Underlying Rate
Determination Date (as applicable), the alternative reference rate selected by the central bank, reserve bank,
monetary authority or any similar institution (including any committee or working group thereof) in the
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jurisdiction of the applicable index currency that is consistent with accepted market practice. The
Determination Agent will also make other adjustments to the Program Securities, including to the new rate
and to the Margin or Spread, which are consistent with accepted market practice for the use of such
alternative rate for instruments such as the Program Securities. However, in the case of EURIBOR only, if
the Determination Agent determines that no such alternative rate exists on the relevant date, it will make a
determination of an alternative rate as a substitute for EURIBOR, for instruments such as the Program
Securities, as well as other adjustments to the Program Securities, including to the new rate and to the
Margin or Spread, that is consistent with accepted market practice.

Unless otherwise specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, where ISDA Determination is
specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement as the manner in which the Rate of Interest or the
Underlying Rate (as applicable) is to be determined, the fallbacks described above will only apply after
application of any ISDA Bespoke Fallbacks specified in the relevant Floating Rate Option to apply and
the application of such ISDA Bespoke Fallbacks fails to provide a means of determining the relevant
Floating Rate.

The replacement of EURIBOR, SONIA, €STR, SARON or TONA by an alternative rate and the making of
other adjustments to the Notes and other determinations, decisions or elections that may be made under the
terms of the relevant Program Securities in connection with the replacement of EURIBOR, SONIA, €STR,
SARON or TONA could adversely affect the value of the such Programe Securities, the return on such
Programe Securities and the price at which the holder can sell such Programe Securities.

Any determination or decision described above will be made in the Determination Agent’s discretion (after
consultation with the Issuer).

Potential investors in any Programe Securities that reference EURIBOR, SONIA, €STR, SARON or TONA
should be aware that (i) the composition and characteristics of the alternative rate will not be the same as
those of the Relevant Rates Benchmark, Relevant Underlying Rates Benchmark or Base Rate (as applicable)
which it replaces, the alternative rate will not be the economic equivalent of the Relevant Rates Benchmark,
Relevant Underlying Rates Benchmark or Base Rate (as applicable) that it replaces, there can be no
assurance that the alternative rate will perform in the same way as the Relevant Rates Benchmark, Relevant
Underlying Rates Benchmark or Base Rate (as applicable) that it replaces would have at any time and there
is no guarantee that the alternative rate will be a comparable substitute for the Relevant Rates Benchmark,
Relevant Underlying Rates Benchmark or Base Rate (as applicable) which it replaces, (each of which means
that the replacement of the Relevant Rates Benchmark, Relevant Underlying Rates Benchmark or Base Rate
(as applicable) by the alternative rate could adversely affect the value of the relevant Program Securities,
the return on such Program Securities and the price at which the holder can sell such Program Securities),
(ii) any failure of the alternative rate to gain market acceptance could adversely affect such Program
Securities, (iii) the alternative rate may have a very limited history and the future performance of the
alternative rate cannot be predicted based on historical performance, (iv) the secondary trading market for
Program Securities linked to the alternative rate may be limited and (v) the administrator of the alternative
rate may make changes that could change the value of the alternative rate or discontinue the alternative rate
and has no obligation to consider the holder’s interests in doing so.

ISDA Determination and Fallbacks

In the case where ISDA Determination is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement as the manner in
which the Rate of Interest or the Underlying Rate (as applicable) is to be determined, and the application of
any ISDA Bespoke Fallbacks specified in the relevant Floating Rate Option results in a replacement of,
modification to, or change in the method of calculating, the Floating Rate (or the index, benchmark or other
price source that is referred to in the Floating Rate Option), the Determination Agent may, after consultation
with the Issuer, determine any adjustments to the Floating Rate and the Margin (including any adjustment
spread) as well as the applicable Business Day Convention, Interest Determination Dates (or any other rate
fixing dates) and related provisions and definitions of the relevant Program Securities, in each case that are
consistent with accepted market practice for the use of such replacement or modified Floating Rate for
instruments such as the Program Securities. The making of such adjustments to the relevant Program
Securities and other determinations could adversely affect the value of such Program Securities, the return
on such Program Securities and the price at which the holder can sell such Program Securities.

Specific risks relating to Program Securities referencing SOFR, SONIA, €STR, SARON or TONA

The following sets out a number of additional risks specific to Program Securities that reference SOFR,
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SONIA, €STR, SARON or TONA (each of which is referred to as a (nearly) risk free rate or an “RFR”).

Certain RFRs have limited histories; the future performance of SOFR or SONIA cannot be predicted
based on historical performance.

The publication of €STR began on 2 October 2019 and publication of SOFR began on 3 April 2018, and
these RFRs therefore have very limited histories. The publication of SONIA on the basis of its present
methodology began on 24 April 2018. The publication of SARON began on 25 August 2009. In addition,
the future performance of RFRs cannot be predicted based on the limited historical performance. The
level of an RFR during the term of the Program Securities may bear little or no relation to its historical
level. Prior observed patterns, if any, in the behaviour of market variables and their relation to an RFR,
such as correlations, may change in the future. In the case of SOFR, while some pre-publication
historical data have been released by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York (the “New York Federal
Reserve”), such analysis inherently involves assumptions, estimates and approximations. The future
performance of an RFR is impossible to predict and therefore no future performance of an RFR or the
Program Securities may be inferred from any of the historical performance or historical simulations.
Hypothetical or historical performance data are not indicative of, and have no bearing on, the potential
performance of an RFR or the Program Securities. Changes in the levels of the relevant RFR referenced
by the Program Securities will affect the return on the Program Securities and the trading price of such
Program Securities, but it is impossible to predict whether such levels will rise or fall. There can be no
assurance that the relevant RFR referenced by the Program Securities will be positive.

The composition and characteristics of an RFR are not the same as those of LIBOR and there is no
guarantee that an RFR is a comparable substitute for LIBOR.

In December 2016 the Japanese Study Group on Risk-Free Reference Rates announced TONA as its
preferred risk free rate for Japanese yen. In April 2017 the Working Group on Sterling Risk-Free
Reference Rates announced SONIA as its preferred risk-free rate for sterling. In June 2017, the ARRC
announced SOFR as its recommended alternative to U.S. Dollar LIBOR. In October 2017 the Swiss
National Working Group on Swiss Franc Reference Rates recommended SARON as the alternative to
Swiss franc LIBOR. In September 2018 the Working Group on euro risk free rates recommended €STR
as the euro risk free rate. However, the composition and characteristics of each of these RFRs are not
the same as those of LIBOR.

SOFR is a broad Treasury repo financing rate that represents overnight secured funding transactions.
SARON represents the overnight interest rate of the secured money market for Swiss francs. This means
that each of SOFR and SARON is fundamentally different from LIBOR for two key reasons. First, each
of SOFR and SARON is a secured rate, while LIBOR is an unsecured rate. Second, each of SOFR and
SARON is an overnight rate, while LIBOR represents interbank funding over different maturities.

SONIA is a measure of the rate at which interest is paid on sterling short-term wholesale funds in
circumstances where credit, liquidity and other risks are minimal. €STR is a rate which reflects the
wholesale euro unsecured overnight borrowing costs of euro area banks. TONA represents the weighted
average of call rates for uncollateralized overnight transactions in Japanese yen. While SONIA, €STR,
TONA and LIBOR are all unsecured rates, SONIA, €STR and TONA are solely overnight rates unlike
LIBOR which represents interbank funding over different maturities.

As a result, there can be no assurance that an RFR will perform in the same way as LIBOR would have
at any time, including, without limitation, as a result of changes in interest and yield rates in the market,
market volatility or global, national or regional economic, financial, political, regulatory, judicial or
other events. For example, since publication of SOFR began on 3 April 2018, daily changes in SOFR
have, on occasion, been more volatile than daily changes in comparable benchmark or other market
rates. For additional information regarding SOFR, see “Secured Overnight Financing Rate” above.

The secondary trading market for Program Securities linked to an RFR may be limited.

Since some of the RFRs are relatively new market rates or have only recently been adopted as a
benchmark rate for bonds, the trading market in instruments such as the Program Securities may not
develop or may not be very liquid. Market terms for instruments linked to an RFR (such as the Program
Securities) may evolve over time and, as a result, trading prices of the Program Securities may be lower
than those of later-issued instruments that are linked to the same RFR. Similarly, if an RFR does not
prove to be widely used in instruments similar to the Program Securities, the trading price of the Program
Securities may be lower than that of instruments linked to rates that are more widely used. Investors in
the Program Securities may not be able to sell such Program Securities at all or may not be able to sell
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such Program Securities at prices that will provide them with a yield comparable to similar investments
that have a developed secondary market. Further, investors wishing to sell the Program Securities in the
secondary market will have to make assumptions as to the future performance of the relevant RFR. As
a result, investors may suffer from increased pricing volatility and market risk.

The administrator of the relevant RFR may make changes that could change the value of the benchmark
or discontinue the benchmark and has no obligation to consider holders’ interests in doing so.

The New York Federal Reserve (or a successor), as administrator of SOFR, the Bank of England (or a
successor), as administrator of SONIA, the European Central Bank (or a successor) as administrator of
€STR, SIX Swiss Exchange AG (or a successor) as administrator of SARON or the Bank of Japan (or a
successor) as administrator of TONA may make methodological or other changes that could change the
value of the relevant RFR, including changes related to the method by which the relevant rate is
calculated, eligibility criteria applicable to the transactions used to calculate the relevant rate, or timing
related to the publication of the relevant rate. In addition, the administrator may alter, discontinue or
suspend calculation or dissemination of the relevant RFR (in which case a fallback method of
determining the relevant rate under the relevant Program Securities will apply). The administrator has
no obligation to consider holders’ interests in calculating, adjusting, converting, revising or
discontinuing the relevant rate and any such calculations, adjustments, conversion, revision or
discontinuation could adversely affect the return on the relevant Program Securities, the value of such
Program Securities and the price at which the holder can sell such Program Securities.

The rate under the Program Securities is based on a daily compounded RFR, which is relatively new in
the marketplace; different conventions exist for calculation of amounts of interest and/or principal
under RFR-linked Program Securities

For each Interest Period or Reference Period (as applicable) for Program Securities linked to an RFR,
the relevant rate under the Program Securities is based on a daily compounded RFR calculated using the
specific formula specified in the applicable Conditions and the applicable Pricing Supplement, or the
specified ISDA Rate not the RFR published on or in respect of a particular date during each such Interest
Period or or Reference Period (as applicable), or an average of the relevant RFRs during such period.
For this and other reasons, the relevant rate under the Program Securities during any Interest Period or
Reference Period (as applicable) will not be the same as the interest or other rate on other investments
linked to the same RFR that use an alternative basis to determine the applicable rate. Further, unless in
the case of an ISDA Rate “Daily Floored Rate” is specified as applicable in the relevant Pricing
Supplement and the Daily Floored Rate is zero or above, if the relevant RFR in respect of a particular
date during an Interest Period or Reference Period (as applicable) is negative, the portion of the accrued
compounded interest compounding factor specifically attributable to such date will be less than one,
resulting in a reduction to the accrued interest compounding factor used to calculate the relevant amount
payable under the Program Securities on the payment date for in respect of the relevan period.

Limited market precedent exists for securities that use SOFR and certain other RFRs as the interest or
other rate and, in addition, for each RFR, different market conventions exist for calculating interest and
other amounts on instruments such as the Program Securities. Accordingly, the specific formula for the
daily compounded RFR used in the relevant Program Securities may not be widely adopted by other
market participants, if at all. If the market adopts a different convention for calculating interest and/or
any other amount payable, that would likely adversely affect the market value of such Program
Securities.

The amount of interest payable under the Notes with respect to each Interest Period will be determined
near the end of the Interest Period.

The amount of interest payable with respect to such Interest Period will be determined on a date near
the end of such Interest Period, Noteholders will not know the amount of interest payable with respect
to each such Interest Period until shortly prior to the related Interest Payment Date and it may be difficult
for Noteholders to reliably estimate the amount of interest that will be payable on each such Interest
Payment Date.

The Issuer, its subsidiaries or affiliates may publish research that could affect the market value of the
Program Securities. They also may hedge the Issuer’s obligations under such Program Securities.

The Issuer or one or more of its affiliates may, at present or in the future, publish research reports with
respect to movements in interest rates generally, the LIBOR transition or any of the RFRs specifically.
This research is modified from time to time without notice and may express opinions or provide
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recommendations that are inconsistent with purchasing or holding the Program Securities. Any of these
activities may affect the market value of such Program Securities. In addition, the issuer’s subsidiaries
may hedge the Issuer’s obligations under the Program Securities and they may realize a profit from that
hedging activity even if investors do not receive a favourable investment return under the terms of such
Program Securities or in any secondary market transaction.

Reliance on third parties

Each RFR is published and calculated by third parties based on data received from other sources and
none of the Issuer, the Determination Agent or the Calculation Agent has any control over the
determinations, calculations or publications of any such third parties.

Market Adoption

The market or a significant part thereof may adopt an application of the relevant RFR (one using a
different convention to calculating interest including using an RFR screen based rate) that differs
significantly from that set out in the Conditions and used in relation to Program Securities that reference
arisk-free rate issued under this Offering Circular and this may adversely affect the value of the Program
Securities.

Potential investors in the Program Securities should carefully consider how any mismatch between the
adoption of such reference rates in the bond, loan and derivatives markets may impact any hedging or
other financial arrangements which they may put in place in connection with any acquisition, holding
or disposal of any Program Securities.

Where “Payment Delay” applies, in determining the compounded RFR for the final Interest Period or
Reference Period (as applicable), the level of the relevant RFR for any day from and including the
relevant SOFR/SONIA/ESTR/SARON /TONA Rate Cut-Off Date to but excluding the Maturity Date,
redemption date or Expiration date, as applicable, will be the level of the relevant RFR in respect of
such Rate Cut-off Date.

Where “Payment Delay” applies, for the final Interest Period or Reference Period, because the level of
the relevant RFR for any day from and including the SOFR/SONIA/ESTR/SARON/TONA Rate Cut-off
Date to but excluding the Maturity Date, redemption date or Expiration Date, as applicable, will be the
level of the relevant RFR in respect of such Rate Cut-Off Date, holders will not receive the benefit of
any increase in the level in respect of the relevant RFR beyond the level for such date in connection
with the determination of the amount payable with respect to such Interest Period or Reference Period
(as applicable), which could adversely impact the amount payable with respect to the relevant period.

Additional Risk relating to SOFR-linked Program Securities

Any failure of SOFR to gain market acceptance could adversely affect Program Securities linked to
SOFR.

SOFR may fail to gain market acceptance. SOFR was developed for use in certain U.S. dollar derivatives
and other financial contracts as an alternative to U.S. Dollar LIBOR in part because it is considered a
good representation of general funding conditions in the overnight Treasury repo market. However, as
a rate based on transactions secured by U.S. Treasury securities, it does not measure bank-specific credit
risk and, as a result, is less likely to correlate with the unsecured short-term funding costs of banks. This
may mean that market participants would not consider SOFR a suitable substitute or successor for all of
the purposes for which LIBOR historically has been used (including, without limitation, as a
representation of the unsecured short-term funding costs of banks), which may, in turn, lessen market
acceptance of SOFR. Any failure of SOFR to gain market acceptance could adversely affect the return
on the relevant Program Securities and the price at which the holder can sell such Program Securities.

Prospective investors should review the relevant Conditions to ascertain whether and how such
provisions apply to the Program Securities and what constitutes an Administrator/Benchmark
Event.

Administrator/Benchmark Events

Where the Relevant Underlying or otherwise any variable by reference to which interest, principal or
other amounts payable under the Program Securities is a “Relevant Benchmark” for the purposes of the
relevant Conditions, the administrator or sponsor (or the Relevant Benchmark) may be required to be
authorised, registered, recognised, endorsed or otherwise included in an official register in order for the
Issuer, the Determination Agent or the Calculation Agent to be permitted to use the Relevant Benchmark
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and perform their respective obligations under the Program Securities. If the Determination Agent
determines that such a requirement applies to the administrator or sponsor (or the Relevant Benchmark)
but it has not been satisfied then an “Administrator/Benchmark Event” will occur and the Determination
Agent or the Issuer may then apply certain fallbacks. For the avoidance of doubt,
Administrator/Benchmark Events shall not apply where the Relevant Rates Benchmark, Relevant
Underlying Rates Benchmark or Base Rate (as applicable) is SOFR.

In the case where the Program Securities reference a Relevant Equity Index Benchmark, a Relevant
Commodity Benchmark that is a Commodity Index or a Relevant Property Index Benchmark, these
fallbacks may include one or more of the Determination Agent replacing the Relevant Equity Index
Benchmark, the Relevant Commodity Benchmark or the Relevant Property Index Benchmark with any
“Alternative Pre-nominated Index” which has been specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement,
making adjustments to the amounts payable by the Issuer under the Program Securities, adjusting the
other terms and conditions of the Program Securities or the Issuer redeeming the Program Securities.

In the case where the Program Securities reference a Relevant Commodity Benchmark (other than a
Commodity Index) the fallbacks may include the Determination Agent making a determination of the
Relevant Underlying Value by reference to a fallback reference price, postponing the Pricing Date,
determining the Relevant Underlying Value on the basis of quotations provided to the Determination
Agent by each of the Reference Dealers, the Determination Agent otherwise determining, in its
reasonable discretion, the Relevant Underlying Value (or a method for determining the Relevant
Underlying Value), taking into consideration the latest available quotation for the relevant Commodity
Reference Price and any other information that it deems relevant, or the Issuer redeeming the Program
Securities.

In the case where the Program Securities reference a Relevant FX Benchmark the fallbacks may include
the Determination Agent making a determination of the Settlement Rate or using a fallback reference
price to determine the Settlement Rate, or the Issuer redeeming the Program Securities.

In the case where Program Securities reference a Relevant Rates Benchmark, Relevant Underlying Rates
Benchmark or Base Rate (as applicable), the fallbacks summarised in the risk factor entitled “EURIBOR,
SONIA, €STR, SARON, TONA and other benchmark rate discontinuance or prohibition on use may lead to
adjustments to the terms of the Program Securities or an early redemption or termination of the Program
Securities” above will apply. Holders of the Program Securities should be aware that such adjustments to
the terms of the Program Securities or early redemption or termination of the Program Securities may
adversely impact the return on and value of the Program Securities.
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DISCLAIMERS

The Issuers and the Distribution Agents disclaim any responsibility to advise prospective purchasers
of any matters arising under the laws of the country in which such prospective investors reside that
may affect the purchase of, or holding of, or the receipt of payments on the Program Securities. These
persons should consult their own legal and financial advisors concerning these matters.

1.

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

General Disclaimers
Issuers' credit ratings may not reflect all risks

One or more independent credit rating agencies may assign credit ratings to the Issuers. The ratings
may not reflect the potential impact of all risks related to structure, market, additional factors
discussed above, and other factors that may affect the value of the Program Securities. A credit
rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold Program Securities and may be revised or
withdrawn by the rating agency at any time.

Change of law

The Conditions of the Program Securities are based on English law or New York law (as
applicable) in effect as at the date of this Offering Circular. No assurance can be given as to the
impact of any possible judicial decision or change to English law, New York law or administrative
practice in England or the State of New York after the date of this Offering Circular.

Independent review and advice

Investors should consult their financial and legal advisors as to any specific risks entailed by an
investment in Program Securities that are denominated or payable in, or the payment of which is
linked to the value of, a currency other than the currency of the country in which such investor
resides or in which such investor conducts its business, which is referred to as their home currency.
Such Program Securities are not appropriate investments for investors who are not sophisticated in
foreign currency transactions.

Each prospective investor must determine, based on its own independent review and such
professional advice as it deems appropriate under the circumstances, that its acquisition of the
Program Securities is (i) fully consistent with its (or if it is acquiring the Program Securities in a
fiduciary capacity, the beneficiary's) financial needs, objectives and condition, (ii) complies and is
fully consistent with all investment policies, guidelines and restrictions applicable to it (whether
acquiring the Program Securities as principal or in a fiduciary capacity) and (iii) is a fit, proper and
suitable investment for it (or if it is acquiring the Program Securities in a fiduciary capacity, for the
beneficiary), notwithstanding the clear and substantial risks inherent in investing in or holding the
Program Securities. Each Issuer disclaims any responsibility to advise prospective investors of any
matters arising under the law of the country in which such prospective investors reside that may
affect the purchase of, or holding of, or the receipt of payments or deliveries on the Program
Securities.

Selling Agent remuneration

Each Issuer may enter into distribution agreements with various financial institutions and other
intermediaries as determined by the applicable Issuer (each, a "Selling Agent"). Each Selling Agent
will agree, subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions, to subscribe for the Program Securities
at a price equivalent to or below the Issue Price. Any difference between the price at which the
Selling Agent subscribes the Program Securities and the price at which the Selling Agent sells the
Program Securities to investors will be a remuneration of the Selling Agent. In addition, a periodic
fee may also be payable to the Selling Agents in respect of all outstanding Program Securities up
to and including the maturity date at a rate determined by the applicable Issuer and which may vary
from time to time. Any remuneration received by the Selling Agent including any periodic
payments may influence the Selling Agent's recommendation of the Program Securities to potential
investors and may also increase the purchase price to be paid by the investor. Each Selling Agent
will agree to comply with the selling restrictions set out in the document as amended and
supplemented by the additional selling restrictions set out in the relevant distribution agreements.

55



Disclaimers

1.5

1.6

1.7

Program Securities in Global Form

Reliance on Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg and DTC. Because the Registered Global
Instruments (as defined below) may be held by or on behalf of Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V.
("Euroclear™) and Clearstream Banking, société anonyme ("Clearstream, Luxembourg") and/or
any other clearing system as may be specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement (such system
or systems hereinafter referred to as the "Relevant Clearing System™), investors will have to rely
on their procedures for transfer, payment and communication with the relevant Issuer.

Program Securities issued in registered form which are sold pursuant to Regulation S under the
U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act™)) will be represented by interests in
a permanent global registered instrument (each a "Regulation S Registered Global Instrument™).
Such Regulation S Registered Global Instruments will be registered in the name of a nominee for,
and deposited with a common depositary on behalf of, Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg.

Morgan Stanley, MSF1I and MSESE will only offer and sell Regulation S Securities. MSIP, MSFL
and MSBV may also issue Regulation S/Rule 144A Securities. All Regulation S/Rule 144A
Securities issued by MSFL and MSIP will be offered and sold only to QIBs and/or non-U.S.
persons in offshore transactions. All Regulation S/Rule 144A Securities offered and sold by
MSBYV will be offered and sold only to QIB/QPs and/or to a person that is not a U.S. person in an
offshore transaction. Regulation S/Rule 144A Securities issued by MSIP, MSFL and MSBV in
reliance on Rule 144A will be represented by (i) one or more global registered securities (each a
“Regulation S/Rule 144A Registered Global Instrument” and together with any Regulation S
Registered Global Instruments, the (“Registered Global Instruments”). Such Regulation S/Rule
144A Registered Global Instrument will be deposited with a custodian for, and registered in the
name of, Cede & Co. as nominee for, DTC or a common depository acting on behalf of Euroclear
or Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or any other relevant clearing system.

Interests in the Registered Global Instruments will be shown on, and transfers thereof will be
effected only through, records maintained by Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg or DTC and
its direct and indirect participants, including depositaries for Euroclear and Clearstream,
Luxembourg, as the case may be. Individual Registered Securities evidencing holdings of Program
Securities will only be available in certain limited circumstances.

While the Program Securities are represented by one or more Registered Global Instruments, the
Issuer will discharge its payment obligations under the Program Securities by making payments
through the Relevant Clearing System for distribution to their account holders. A holder of an
interest in a Registered Global Instrument must rely on the procedures of the Relevant Clearing
System to receive payments under the relevant Program Securities. Neither the relevant Issuer nor
the Guarantor has responsibility or liability for the records relating to, or payments made in respect
of, beneficial interests in the Registered Global Instruments.

Holders of beneficial interests in the Registered Global Instruments will not have a direct right to
vote in respect of the relevant Program Securities. Instead, such holders will be permitted to act
only to the extent that they are enabled by the Relevant Clearing System to appoint appropriate
proxies.

Legal investment considerations may restrict certain investments

The investment activities of certain investors are subject to legal investment laws and regulations,
or review or regulation by certain authorities. Each potential investor should consult its legal
advisors to determine whether and to what extent (i) Program Securities are legal investments for
it, (if) Program Securities can be used as collateral for various types of borrowing and (iii) other
restrictions apply to its purchase or pledge of any Program Securities. Financial institutions should
consult their legal advisors or the appropriate regulators to determine the appropriate treatment of
Program Securities under any applicable risk based capital or similar rules.

Discretionary determinations

The Issuer and the Determination Agent have certain discretions under the terms of the Program
Securities following events or circumstances occurring in relation to a Relevant Underlying or
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Relevant Factor, including to defer valuations, make adjustments to the terms and conditions of
such Program Securities and/or to redeem or cancel such Program Securities other than on the
originally designated date of redemption or cancellation. Such discretion is necessary as such
events and circumstances may not be foreseen at the Trade Date of the relevant Program Securities
but impact the economic or other terms of the Program Securities. For example, it may not be
reasonably practicable or appropriate for certain valuations to be carried out in relation to the
Program Securities without the exercise of the discretion. Furthermore, such events and
circumstances may not be reflected in the pricing of the Program Securities and/or any
arrangements entered into by the Issuer and/or any of its Affiliates to hedge obligations under
Program Securities and, accordingly, without such discretion to adjust the terms of the Program
Securities the Issuer may not have been able to issue the Program Securities on the terms applicable
on the Issue Date or at all.

Disclaimers linked with the Relevant Underlying
No affiliation with underlying companies

The underlying share issuer for any single security or basket security, ETF or other fund or any
Fund Advisor, the publisher of an underlying index, the sponsor of a futures contract, or any
specified entity with respect to Credit-Linked Program Securities, will not be an affiliate of Morgan
Stanley, MSI plc, MSBV, MSFL, MSFII or MSESE unless otherwise specified in the applicable
Pricing Supplement. Morgan Stanley or its subsidiaries may presently or from time to time engage
in business with any underlying company, fund or any specified entity, including entering into
loans with, or making equity investments in, the underlying company, fund or specified entity, or
its affiliates or subsidiaries or providing investment advisory services to the underlying company,
fund or specified entity, including merger and acquisition advisory services. Moreover, no Issuer
has the ability to control or predict the actions of the underlying company, fund, index publisher,
futures contract sponsor or specified entity, including any actions, or reconstitution of index
components, of the type that would require the Determination Agent to adjust the payout to the
investor at maturity. No underlying company, fund or Fund Advisor, index publisher, futures
contract sponsor or specified entity, for any issuance of Program Securities is involved in the
offering of the Program Securities in any way or has any obligation to consider the investor’s
interest as an owner of the Program Securities in taking any corporate actions that might affect the
value of the Program Securities. None of the money an investor pays for the Program Securities
will go to the underlying company, fund or Fund Advisor or specified entity, for such Program
Securities.

Provision of information

None of the Issuers or any of their Affiliates makes any representation as to the issuer for any single
security or basket security, fund or Fund Service Provider, the publisher of an underlying index,
the sponsor of any futures contract, or any specified entity with respect to Credit-Linked Program
Securities. Any of such persons may have acquired, or during the term of the Program Securities
may acquire, non-public information with respect to any such issuer, publisher, sponsor or specified
entity, their respective affiliates or any guarantors that is or may be material in the context of the
Program Securities. The issue of Program Securities will not create any obligation on the part of
any such persons to disclose to the Noteholders and Securityholders or any other party such
information (whether or not confidential).

Disclosure

None of the issuer of any single security or basket security, an ETF, other fund or underlying asset,
any Fund Service Provider, the publisher of an underlying index (including, without limitation,
Morgan Stanley or any of its affiliates where such Morgan Stanley entity is the sponsor of any
proprietary index), the sponsor of any futures contract, nor any specified entity with respect to
Credit-Linked Program Securities has participated in the preparation of this document or in
establishing the Conditions of the Program Securities and none of the Issuers nor any of their
Affiliates will make any investigation or enquiry in connection with such offering with respect to
any information concerning any such issuer, ETF, other fund, underlying asset, Fund Service
Provider, publisher, sponsor or specified entity contained in this document or in the documents
from which such information was extracted. Consequently, there can be no assurance that all events
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occurring prior to the issue date (including events that would affect the accuracy or completeness
of any publicly available information described in this document) that would affect the trading
price and/or level of the Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor will have been publicly disclosed.
Subsequent disclosure of any such events or the disclosure of or failure to disclose material future
events concerning such an issuer, ETF, other fund, underlying asset, Fund Service Provider,
publisher, sponsor or specified entity could affect the trading price and/or level of the Relevant
Underlying or Relevant Factor and therefore the trading price of the Program Securities.

Program Securities are not sold or promoted by an index or the sponsor of such index

Except where an index is a proprietary index, Program Securities linked to an index are not
sponsored, endorsed, sold, or promoted by such index or the sponsor of such index. The sponsor
of an index makes no representation whatsoever, whether express or implied, either as to the results
to be obtained from the use of such index or the levels at which such index stands at any particular
time on any particular date. Neither an index nor sponsor of such index shall be liable (whether in
negligence or otherwise) to any person for any error in such index. A sponsor of an index is under
no obligation to advise any person of any error in such index. A sponsor of an index does not make
any representation whatsoever, whether express or implied, as to the advisability of investing or
assuming any risk in connection with the Program Securities linked to such index.

The relevant Issuer, Morgan Stanley or any of Morgan Stanley’s affiliates are not liable for the
actions or omissions of the sponsor of an index, any information concerning an index, the
performance of such index or use thereof in connection with the Program Securities

The relevant Issuer, Morgan Stanley or any of Morgan Stanley's affiliates are not liable to the
holders of Program Securities for any act or failure to act by a sponsor of an index in connection
with the calculation, adjustment, or maintenance of such index. Although the Determination Agent,
as applicable, will obtain information concerning an index from publicly available sources it
believes reliable, it will not independently verify this information. Accordingly, no representation,
warranty, or undertaking (express or implied) is made and no responsibility is accepted by the
relevant Issuer, Morgan Stanley or any of Morgan Stanley's affiliates, or the Determination Agent
as to the accuracy, completeness, and timeliness of information concerning such index. In addition,
the relevant Issuer, Morgan Stanley or any of Morgan Stanley's affiliates, or the Determination
Agent makes no representation whatsoever, whether express or implied, as to the performance of
any index which is linked to the Program Securities, any data included in, or omitted from, such
index, or the use of such index in connection with such Program Securities.

Representations and acknowledgments by Noteholders and Securityholders

Representations and acknowledgments by Noteholders and Securityholders. Each Noteholder and
Securityholder shall be deemed to represent and acknowledge to the relevant Issuer on acquiring
any Program Security that:

@) none of the Issuers, any of their Affiliates nor any of their agents is acting as a fiduciary
for it or provides investment, tax, accounting, legal or other advice in respect of the
Program Securities and that such holder and its advisors are not relying on any
communication (written or oral and including, without limitation, opinions of third party
advisors) of the Issuers or any of their Affiliates as (a) legal, regulatory, tax, business,
investment, financial, accounting or other advice, (b) a recommendation to invest in any
Program Securities or (C) an assurance or guarantee as to the expected results of an
investment in the Program Securities (it being understood that information and
explanations related to the terms and conditions of the Program Securities shall not be
considered to be any such advice, recommendation, assurance or guarantee and should be
independently confirmed by the recipient and its advisors prior to making any such
investment);

(b) such Program Security holder (a) has consulted with its own legal, regulatory, tax,
business, investments, financial and accounting advisors to the extent that it has deemed
necessary, and has made its own investment, hedging, and trading decisions based upon
its own judgment and upon any advice from such advisors as it has deemed necessary and
not upon any view expressed by the Issuers or any of their Affiliates or any of their agents
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and (b) is acquiring Program Securities with an understanding of the terms, conditions
and risks thereof and it is capable of and willing to assume those risks; and

(c) the Issuers and/or any of their Affiliates may have banking or other commercial
relationships with issuers of any securities to which the Program Securities relate and may
engage in proprietary trading in any equity securities, indices or other property to which
the Program Securities relate or options, futures, derivatives or other instruments relating
thereto (including such trading as the Issuers and/or any of their Affiliates deem
appropriate in their reasonable discretion to hedge the market risk on the Program
Securities and other transactions between the Issuers and/or any of their Affiliates and any
third parties), and that such trading (a) may affect the price or level thereof and
consequently the amounts payable under the Program Securities and (b) may be effected
at any time.

Representations and acknowledgments by Noteholders and Securityholders in respect of Program
Securities linked to Shares which are eligible to be traded through the China Connect Service.
Each Noteholder and Securityholder shall be deemed to represent, acknowledge and undertake to
the relevant Issuer on acquiring any Program Security that:

@) without prejudice to the generality of any applicable law, the Noteholder or
Securityholder (as applicable) expressly consents to the disclosure by the Issuer or its
Affiliates to the relevant authorities in the jurisdiction of the incorporation or organisation
of the issuer of the relevant shares (a “Relevant Jurisdiction”), the jurisdiction in which
the Exchange is located (the “Local Jurisdiction”), a jurisdiction in which the SEHK is
located (a “CCS Jurisdiction”) or any jurisdiction of tax residence of the issuer of the
Shares (a “Tax Residence Jurisdiction”), information relating to these Program
Securities, including the name of the Noteholder or Securityholder (as applicable) in order
for the Issuer or any of its Affiliates to comply with laws and regulations of the Relevant
Jurisdiction, the Local Jurisdiction, the CCS Jurisdiction or Tax Residence Jurisdiction
that are applicable to the Issuer or its Affiliate in connection with their dealings in the
underlying;

(b) the Noteholder or Securityholder (as applicable) represents that, in the case of an
individual, (A) either (x) it is not a person who is a citizen of or resident or domiciled in
the PRC, or (y) it is a citizen of the PRC who is a resident of or is domiciled in a
jurisdiction outside the PRC, or in the case of an entity, (B) either (X) it is not incorporated
or registered under the laws of PRC or (y) it will purchase and hold the Program Securities
pursuant to any program approved by, or approval of or registration with, any competent
PRC regulator, or in such other manner as may be permitted in accordance with the laws
and regulations of the PRC; and

(c) the Noteholder or Securityholder (as applicable) will use funds lawfully owned by it and
located outside PRC to purchase the Program Securities unless it will purchase the
Program Securities pursuant to any program approved by, or approval of or registration
with, any competent PRC regulator.

Representations and acknowledgments by Noteholders and Securityholders in respect of Program
Securities in respect of which “QFII” is specified by the name of the Exchange in the applicable
Pricing Supplement

Each Noteholder and Securityholder shall be deemed to represent, acknowledge and undertake to
the relevant Issuer on acquiring any Program Security that:

it understands that Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc or its Affiliates may be requested from
time to time to report or otherwise disclose to applicable regulatory authorities, including without
limitation the China Securities Regulatory Commission (CSRC) and other regulatory bodies in the
PRC, details of the relevant Program Securities and any other information (including, without
limitation, the beneficial owner of the relevant Program Securities) as may be required by law or
under any applicable rules or regulations of such regulatory authorities, including without
limitation, any ad hoc or periodic reporting obligations (each a “Regulatory Request” within the
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meaning of the terms and conditions of the relevant Program Securities), and the Noteholder or
Securityholder (as applicable) consents to any such disclosure;

the beneficial owner of the Program Securities is not (1) a PRC Citizen resident in the PRC
(excluding Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan), (2) a PRC Citizen resident outside the PRC who is
not a permanent resident of another country or permanent resident of Hong Kong, Macau or
Taiwan, or (3) a Legal Person Registered in the PRC (as defined below), (each a “Domestic
Investor”);

in the case where the beneficial owner of the Program Securities is a trustee for a trust, interests in
the trust are not majority-owned by, and the management decision over the trust is not controlled
by, one or more Domestic Investor(s). For the avoidance of doubt, in the case only where a trust’s
investments are being managed on a discretionary basis by an investment manager, such investment
manager shall not be deemed to control such entity for the purposes of this representation by reason
only of it being able to control the decision-making in relation to the entity’s financial, investment
and/or operating policies, provided that the foregoing representation does not apply to trusts or
companies organized as investment schemes for public offering;

to the best of its knowledge, all amounts paid or to be paid by the beneficial owner of the Program
Securities under the Program Securities did not and will not involve moneys financed by or sourced
from any Domestic Investor in contravention of the laws and regulations of the PRC; and

the beneficial owner of the Program Securities is investing in such Program Securities as principal
and not as agent of any person or entity.

Where:

"Legal Person Registered in the PRC" means an entity incorporated or organized in the PRC
(excluding Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan).

"PRC" means the People’s Republic of China.

"PRC Citizen" means any person holding a resident identification card of the PRC (excluding
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan).

"trust"” includes a trust fund or any similar arrangement where the legal title to the trust assets are

held by a trustee or legal representative but the beneficial interests in the trust assets are held by
beneficiaries; and “trustee” shall be construed accordingly.
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CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
Potential conflicts of interest between the investor and the Determination Agent

Potential conflicts of interest may exist between the investor and the Determination Agent, which
may be an affiliate of the Issuer and the Guarantor, if applicable. Certain determinations made by
the Determination Agent may require it to exercise discretion and make subjective judgments. As
Determination Agent for Program Securities linked to a single security, index, futures contract,
ETF or other fund or a basket of securities, indices, futures contracts, ETFs or other funds, Credit-
Linked Program Securities, or Program Securities linked to commodities or other underlying
instruments, assets or obligations, Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc (unless otherwise
specified) will determine the payout to the investor at maturity, redemption, exercise or
cancellation (as applicable). Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc and other affiliates may also
carry out hedging activities related to any Program Securities linked to a single security, index,
futures contract, ETF or other fund or a basket of securities, indices, futures contracts, ETFs, other
funds, Credit-Linked Program Securities, or Program Securities linked to commaodities or to other
instruments, assets or obligations including trading in the underlying securities, indices, futures
contracts, ETFs or commodities as well as in other instruments related to the underlying securities,
indices, futures contracts, ETFs or commodities. Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc and some
of Morgan Stanley's other subsidiaries may also trade the applicable underlying securities, indices,
futures contracts or commodities and other financial instruments related to the underlying
securities, indices, futures contracts or commodities on a regular basis as part of their general broker
dealer and other businesses. Any of these activities could influence the Determination Agent's
potentially subjective determination of adjustments made to any Program Securities linked to a
single security, index, futures contract, ETF or other fund or a basket of securities, indices, futures
contracts, ETFs or other funds, Credit-Linked Program Securities, or Program Securities linked to
commodities or other underlying instruments, assets or obligations and any such trading activity
could potentially affect the price of the underlying securities, indices, futures contracts, ETFs, other
funds, commaodities or other underlying instruments, assets or obligations and, accordingly, could
affect the investor's payout on any Program Securities.

Actions taken by the Determination Agent may affect the Relevant Underlying or Relevant
Factor

The Determination Agent may make such adjustments as it considers appropriate as a consequence
of certain corporate actions affecting the Relevant Underlying or Relevant Factor. In making these
adjustments the Determination Agent is entitled to exercise substantial discretion and may be
subject to conflicts of interest, including the conflicts of interest highlighted above, in exercising
this discretion. The Determination Agent is not required but has the discretion to make adjustments
with respect to each and every corporate action. These potentially subjective determinations may
adversely affect the amount payable to the investor.

Where Morgan Stanley or an affiliate of Morgan Stanley is the sponsor or calculation agent in
respect of a proprietary index, Morgan Stanley has the authority to make determinations that
could materially affect such an index and create conflicts of interest

Where Morgan Stanley or an affiliate of Morgan Stanley is the sponsor of the proprietary index
and/or, if applicable, the calculation agent of such an index, Morgan Stanley does not generally
exercise any discretion in relation to the operation of the index. Morgan Stanley owes no fiduciary
duties in respect of such index. Morgan Stanley may, however, exercise discretion in certain limited
situations including, but not limited to, those situations described in any description of the relevant
index. Determinations made by Morgan Stanley as the sponsor and, if applicable, calculation agent
of such a proprietary index could adversely affect the level of such index and the exercise by
Morgan Stanley of its discretion could present it with a conflict of interest. Subject as provided in
the Index Rules in respect of a Proprietary Index, in making those determinations, the sponsor
and/or the calculation agent, as applicable, of such index will not be required to, and will not, take
the interests of any investor of any product that references such index into account or consider the
effect its determinations will have on the value of such a product. All determinations made by
relevant sponsor and/or the calculation agent shall be (including, without limitation, any Program
Securities) conclusive for all purposes and will bind all holders of any products linked to such an
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index. The index sponsor and/or the calculation agent shall not have any liability for such
determinations.

Potential Conflicts of Interest in respect of Preference Shares

The calculation agent in respect of the Preference Shares (the "Preference Share Calculation
Agent") is a member of the Morgan Stanley Group. As a result, potential conflicts of interest may
arise in acting in its capacity as Preference Share Calculation Agent and other capacities in which
it acts under the Preference Share-Linked Notes. Subject to any relevant regulatory obligations, the
Preference Share Calculation Agent owes no duty or responsibility to any Noteholder to avoid any
conflict or to act in the interests of any Noteholder. The Preference Share Issuer may also rely on
members of Morgan Stanley (including the Preference Share Calculation Agent) or other service
providers to perform its operational requirements. In the event any relevant Morgan Stanley entities
or other service providers fail to perform any obligations, this may adversely affect the value of the
Preference Shares and potentially the amounts payable under the Preference Share-Linked Notes.
In addition to providing calculation agency services to the Preference Share Issuer, Morgan Stanley
or any of its affiliates may perform further or alternative roles relating to the Preference Share
Issuer and any series of the Preference Shares including, but not limited to, for example, being
involved in arrangements relating to any of the underlying reference assets (for example as a
calculation agent). Further, Morgan Stanley or any of its affiliates may contract with the Preference
Share Issuer and/or enter into transactions, including hedging transactions, which relate to the
Preference Share Issuer or the Preference Shares and as a result Morgan Stanley may face a conflict
between its obligations as Preference Share Calculation Agent and its and/or its affiliates' interests
in other capacities.

62



Where the Investor can find more information about Morgan Stanley

WHERE THE INVESTOR CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION ABOUT MORGAN STANLEY

Morgan Stanley files annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the
United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"). Investors may read and copy any
document that Morgan Stanley files with the SEC at the SEC's public reference room at 100 F Street, N.E.,
Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at +1-800-SEC-0330 for information on the public reference
room. The SEC maintains an internet site that contains annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy and
information statements and other information that issuers (including Morgan Stanley) file electronically
with the SEC. Morgan Stanley's electronic SEC filings are available to the public at the SEC's internet site
www.sec.gov. Morgan Stanley also makes available, through its Investor Relations webpage, a link to the
SEC's internet site. You can access Morgan Stanley's Investor Relations webpage at
www.morganstanley.com/about-us-ir. The information contained on Morgan Stanley's website shall not
form part of this Offering Circular, unless such information has been expressly incorporated herein.
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Results of Operations and Financial
Condition

Financial Statements and Exhibits

Press release of Morgan Stanley, dated
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information for the quarter ended 31
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Financial Data Supplement of Morgan
Stanley for the quarter ended 31
March 2023.

Financial Information

Management's Discussion and
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Disclosures about Risk
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Consolidated Financial Statements and
Notes

0] Consolidated Income
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2023)
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Financial Statements
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Financial Data Supplement
(Unaudited)

Glossary of Common Terms and
Acronyms
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Document filed

Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc

Report and Financial Statements for the
year ended 31 December 2022

https://sp.morganstanley.com/EU/Downlo
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Exhibits and Financial Statement
Schedules

Form 10-K Summary

Signatures
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Company statement of
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11.

Document filed

Report and Financial Statements for the
year ended 31 December 2021

https://sp.morganstanley.com/EU/
Download/GeneralDocument?doc
umentlD=deb4bb5b-28f7-4e8d-bad4-
c506299f78e9

Morgan Stanley B.V.

Report and Financial Statements for the
year ended 31 December 2022

https://sp.morganstanley.com/EU/Downlo
ad/GeneralDocument?documentID=c9da5
2f1-4872-4a64-9d89-b649ee087157

Information incorporated by reference

@) Company statement of
financial position

(8) Consolidated statement of cash
flows

9 Notes to the consolidated financial
statements

(10) Appendix to the financial statements

(1) Independent auditor’s report
2 Consolidated income statement
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comprehensive income

4) Consolidated statement of changes
in equity
(5) Company statement of

changes in equity

(6) Consolidated statement of
financial position

@) Company statement of
financial position

(8) Consolidated statement of cash
flows

9 Notes to the consolidated financial
statements

(10) Appendix to the financial statements

(1) Directors’ responsibilities statement
(2) Statement of comprehensive income
3) Statement of changes in equity

(4) Statement of financial position

(5) Statement of cash flows

(6) Notes to the financial statements

(7) Additional information

(8) Independent auditors’ report
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12.

13.

14.

Document filed

Report and Financial Statements for the
year ended 31 December 2021

https://sp.morganstanley.com/EU/D
ownload/GeneralDocument?docum
entlD=c69a203a-ea4e-4936-8fbc-
3bal6badc461

Morgan Stanley Finance LLC

Annual financial report for the year ended
31 December 2022

https://sp.morganstanley.com/EU/Downlo
ad/GeneralDocument?documentlD=ce6d1
Ode-e722-417b-897f-ach95254033a

Annual financial report for the year ended
31 December 2021

https://sp.morganstanley.com/EU/D
ownload/GeneralDocument?docum
entiD=1d6e0bc9-1aa7-4d35-a7al-
882d92a96edc
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Directors’ responsibility statement
Statement of comprehensive income
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Statements of comprehensive income
Statements of cash flows

Statements of changes in member’s
equity (deficit)

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Directors’ responsibility statement
Independent Auditor’s report
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15.

16.

17.

18.

Document filed

Morgan Stanley Finance Il Ltd

Report and financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2022

https://sp.morganstanley.com/EU/Downlo
ad/GeneralDocument?documentlD=9b9a
df96-974b-4aeb-a582-2f63bch6a32e

Report and financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2021

https://sp.morganstanley.com/EU/
Download/GeneralDocument?doc
umentlD=b932890f-44d1-49da-ac49-
cd125e911384

Morgan Stanley Europe SE

Report and Financial Statements for the
year ended 31 December 2022
https://sp.morganstanley.com/EU/Downlo
ad/GeneralDocument?documentID=1c19c
a19-f0fb-4447-8806-5¢35408da687

Report and Financial Statements for the
year ended 31 December 2021

https://sp.morganstanley.com/EU/Downlo
ad/GeneralDocument?document|D=232fa
aee-4f05-4616-b607-4cd31b18a22d

Information incorporated by reference

1)

)
®3)
(4)
()
(6)
)]
2
©)
(4)
®)
(6)

)]
2
©)
(4)
()

€]

2

®3)
(4)
)

71

Independent auditors report

Statement of comprehensive income
Statement of changes in equity
Statement of financial position
Statement of cash flows

Notes to the financial statements
Independent auditors report
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Statement of changes in equity
Statement of financial position
Statement of cash flows

Notes to the financial statements

Balance sheet as at 31 December 2022

Income statement for the period from 1
January to 31 December 2022

Notes
Independent auditor’s report

Report on the supervisory board in
accordance with sec. 171(2) of the German
Stock Corporation Act (AktG)
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Notes
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19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

217.

28.

29.

30.

31

32.

The terms and conditions set out on pages 86 to 147 of the base prospectus for notes, series A
and B dated 12 July 2006 relating to the Program under the heading “Terms and Conditions of
the English Law Notes” (the “2006 English Law Note Conditions”).

The terms and conditions set out on pages 94 to 157 of the base prospectus for notes, series A
and B dated 22 June 2007 relating to the Program under the heading “Terms and Conditions of
the English Law Notes” (the “2007 English Law Note Conditions”).

The terms and conditions set out on pages 52 to 115 of the base prospectus for notes, series A
and B dated 19 June 2008 relating to the Program under the heading “Terms and Conditions of
the English Law Notes” (the “2008 English Law Note Conditions”).

The terms and conditions set out on pages 51 to 109 of the base prospectus for notes, series A
and B dated 17 June 2009 relating to the Program under the heading “Terms and Conditions of
the English Law Notes” (the “2009 English Law Note Conditions”).

The terms and conditions set out on pages 66 to 130 of the base prospectus for notes, series A
and B, warrants and certificates dated 15 June 2010 relating to the Program under the heading
“Terms and Conditions of the English Law Notes” (the “2010 English Law Note Conditions”).

The terms and conditions set out on pages 72 to 157 of the base prospectus for notes, series A
and B, warrants and certificates dated 10 June 2011 relating to the Program under the heading
“Terms and Conditions of the English Law Notes” (the “2011 English Law Note Conditions”).

The terms and conditions set out on pages 73 to 160 of the base prospectus for notes, series A
and B, warrants and certificates dated 7 June 2012 relating to the Program under the heading
“Terms and Conditions of the English Law Notes” (the “2012 English Law Note Conditions”).

The terms and conditions set out on pages 77 to 168 of the offering circular for notes, warrants
and certificates dated 27 June 2013 relating to the Program under the heading “Terms and
Conditions of the English Law Notes” (the “2013 English Law Note Conditions”).

The terms and conditions set out on pages 76 to 170 of the offering circular for notes, warrants
and certificates dated 18 August 2014 relating to the Program under the heading “Terms and
Conditions of the English Law Notes” (the “2014 English Law Note Conditions”).

The terms and conditions set out on pages 79 to 178 of the offering circular for notes, warrants
and certificates dated 17 August 2015 relating to the Program under the heading “Terms and
Conditions of the English Law Notes” (the “2015 English Law Note Conditions”).

The terms and conditions set out on pages 79 to 181 of the offering circular for notes, warrants
and certificates dated 16 August 2016 relating to the Program under the heading “Terms and
Conditions of the English Law Notes” (the “2016 English Law Note Conditions”).

The terms and conditions set out on pages 82 to 185 of the offering circular for notes, warrants
and certificates dated 30 June 2017 relating to the Program under the heading “Terms and
Conditions of the English Law Notes” (the “2017 English Law Note Conditions”).

The terms and conditions set out on pages 84 to 187 of the offering circular for notes, warrants
and certificates dated 29 June 2018 relating to the Program under the heading “Terms and
Conditions of the English Law Notes” (the “2018 English Law Note Conditions”).

The terms and conditions set out on pages 96 to 240 of the offering circular for notes, warrants
and certificates dated 28 June 2019 relating to the Program under the heading “Terms and
Conditions of the English Law Notes” (the “2019 English Law Note Conditions”).
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33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42,

43.

44,

45,

The terms and conditions set out on pages 112 to 266 of the offering circular for notes, warrants
and certificates dated 26 June 2020 relating to the Program under the hearing “Terms and
Conditions of the English Law Notes” (the “2020 English Law Note Conditions”).

The terms and conditions set out on pages 120 to 293 of the offering circular for notes, warrants
and certificates dated 25 June 2021 relating to the Program under the hearing “Terms and
Conditions of the English Law Notes” (the “2021 English Law Note Conditions™).

The terms and conditions set out on pages 120 to 299 of the offering circular for notes, warrants
and certificates dated 24 June 2022 relating to the Program under the hearing “Terms and
Conditions of the English Law Notes” (the “2022 English Law Note Conditions™).

The terms and conditions set out on pages 49 to 94 of the base prospectus in respect of the
warrants and certificates dated 12 July 2006 relating to the Program under the heading “Terms
and Conditions of the Securities” (the “2006 Securities Conditions”).

The terms and conditions set out on pages 63 to 109 of the base prospectus in respect of the
warrants and certificates dated 22 June 2007 relating to the Program under the heading “Terms
and Conditions of the Securities” (the “2007 Securities Conditions”).

The terms and conditions set out on pages 28 to 71 of the base prospectus in respect of the
warrants and certificates dated 19 June 2008 relating to the Program under the heading “Terms
and Conditions of the Securities” (the “2008 Securities Conditions”).

The terms and conditions set out on pages 29 to 72 of the base prospectus in respect of the
warrants and certificates dated 17 June 2009 relating to the Program under the heading “Terms
and Conditions of the Securities” (the “2009 Securities Conditions”).

The terms and conditions set out on pages 172 to 217 of the base prospectus for notes, series A
and B, warrants and certificates dated 15 June 2010 relating to the Program under the heading
“Terms and Conditions of the Warrants and Certificates” (the “2010 Warrants and Certificates
Conditions™).

The terms and conditions set out on pages 209 to 280 of the base prospectus for notes, series A
and B, warrants and certificates dated 10 June 2011 relating to the Program under the heading
“Terms and Conditions of the Warrants and Certificates” (the “2011 Warrants and Certificates
Conditions™).

The terms and conditions set out on pages 211 to 285 of the base prospectus for notes, series A
and B, warrants and certificates dated 7 June 2012 relating to the Program under the heading
“Terms and Conditions of the Warrants and Certificates” (the “2012 Warrants and Certificates
Conditions”).

The terms and conditions set out on pages 217 to 297 of the offering circular for notes, warrants
and certificates dated 27 June 2013 relating to the Program under the heading “Terms and
Conditions of the Warrants and Certificates” (the “2013 Warrants and Certificates
Conditions”).

The terms and conditions set out on pages 217 to 302 of the offering circular for notes, warrants
and certificates dated 18 August 2014 relating to the Program under the heading “Terms and
Conditions of the Warrants and Certificates” (the “2014 Warrants and Certificates
Conditions”).

The terms and conditions set out on pages 229 to 317 of the offering circular for notes, warrants
and certificates dated 17 August 2015 relating to the Program under the heading “Terms and
Conditions of the Warrants and Certificates” (the “2015 Warrants and Certificates
Conditions™).
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46. The terms and conditions set out on pages 232 to 325 of the offering circular for notes, warrants
and certificates dated 16 August 2016 relating to the Program under the heading “Terms and
Conditions of the Warrants and Certificates” (the “2016 Warrants and Certificates
Conditions™).

47, The terms and conditions set out on pages 239 to 333 of the offering circular for notes, warrants
and certificates dated 30 June 2017 relating to the Program under the heading “Terms and
Conditions of the Warrants and Certificates” (the “2017 Warrants and Certificates
Conditions™).

48. The terms and conditions set out on pages 242 to 334 of the offering circular for notes, warrants
and certificates dated 29 June 2018 relating to the Program under the heading “Terms and
Conditions of the Warrants and Certificates” (the “2018 Warrants and Certificates
Conditions™).

49, The terms and conditions set out on pages 303 to 433 of the offering circular for notes, warrants
and certificates dated 28 June 2019 relating to the Program under the heading “Terms and
Conditions of the Warrants and Certificates” (the “2019 Warrants and Certificates
Conditions™).

50. The terms and conditions set out on pages 333 to 469 of the offering circular for notes, warrants
and certificates dated 26 June 2020 relating to the Program under the heading “Terms and
Conditions of the Warrants and Certificates” (the “2020 Warrants and Certificates
Conditions™).

51. The terms and conditions set out on pages 368 to 503 of the offering circular for notes, warrants
and certificates dated 25 June 2021 relating to the Program under the heading “Terms and
Conditions of the Warrants and Certificates” (the “2021 Warrants and Certificates
Conditions”).

52. The terms and conditions set out on pages 379 to 516 of the offering circular for notes, warrants
and certificates dated 24 June 2022 relating to the Program under the heading “Terms and
Conditions of the Warrants and Certificates” (the “2022 Warrants and Certificates
Conditions”).

Any statement contained in this Offering Circular or any documents incorporated by reference herein, shall
be deemed to be modified or superseded for the purpose of this Offering Circular to the extent that a
statement contained in any document subsequently incorporated by reference and in respect of which a
supplement to this Offering Circular is prepared modifies or supersedes such statement.

The information about Morgan Stanley, MSI plc, MSBV, MSFL, MSFII and MSESE incorporated by
reference in this Offering Circular (the “Incorporated Information™) is considered to be part of this
Offering Circular. Following the publication of this Offering Circular a supplement may be prepared by the
Issuer. Statements contained in any such supplement (or contained in any document incorporated by
reference therein) shall, to the extent applicable (whether expressly, by implication or otherwise), be deemed
to modify or supersede statements contained in this Offering Circular or in a document which is incorporated
by reference in this Offering Circular. Any statement so modified or superseded shall not, except as so
modified or superseded, constitute a part of this Offering Circular.

Any information or documents incorporated by reference into the documents listed above do not form part
of this Offering Circular. Where only certain portions of the documents listed above have been incorporated
by reference in this Offering Circular, such portions of these documents which are not so incorporated are
either not relevant to the investor or are covered elsewhere in this Offering Circular or in the Registration
Document dated 9 December 2022.

The non-incorporated parts of the documents listed above are as follows:
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Document filed
Morgan Stanley

. Notice of 2023 Annual Meeting and Proxy
Statement dated 6 April 2023

. Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended 31 December 2022

https://sp.morganstanley.com/EU/Download/
GeneralDocument?documentiD=e3a7e674-
bab4-4056-a10c-a977a58409a4

. Morgan Stanley March 2023 Form 10-Q

Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc

. Report and Financial Statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022

. Report and Financial Statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021
Morgan Stanley B.V.

. Report and Financial Statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022

. Report and Financial Statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021

Morgan Stanley Finance LLC

. Annual financial report for the year ended 31
December 2022

. Annual financial report for the year ended 31
December 2021

Morgan Stanley Finance 11 Ltd

. Report and financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022

. Report and financial statements f